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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Director(s)”) of
Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
audited consolidated results of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022”) to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group’s revenue for FY2022 was approximately HK$1,016.2
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$799.5
million or 368.9%, as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$216.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 (“FY2021”).
The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in the
delivery of properties during FY2022. The revenue from the
property development business of the Group increased by
approximately HK$800.3 million for FY2022, representing an
increase of approximately 391.6% over FY2021

The Group still recorded a net loss of approximately HK$755.7
million for FY2022, as compared to the net loss of approximately
HK$175.5 million for FY2021. Basic loss per share for FY2022 was
HK$38.13 cents (FY2021: HK$12.70 cents).

During FY2022, Shanghai Baoxian Industrial Co., Ltd. (a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Shanghai Baoxian”)
has acquired the land use rights of a plot of land located at Plot
12A-01A, Industrial Comprehensive Development Zone, Fengxian
District, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (“Shanghai
Fengxian Boill e Pharmaceutical Valley”), which is located at
east to Shanghai-Hangzhou Highway, west to Renjie Road, south
to Fengpu Avenue and north to Zhijiang Road (the “Land”) with a
total site area of approximately 63,481 square meters.
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The Group intends to develop the Land into an innovative hub and
integrated industrial zone for companies, researchers and individuals
in the medical equipment, biomedical and medical beauty industry,
and such integrated zone, with an area for commercial facilities,
aims to attract customers for talent residence, catering and leisure,
Chinese medical and healthcare, cosmetics sales, fitness and
sports, personal image consulting and other businesses. The Group
plans to construct 30 buildings ranging from 1 to 18 storeys, with
a total estimated gross floor area of approximately 160,090 square
meters for education, scientific research and design use, and
739 carparking spaces in the basement. The construction on the
Land has commenced in September 2021 and is expected to be
completed before April 2024.

In line with the vigorous development trend of domestic strategic
emerging industries, and taking into account the resources and
advantages that the Company’s substantial shareholder, Boill
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“Boill Holding”), has cultivated and
accumulated over the years, which can be used to support
the development of the Group, the Group has established
the development strategy for the development, construction,
operation and investment in integrated industrial zones focusing on
biomedicine and artificial intelligence.

In respect of the Shanghai Fengxian Boill e Pharmaceutical Valley,
the Group will further explore the integrated industrial zones
(biomedicine + artificial intelligence) in the Yangtze River Delta,
and provide target enterprise customers with one-stop integrated
services from construction carrier, industrial supporting operation,
fund investment to capital market exit. Meanwhile, with capital and
assets as the link, the Group will seize opportunity to enter the
high-growth segment of strategic emerging industries.

In addition, in terms of market positioning, product planning and
design, as well as asset-light services such as park investment and
operation of the Group’s own integrated industrial zone projects,
the Group will actively expand and develop the asset-light service
business of integrated industrial zones, including market-oriented
undertaking of the asset-light service business of integrated
industrial zones from state-owned enterprises and other private
enterprises.

REREFEEAARAF) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 5
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In the future, with the support of Boill Holding, which was rated
as the top 20 industry city operators in Shanghai and the top
50 national industry city operators, the Group will follow the
development trend and opportunities of market demand, build
industrial operation service capabilities through win-win cooperation,
and actively cultivate and develop the asset-light service business
of integrated industrial zones. Through win-win cooperation, the
Group will build system capabilities in fund operation and capital
operation, and is confident to develop into an industry integration
service operator with a first-class brand in the Yangtze River Delta
of China.

| would like to offer the Board’s sincere gratitude to the
management team and all the staff for their hard work and
dedication. Their commitments are of vital importance in enhancing
the Company’s sustainable development. Finally, | would like
to take this opportunity to thank our Shareholders and all other
stakeholders for their continuous support to the Group.

Dai Dong Xing
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 August 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property Development

Residential property project

The Group has been engaging in the property development since
November 2015 and has expanded its property development
business in October 2020 following completion of the acquisition
of the entire equity interest of Set Flourish Ventures Limited (the
“Set Flourish”), which through its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in the development and operation of a property project
(the “Yangzhong Project”), which is situated at No. 1 Yihe
Road, located at the east of Xinyang Road, south of Yihe Road,
Sanmao Street, the central business district of Yangzhong City,
Zhenjiang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, with a total site area
of approximately 53,339 square meters. Under the Yangzhong
Project, the Group plans to construct 12 buildings ranging
from 6 to 34 storeys, with a total estimated gross floor area of
approximately 173,457 square meters (exclusive of the basement
with an aggregate gross area of approximately 31,065 square
meters) for residential and commercial use, and 1,223 carparking
spaces in basement one and basement two.

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$1,002.7
million from the sales of 671 apartments and 14 shops with an
aggregate gross floor area of approximately 65,130 square meters
for FY2022, representing an increase of approximately 397.6% as
compared to approximately HK$201.5 million from the sales of 128
apartments, 4 shops and 3 clubhouses with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 14,622 square meters for FY2021.

Integrated industrial zone project

On 12 May 2021, Shanghai Baoxian succeeded in the bids of the
land use rights of the Land with a total site area of approximately
63,481 square meters through the listing-for-sale process held
by Shanghai Land Transaction Center at a consideration of
RMB171,400,000 (the “Consideration”). The Consideration was
financed by the Group’s unsecured borrowings from a substantial
shareholder and Hangzhou Huajianfeng Property Co., Ltd. which
held 5% equity interest of Shanghai Baoxian. On the same day,
Shanghai Baoxian entered into the confirmation with Shanghai
Land Transaction Center confirming the successful bidding of the
Land, and has entered into the state-owned construction land use
rights grant contract with Shanghai Fengxian District Planning and

REBEFEEB AR A Boil Healthcare Holdings Limited 7
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Natural Resource Bureau in relation to the acquisition of the land
use rights of the Land (the “Land Acquisition”). Completion of the
Land Acquisition took place on 2 July 2021.
Company’s announcement dated 12 May 2021 and circular dated
9 July 2021 for further details.

Please refer to the

The Group intends to develop the Land into an innovative hub and
integrated industrial zone for companies, researchers and individuals
in the medical equipment, biomedical and medical beauty industry,
and such integrated zone, with an area for commercial facilities,
aims to attract customers for talent residence, catering and leisure,
Chinese medical and healthcare, cosmetics sales, fitness and
sports, personal image consulting and other businesses. The Group
plans to construct 30 buildings ranging from 1 to 18 storeys, with
a total estimated gross floor area of approximately 160,090 square
meters for education, scientific research and design use, and
739 carparking spaces in the basement. The construction on the
Land has commenced in September 2021 and is expected to be
completed before April 2024.

The Board and the Group’s management will develop integrated
industrial zone as a principal business of the Group.

Healthcare Holiday Resort Development and Operation

The Group has developed a resort project located at No. 1
Sheyuan Road, Sheshan Town, Songjiang District, Shanghai of
the PRC.
approximately 150,602 square meters and a total gross floor area

It comprises a parcel of land with a total site area of

of approximately 77,213 square meters with ancillary facilities
which have been developed into clubhouse, villas, apartments, and
underground areas for providing health preservation, elderly care
and healthcare services for customers in leasing model to derive
rental and service fee income from its customers.

The above development consists of three phases. The construction
works of the first two phases have been completed, and the
leasable units have been leased out since November 2019, while
the third construction phase is currently in the review stage of
development planning. The sales and occupancy rate moved
slowly during FY2022 as impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic (the “Pandemic”).
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The Group indirectly holds 44% equity interest of Tengchong
Zongheng Volcanic Tourism Development Company Limited which
would be accounted for under the equity method as an associate.

It consists of nineteen parcels of land located in Ma Zhan Town,
Xinglong Village, Tengchong City, Yunnan Province of the PRC,
with a total site area of approximately 531,458 square meters and
a total gross floor area of approximately 515,132 square meters for
both residential and commercial uses. It is expected to generate
revenue from the sales of holiday products comprising holiday
resorts and operations of hotel, commercial and cultural tourism
facilities and other auxiliary items.

Foundation Piling

The Group undertakes foundation piling projects in both the public
sector and the private sector in Hong Kong. Due to the keen
competition in the foundation piling market, this segment did not
contribute any revenue for FY2022 (FY2021: approximately HK$0.6
million).

Facing the intense competition in the foundation piling market
and the adverse impact of the Pandemic, the Group has been
undergoing hardship and this segment has been recording loss
continuously for FY2022 and FY2021.

Securities Investment

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had equity instruments at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$0.3 million
(as at 31 March 2021: approximately HK$2.2 million). All these
investments were equity securities listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For FY2022, the Group recorded a fair value loss of equity
instruments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$1.9 million (FY2021: approximately HK$1.1 million).

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The development and spread of the Pandemic since early 2020
have adversely impacted global economic activities and market
sentiments. A series of precautionary and control measures have
been and continue to be implemented across the PRC and Hong
Kong.

(REfEFEZRR AR A F) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 9
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These events have directly impacted on the operations of the
Group including slowdown of pre-sale activities of properties and
temporarily stopped the healthcare holiday resort development and
operation business. The Pandemic continues to bring uncertainties
to the Group’s operating environment and may impact the Group’s
operations and financial position. Despite the unfavourable
market conditions and negative impacts brought about by the
Pandemic, the Group has continued to liaise with various parties
and actively identified and captured businesses opportunities with
growth potential, which brought to fruition the completion of Land
Acquisition during FY2022.

Given the uncertainties in the future developments of the
Pandemic, the Directors will continue to be cautious in monitoring
the Group’s on-going operations and financial performance, in
particular, the cashflow position of the Group, to ensure the Group
has sufficient working capital in maintaining its daily operations
while proactively seeking opportunities to optimize the portfolio
of its property development projects in the PRC. In battling the
Pandemic, the management team of the Group has taken prompt
action in protecting the Group’s employees, customers and other
stakeholders by putting in place various measures to prevent the
spread of the Pandemic, including temperature checks, social
distancing measures, work-from-home policies, etc. The Directors
are optimistic that the Pandemic will eventually be under full
control.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for FY2022 was approximately
HK$1,016.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$799.5 million or 368.9% as compared to the revenue of
approximately HK$216.7 million for FY2021.

The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in the
delivery of properties under the Yangzhong Project during FY2022.
The revenue from the property development business of the
Group increased by approximately HK$800.3 million for FY2022,
representing an increase of approximately 391.6% over FY2021.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for FY2022 was approximately
HK$108.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$89.4 million or 470.5% as compared to the gross profit of
approximately HK$19.0 million for FY2021.
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The increase in gross profit was mainly due to the increase in the
delivery of properties under the Yangzhong Project.

Other income and gains or (losses), net

The other income and losses, net of the Group for FY2022 were
approximately HK$1.5 million (FY2021: gain of approximately
HK$9.9 million), which mainly comprised loss on disposal of a
subsidiary.

The change from other income and net gains to net losses was
mainly due to the non-recurring gain on bargain purchase from the
acquisition of the Yangzhong Project and the non-recurring reversal
of impairment loss on loans and interest receivables in FY2021.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group, which were
mainly incurred in the property development business and the
healthcare holiday resort development and operation business,
increased from approximately HK$15.7 million for FY2021 to
approximately HK$19.4 million for FY2022. The increase was mainly
due to the increased advertising costs and marketing staff costs
following the enlarged sales in property development business.

THRHEMBEAR Administrative and other expenses
—E_CFE —E-—F
FY2022 FY2021
FET FABT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZE RN & Auditor’s remuneration 1,600 2,467
WE W% - BERZE Depreciation — property, plant and equipment 21,376 19,485
TE—EREEE Depreciation — right-of-use assets 764 191
= = 7 o Directors’ remuneration 1,100 1,100
SN 2= B SRR Foreign exchange differences, net 8,358 11,041
FERRBEEER Legal and professional fee 4,918 9,441
EEEBRARTHRAY Management charges and administrative expenses 4,004 3,308
PN FA Office supplies 2,620 3,701
H M FiIE Other taxes 407 1,548
HeE K= Rent and rates 271 280
BT Staff costs 11,784 14,713
ERERBAYS Travelling and transportation expenses 2,075 2,304
Hth Others 389 123
59,666 69,702
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The administrative and other expenses of the Group for FY2022
were approximately HK$59.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$10.0 million from approximately HK$69.7 million
for FY2021. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in staff
costs as a result of the decrease in number of employees and the
decrease in legal and professional fee incurred in FY2021 in relation
to the acquisition of Set Flourish.

Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) on property,
plant and equipment

The impairment loss property, plant and equipment of the Group
for FY2022 was approximately RMB60.8 million (2021:
of impairment loss of approximately HK$4.6 million) was mainly

reversal

attributed to the impairment provision of leasehold land and
buildings.

During FY2022, in light of the lower-than-expected occupancy
rate for the healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai, as well as the
potential disruptions and the intensive introduction of regulations
in the real estate market in mainland China, the management
identified impairment indicators of leasehold land and buildings in
respect of the healthcare holiday resort.

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the leasehold
land and buildings allocated to the respective cash-generating unit
(the “CGU”) and as a result the carrying amount of these property,
plant and equipment was written down to their recoverable
amounts of approximately HK$460.1 million in the segment
of healthcare holiday resort development and operation. The
recoverable amounts of CGU in relation to healthcare holiday resort
development and operation was determined based on fair value
less costs to disposal using direct comparison method. Such fair
values were arrived at by a valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer at the end of the reporting period. There were
no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for FY2022 were approximately
HK$121.9 million, which remained stable as compared with
approximately HK$122.6 million for FY2021.
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Income tax (expense)/credit

The income tax expense of the Group was approximately HK$11.0
million for FY2022 as compared to the income tax credit of
approximately HK$5.1 million for FY2021. The change from tax
credit to tax expense was mainly due to the increase in the gross
profit resulting in more tax expense being recognised.

Net loss
The net loss of the Group was approximately HK$755.7 million
for FY2022 as compared to approximately HK$175.5 million for
Fy2021.

The significant increase in net loss for FY2022 was mainly due to (i)
the fair value loss on investment properties as a result of the lower-
then-expected occupancy rate and adverse market conditions of
the PRC real estate market (due to the adverse impact caused
by the outbreak of the Pandemic and the weakened demand of
potential home-buying customers as a result of to deterioration
of their overall financial condition brought by the uncertain global
macro-economic environment); and (i) the increase in income tax
and land appreciation tax provided as a result of the increase in
delivery of properties.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Property Development and Healthcare Holiday Resort
Development and Operation

Following the outbreak of the Pandemic, economic development
has been hampered by pandemic prevention and control measures.
The prospects for global economic recovery are uncertain.
The crisis may have a material impact on the Group’s financial
results and development plan. The management of the Company
foresees that the remaining of 2022 will be full of challenges. In
terms of housing control policies, the central government of the
PRC maintained the stability of property market and adjustment
measures will be adopted to regulate the short-term overheating
of real estate investments, which in turn is conducive to achieving
long-term control objectives of “housing is for living, not for
speculation” and “stabilising land prices, housing prices and
expectations”, and maintaining market expectations.

REEFEA AR A F) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 13
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Integrated industrial zone project

In line with the vigorous development trend of domestic strategic
emerging industries, and taking into account the resources and
advantages that the Company’s substantial shareholder, Boill
Holding, has cultivated and accumulated over the years, which
can be used to support the development of the Group, the Group
has established the development strategy for the development,
construction, operation and investment in integrated industrial
zones focusing on biomedicine and artificial intelligence.

In respect of the Shanghai Fengxian Boill e Pharmaceutical Valley,
the Group will further explore the integrated industrial zones
(biomedicine + artificial intelligence) in the Yangtze River Delta,
and provide target enterprise customers with one-stop integrated
services from construction carrier, industrial supporting operation,
fund investment to capital market exit. Meanwhile, with capital and
assets as the link, the Group will seize opportunity to enter the
high-growth segment of strategic emerging industries.

In addition, in terms of market positioning, product planning and
design, as well as asset-light services such as park investment and
operation of the Group’s own integrated industrial zone projects,
the Group will actively expand and develop the asset-light service
business of integrated industrial zones, including market-oriented
undertaking of the asset-light service business of integrated
industrial zones from state-owned enterprises and other private
enterprises.

In the future, with the support of Boill Holding, which was rated
as the top 20 industry city operators in Shanghai and the top
50 national industry city operators, the Group will follow the
development trend and opportunities of market demand, build
industrial operation service capabilities through win-win cooperation,
and actively cultivate and develop the asset-light service business
of integrated industrial zones. Through win-win cooperation, the
Group will build system capabilities in fund operation and capital
operation, and is confident to develop into an industry integration
service operator with a first-class brand in the Yangtze River Delta
of China.
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Foundation Piling

The performance of the foundation industry has still been negatively
affected by the intense competition in the market. The income from
this segment will remain low and continue to suffer losses. The
Board will continue to review the foundation piling business and the
Group will continue to explore business opportunities to minimise
the losses from the foundation piling business and to review
various alternatives that are in the best interest of the Group and
the Shareholders.

Securities Investment

The Board understands that the performance of the investments in
securities may be affected by the degree of volatility in the Hong
Kong stock market and will be subject to other external factors.
The Group will continuously evaluate the performance of the
existing investment portfolio and will consider to sell the existing
listed securities gradually based on the market situation and utilise
the proceeds from the disposal for other future business.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group
consisted of a loan from a related company of approximately
HK$24.0 million (as at 31 March 2021: approximately HK$24.0
million) and borrowings of approximately HK$1,541.0 million (as
at 31 March 2021: approximately HK$800.2 million). The Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings of approximately HK$807.0 million were
repayable on demand and bearing interests at fixed rate ranging
from 5% to 15% per annum (FY2021: at fixed rate ranging from 5%
to 15% per annum).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s borrowings of approximately
HK$1,541.0 million (as at 31 March 2021: approximately HK$800.2
million) were secured by (i) investment properties with carrying
value of approximately HK$1,582.7 million; (i) leasehold land and
buildings with carrying value of approximately HK$460.1 million; (iii)
properties under development with carrying value of approximately
HK$548.7 million; (iv) personal guarantee given by each of Mr. Qiu
Dongfang (“Mr. Qiu”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and his spouse, Ms. Huang Jian (“Ms. Huang”), and corporate
guarantees provided by the related companies controlled by Mr.
Qiu; (v) share of an associate and interest in certain subsidiaries
held by the Group; and (vi) pledge of 710,600,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) held by the related companies
controlled by Mr. Qiu.

REfEFEZRR AR A R) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 15
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Save as disclosed above, the Group did not pledge any assets
to bank or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity as at 31 March 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$1,056.7 million (as at 31 March 2021:
approximately HK$1,138.0 million) and cash and bank deposits
(excluding restricted bank deposits) of approximately HK$46.5
million (as at 31 March 2021: approximately HK$131.3 million).

As at 31 March 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group (defined
as total interest-bearing borrowings divided by the Group’s total
equity) was 623.1% (as at 31 March 2021: 86.5%).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future,
based on the cash flow projections of the Group covering one year
period from the date of approval for issue of these consolidated
financial statements (the “Forecast Period”) after taking into
account the following considerations:

(i) The availability of undrawn credit facilities as at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements of: and

(@ RMB900,000,000 as per a revised loan credit facility
(the “Facility”) entered into in June 2021, that was
originally entered into by the Company in June 2019 with
its controlling shareholder (a then related party) and its
beneficial owner regarding the provision of a loan facility
amounting to RMB900,000,000. The Facility is unsecured,
interest bearing at 5% per annum and repayable within a
period of twenty-four months from drawdown date. The
Group had not drawn down any loan from the Facility up
to the date of approval for issue of these consolidated
financial statements; and

(b) RMB136,377,000 (approximately HK$168,187,000) for
the construction of the integrated industrial zone project
located in the PRC;
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An extension in June 2022 to August 2023 of the borrowing
of RMB400,000,000 (approximately HK$493,300,000) that
had matured and was repayable on demand as at 31 March
2022;

Undertakings from related parties for amounts due to them
amounting to HK$884,925,000 as at 31 March 2022 that
they will not demand the Group for repayment until the Group
is in the position to repay;

Pre-sales and sales proceeds from properties located in the
PRC and the estimated revenue based on actual performance
since its future possible development as well as the expected
business development over the Forecast Period. The realisation
of the forecasted sales and pre-sales depends upon the
development of the Pandemic and quarantine measures
implemented by the PRC government;

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group is negotiating with potential investor(s)
for possible disposal of certain non-current assets during the
Forecast Period; and

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, an independent third party agreed to provide
a credit facility of RMB300,000,000 to the Group over the
Forecast Period, which is interest bearing at 13% per annum,
repayable within two years from the drawdown date. The
facility is secured by 95% equity interest in Shanghai Baoxian
(a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), and is
guaranteed by a related party. As at the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Group had not
drawn down any loan from such credit facility.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The majority of the Group’s assets and cash flows were
denominated in RMB, but major parts of the Group’s interest-
bearing borrowing were denominated in US dollar. During FY2022,
the steady appreciation of RMB against US dollar or HK$ had a
positive effect on translation as the reporting currency of the Group
was HK$. Apart from that, the management of the Company
viewed that the change in exchange rate of RMB against foreign
currencies had significant impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance during FY2022 given that the functional currency
of the Group was HK$. During FY2022, the Group did not engage
in any hedging activities and the Group has no intention to carry
out any hedging activities in the near future. The management of
the Group will continue to closely monitor the foreign currency
market and consider carrying out hedging activities when
necessary.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group had
no capital commitments in respect of the acquisition cost of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset under property
development business, and healthcare holiday resort development
and operation business.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
The Group did not hold any significant investments during FY2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the Land Acquisition as disclosed in this report, there
was no other material acquisition or disposal of any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during FY2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at the date of this report, the Board had not authorised any
plans for material investments or additions of capital assets.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2022.

EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY
The Group had a total of 104 employees as at 31 March 2022, of
which 94 employees worked in the PRC and 10 worked in Hong
Kong. Total employee costs for FY2022 amounted to approximately
HK$30.4 million (FY2021: approximately HK$27.8 million).

Employee remuneration packages are maintained at competitive
levels and employees are rewarded through the Group’s salary
and bonus system. The Group provides adequate job training to
employees to equip them with practical knowledge and skills.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
22 September 2013 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Board may
grant options to Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), employees of the Company
and any of its subsidiaries and associated companies, to subscribe
for Shares. During FY2022, no options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for FY2022 (FY2021: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or the
laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2021.

REEFEA AR A 8] Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 19
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On 31 December 2021, Boill International Co. Limited (“Boill
International”) and Liyao Investment Limited (“Liyao”), pledged
450,600,000 and 260,000,000 Shares (collectively, the “Pledged
Shares”) in favour of China Huarong International Holdings Limited
(the “Lender”) as security for a facility provided by the Lender to
the Company, as borrower, with an outstanding principal amount
of USD39,500,000. The Pledged Shares represent approximately
52.33% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

Boill International is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
wholly-owned by Boill Holding, which in turn is held as to 97.64%
and 2.36% by Mr. Qiu and Ms. Huang, respectively. Liyao is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-
owned by Mr. Qiu. Accordingly, Mr. Qiu is deemed to be interested
in the 450,600,000 Shares held by Boill International and the
260,000,000 Shares held by Liyao. As at the date of this report,
Mr. Qiu has an interest of approximately 52.33% in the total issued
Shares.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure
that has taken place subsequent to 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2022.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dai Dong Xing (“Mr. Dai”), aged 59, was appointed as the
chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and an executive Director
with effect from 14 August 2017. Mr. Dai holds a degree in a silk
engineering from Zhejiang Silk Technology College (currently known
as Zhejiang Sci-tech University). He has extensive experience in
property operation and management. Mr. Dai joined Boill Holding
in 1999 and held various positions including vice president for the
Boill Holding and manager, general manager and president for
various subsidiaries of Boill Holding during the period from 1999
to 2016. Prior to joining the Boill Holding, he held managerial
positions as technician, weaving workshop officer, deputy director
and director of China Ningbo Xiangshan Silk Factory from 1983 to
1999.

Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 45, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 14 August 2017. Mr. Zhang
holds a business administration diploma from China University of
Geosciences and a business administration degree from Southwest
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years
of experience in real estate industry and has extensive experience
in construction and management of real estate development.
He is currently the general manager of Nanchang Shenbiao Real
Estate Development Co., Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Boill Holding Group. He joined Boill Holding in 1994 and served
as deputy manager, manager and general manager for various
subsidiaries of Boill Holding during the period from 1994 to 2016.
Mr. Zhang has been a director for various subsidiaries of Baill
Holding since 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 55, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director with effect from 6 March 2015. He has
over 20 years of experience in financial management, accounting
and auditing fields.
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Mr. Chui has been appointed as an executive director of Yuk Wing
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1536) since 4 June 2021 and
a non-executive director of Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1718) since 7 January 2021, both being companies whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and an executive director
of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock
code: 8085, the securities of which had been listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange until 14 September 2020) since 30 November
2009.

Mr. Chui had been an independent non-executive director of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 17 March
2010 to 16 March 2016, an executive director of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) from 5 October
2005 to 30 June 2016 and a non-executive director of DeTai New
Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559) from 1 December 2015 to
19 March 2020.

Mr. Chui was an executive director of Ming Lam Holdings Limited
(“Ming Lam Hidgs”) (stock code: 1106) from 17 July 2019 to 14
August 2020. Mr. Chui was informed that Ming Lam Hldgs was
ordered to be wound up by the High Court of Hong Kong on 31
August 2020.

Mr. Chui was a non-executive director of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited (“HCGH”) (stock code: 404) from 23 May 2015
to 29 March 2019 whose securities were listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange until 31 December 2019. HCGH was
wound up by an order of the Supreme Court of Bermuda dated
20 January 2020. On 11 April 2022, the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange issued a statement in which, among other, certain
former members of the board of HCGH have been criticized, details
of which in respect of Mr. Chui (as a former non-executive director
of such company) are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 19 April 2022.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhe (“Mr. Wang”), aged 61, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 14
August 2017. He graduated from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economic with a master’s degree in Business
Administration. He is an economist and currently the secretary
general for Association of Shanghai Internet Financial Industry,
the vice chairman for Shanghai Financial Association and external
supervisor of China Everbright Bank Company Limited (stock
code: 6818). Since September 1985, Mr. Wang has served as the
deputy section chief for the General Office of the People’s Bank
of China, manager and general manager for the Shenzhen Branch
of China Gold Coin Incorporation, vice president for the Shenzhen
Branch of China CITIC Bank, deputy general manager for China
Gold Coin Incorporation, general manager, director-general and
party secretary for Shanghai Gold Exchange and the independent
director of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. (a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600000).

Mr. Xu Liang Wei (“Mr. Xu”), aged 68, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 14 August
2017. He graduated from the Department of Chinese Language
and Literature, Shanghai Television University (currently known
as Shanghai Open University) and obtained a master’s degree in
Business Administration from Fudan University. He joined Shanghai
Academy of Spaceflight Technology (“SAST”) in 1991 and held
various positions as a deputy director, director of general office
and assistant to academy general. During the period from 1995
to 1998, he served as a vice president of Shanghai Aerospace
Corporation. In 2000, He was promoted to a deputy academy
general of SAST, and also served as the chairman and president of
Shanghai Aerospace Industrial Co., Ltd., the chairman of Shanghai
Instrument Company Limited and Shanghai Aerospace Energy Co.,
Ltd. From 2011 to 2015, he served as a consultant of SAST and
a deputy director of the preparation group of China Academy of
Launch Vehicle Technology Company Limited. Mr. Xu has ample
experience in corporate administration and management. From
24 August 2016 to 16 April 2020, he served as a non-executive
director of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 31).
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Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy (“Mr. Chan”), aged 48, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2017. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with an Honours Degree with major in Accounting.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. He is the financial controller,
company secretary, and one of the authorised representatives
of Changyou Alliance Group Limited (stock code 1039). He had
worked in South China Media Group for 15 years from December
1999 to May 2015 and his latest position was the deputy financial
controller. He had worked in South China Assets Holdings
Limited (formerly named as South China Land Limited and Capital
Publications Limited, stock code 8155) from January 2004 to June
2008 as the qualified accountant and company secretary.

DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

Ms. Yu Yixing (“Ms. Yu”), aged 36, has been appointed as
the deputy general manager of the Company with effect from
1 November 2019. Ms. Yu is responsible for the operation and
management of the Company. Being authorised by the Board,
she is responsible for the strategic development and business,
organising a management team and reporting to the Board from
time to time. She has over 10 years of working experience in
financial investment. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Yu has
successively worked at Credit Suisse Hong Kong Ltd. and Bank
of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch. Since February
2017, Ms. Yu has joined Boaill International as the deputy general
manager, who is responsible for the investment and financing
business of the fund segment. Ms. Yu graduated from Shanghai
Tongji University with a bachelor degree in Finance and obtained a
master’s degree in Finance from Imperial College London.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Kam Ming (“Mr. Ng”), aged 37, has been appointed
as the financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 1 August 2019.
Mr. Ng is responsible for advising on strategic development
and corporate governance from the financial perspective of the
Company. Mr. Ng has over 10 years of experience in auditing and
accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng had worked for
Ernst & Young providing assurance services from 2015 to 2018.
Mr. Ng graduated from The Open University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor degree in Accounting and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INTRODUCTION

Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are pleased to present this
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report. Prepared
in accordance with the requirements set forth in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), this report presents the major ESG policies, initiatives and
performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 (the
“ESG Reporting Year”).

STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

The year that just passed has been an extraordinary one as
our economy and society were impacted with major regulatory
reforms, heightened geopolitical tensions and the novel coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) pandemic. Alongside with the hotly debated topic
— climate change, these forces have been fundamentally altering
the business landscape. Still, the Group remains resilient amidst
these challenging times with sound risk management and strong
corporate governance.

To further integrate the principle of sustainability into our business
development strategy, our Board is responsible for the evaluation,
prioritization and management of ESG-related issues. This year is a
successful year as the Group has reduced the overall greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions through effective energy conservation
measures and the concerted efforts of our staff across different
business units. As a green corporation, the Group will continue
encouraging employees to enhance the energy conservation
measures and reduce electricity consumption to further alleviate
GHG emissions in the future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has intensified the initiative to manage climate-related
risk, which is instrumental for the Group’s sustainable business
development. In order to contribute to China’s and Hong Kong's
goal to develop into a net-zero economy, the Group has devised
a green environmental strategy that spans across all the business
segments. The incorporation of green measures into key metrics
has allowed the Group to gauge the effectiveness of its current
environmental policies and to identify areas for improvements. The
Group also works closely with partners and other stakeholders to
influence them to become more environmentally friendly.

Going forward, the Group will strive to reduce its carbon footprint
with the implementation of other internal ESG controls and
adoption of ESG risk management measures. In parallel, the Group
will lay more stress on the theme of diversity in the workforce.

ESG REPORTING BOUNDARY

The ESG reporting boundary of this ESG Report shall cover the
operational activities of the Group. The Group is principally engaged
in property development, healthcare holiday resort development
and operation, foundation piling, and investment securities. Our
presentation covers the operation in Hong Kong and the PRC.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Our approach to stakeholder engagement is designed to help
define our current and future sustainability strategies by ensuring
our stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations are fully
understood.

The Group will continue effective communications with our key
stakeholder groups in various ways in order to address their
concerns and feedback timely. We believe that the interests of
all stakeholders must be taken into account in order to maintain
the long-term relationships with our shareholders and investors,
employees, customers, suppliers, government authorities and
the public community. The areas of concerns considered by the
stakeholders are listed below:
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Major Stakeholders
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Major Communication Channels
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Major Concerns
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Shareholders and Investors
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Employees
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Customers

aVid

Suppliers
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Community and Society
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Government and supervisory
institutions
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e Annual, interim and quarterly reports

e Annual general meetings

e Corporate announcements and circulars
e Press releases

o XEELBNE

o BEMEHH KRB

o BETHHI

o BEEH

e Business meetings and briefings

e Performance appraisals and evaluations
e Staff trainings

e Team building activities

o BRI FER

o T M

e Customer complaint hotlines

¢ Meetings and correspondences
s REEER

e B i BT  REER
e Procurement meetings

e Phone calls, conferences, emails, site visits
s RERBREH

o tEHF)

» ESGH S

e Charitable and donation activities
e Community interactions

e ESG reporting

o REVE R RBUR

o BT

o EEKE

o HIBGRE

e Major meetings and policies

e Consultations

e |nformation disclosures

e |nstitutional visits

o BFIBES
o UBREME
o EEBRELERE

e Profitability

¢ Financial stability

e Information disclosure and
transparency

s BEBRIEIIKE

o IREN AR A

o BENLEHITIERIE

o EAABBRERZZM

e Career development and training
opportunities

e Compensation and benefits

e Health & safety work environment

e Personal data protection and
security

o FLEE{RE

o BEEm MRS

e Privacy protection

e Quality products and services

e NELE

o W

e Cooperation on fair terms

e Integrity

o (MEINEREZEH

o PEHEEMF

e Community investment and
charitable activities

e Corporate social responsibilities

- BHSE

o (REER

o IRIFIRE

e Compliance operation
e Corporate governance
e Environmental protection
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Quantitative: In accordance with the “key performance indicators”
of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, the Group disclosed quantitative indicators in the
“environment” category. Quantitative indicators of the “society”
category were disclosed to the greatest extent, and will be fully
disclosed in the future after the statistical process is gradually
optimized.

Balance: This report strives to achieve objective, fair and truthful
disclosure and reflection of the Group’s achievements and
practices in the environment and social dimensions in FY2022, and
also the dilemmas encountered and improvement measures with a
sense of responsibility.

Consistency: This report follows a consistent range of statistics and
the statistics scope of FY2022 corresponds with that of FY2021.

Materiality: ESG issues that will affect a stakeholder or an investor’s

judgement shall be disclosed. This will be determined by the Board

and through the materiality assessment.
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ESG Reporting Guide

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Following the discussion with our senior management and
operational staff, we have confirmed the same ESG issues
relevant to the Group. The identified issues have been assessed
by considering their importance to our stakeholders as well as the
Group. The ESG issues considered to be material are listed below:

B R A

Areas of concerns

A BEiE

A. Environmental

A1 BERY)

A1 Emissions

A2 BIR(ER

A2 Use of resources

A3 IRIE R RAEIR

A3 The environment and natural resources
A4 BIREL

A4 Climate change

B. #&

B. Social

B1 [Ef&

B1 Employment

B2 @EER e

B2 Health and safety

B3 & KIEFI

B3 Development and training
B4 & T %8|

B4 Labour standards

B5 HEHEE R

B5 Supply chain management
B6 EmAE

B6 Product responsibility

B7 k&5

B7 Anti-corruption

B8 it B E

B8 Community investment
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FREERR

Carbon emissions

B RIKER

Electricity and water consumption

WA IRIR BN

Measures in reducing environmental impact
B E R KA AR

Physical risk and transition risk

BITEY

LLabour practices

TYESMERERZ S

Workplace health and safety

8 TER &IE

Staff development and training

B 1EZE T K45 T

Anti-child and forced labour

HrEmER

Supplier management

EmERBEE  EE2RE  FPRE  cHRERERRE

Product and service responsibility, quality assurance, customer
service, complaint handling and feedback

REFBER

Anti-corruption policy

ot

Community involvement
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

a.

Policy

The Group aims to generate revenue for investors but
not at the expense of the environment. Our senior
management is dedicated to cultivating a green,
healthy and safe culture through the joint efforts of all
staff, and to promoting an environmental, healthy and
safe culture in the workplace in order to:

° ensure compliance with all applicable
legislations;
° reduce quantities of waste and pollutants

emitted into the sea, land and atmosphere;

° promote awareness on environmental
protection and safety among staff through
training, workshops and programmes;

o provide a green, healthy and safe workspace
for staff, visitors and contractors;

o optimise energy use efficiency; and
° improve performance and environmental
protection and safety.

Due to the nature and the regional coverage of
the Group’s business, it is important to manage
the environmental impacts attributable to its local
operational activities to minimise these impacts if
possible. Identified environmental issues the Group
had involved in during the ESG Reporting Year were
mainly related to its consumption of electricity, water,
petroleum, paper and natural gas.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws that have
Significant Impact

The Group’s business involves property development
and construction piling, and thus causes certain
impacts on the environment. The Group manages
air, water, or land impact carefully, and during the
ESG Reporting Year, the Group is unaware of any
non-compliance with relevant Hong Kong and PRC
environmental laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC ({F#ZEARKEMBEIRIFIRZEL)), the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC ({#
#EARLMBE AR5 EE%)), the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ({(FF#EAR
HMBEAK5Z87%)), the Prevention and Control
of Solid Waste Pollution of the PRC ({H#E A R
N = [E B8 R )5 2RI VAYE D), the Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
358 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The measures we have taken to ensure our
compliance with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations in the PRC include (i) strictly
supervising the process of construction through the
supervision unit and (i) applying for review by the
relevant government authorities in a timely manner
after the project is completed.

In addition, the Group’s internal environmental
protection awareness programme consistently
reminds and encourages the Group’s employees and
clients to improve on environmental performance
together.
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Al.

Emissions

Air Emission (KPI A1.1)

The Group has taken the initiative to examine the
issue of air emission across its operation. We
outsource the construction operation to the relevant
partnering company and work diligently with them
to ensure the operation complied with the relevant
air emission laws and regulations, such as the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of
the PRC (R ZE AR HEMBI KRS LP778/5)).

The Group will continue monitoring its operation
to ensure its air emission keeps compliant with all
relevant laws and regulations.

In the Group’s production and operating activities,
the air pollutants emitted primarily consist of Nitrogen
Oxide (NOx), Sulphur Oxide (SOx) and Particulate
Matters (PM) from the burning of fossil fuels and
business use vehicle exhausts. GHG emission data
are calculated with reference to, including but not
limited to, the reporting requirements of “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the

Stock Exchange.

During the ESG Reporting Year and the previous
reporting year, the Group emitted the following
quantities of air emissions and greenhouse gas

emissions:
BN ZBIRE CERC-EE
ZRIIRE CECBE O HOPASK BE R
Percentage

Increase (+) or FY2022 FY2021

HHNES(ER) Type of Emissions (unit) FY2022 FY2021 Decrease () *Intensity “Intenstty

80T NOx (kg) 2 6 -63% <0.01 0.03

RELN(TR) §0x (kg) d 1 -85% <0.01 Q01

BIENN(TR) PM (kg) < < nfa <0.01 <0.01

EECE(xEE(EE—)(®)  Direct COz (Scope 1) (Tonnes) 9 71 87% 0.01 033

BE-SREE(EE=)(E) Indirect COz (Scope 2) (Tonnes) 3 571 -34% 0.42 264

HEE-G(REE(EE=)(M) *Indirect COz (Scope 3) (Tonnes) <1 6 -03% <0.01 003
3 RENEGEESTHHE @B The intensities are calculated on the basis of the amount of

i revenue per million Hong Kong dollars.
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Greenhouse Gas Emission (KPI A1.2)

In addition to the efforts made in monitoring air
pollutant emission, the Group performs careful
assessment on its overall carbon footprint and
explores measures to reduce its carbon emission.
The Group estimated its carbon dioxide equivalent
(CO,¢) for the ESG Reporting Year through calculation
with relevant methodology, and with data available
on diesel, electricity, natural gas and petroleum
consumption and emission factor from invoices and
references to third parties documents (information
related to electricity consumption and carbon
intensity factor that are available on the electricity bill
and the sustainability report from electricity provider
respectively).

In summary, the carbon footprint of the Group in the
ESG Reporting Year is approximately 387 tonnes
of CO,e (FY2021: approximately 648 tonnes), and
the carbon footprint of the ESG Reporting Year
is 40% less than the previous reporting year. The
Group looks to perform analysis on the consolidated
figures, and to work with employees and external
stakeholders on minimising carbon footprint.

Results Achieved on Mitigating Emission (KPI
A1.5)

Through internal staff training and closely monitoring
on air emission and greenhouse gas emission, the
environmental awareness among staff have been
strengthened in the operation process.

The primary reason for the decrease in air emission
and greenhouse gas emission was that the sale of
properties was completed in Yueyang during the ESG
Reporting Year, which led to a decrease in petrol,
electricity and water consumption and consequently
in air emission and greenhouse gas emission. With
the aim of further developing emission reduction
targets in the future, the Group target to reduce
the emission level and achieve Hong Kong net zero
emission goal. The Group will continue assessing and
monitoring the GHG emissions and other relevant
environmental data regularly.
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Waste Management (KPIl A1.3) (KPI A1.4) (KPI
A1.6)

With the aim of achieving Hong Kong net zero
emission goal in the future, the Group strives to
reduce waste generated in its operation activities.
Waste management guidelines and procedures are in
place in all areas of its production where hazardous
and non-hazardous waste are generated. To ensure
all wastes are properly treated, the Group specifies
separate treatments and procedures for different
categories of wastes generated from different
business activities.

Non-hazardous wastes as a result of the Group’s
operation were mainly produced from construction
and daily activities. In the ESG Reporting Year, The
Group did not generate a significant amount of
hazardous wastes, while no non-hazardous waste
was recorded generated from the Group’s activities
(FY2021 : 90m?).

In summary, the Group will continue devoting effort
to waste management, ensuring the safety of its
employees and the compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations. During the ESG Reporting
Year, there was no major accident encountered in
the Group’s operation, and the Group had been
complying with all applicable waste related Hong
Kong and PRC laws and regulations. The Group will
continue monitoring closely and working diligently to
ensure the proper treatment of hazardous waste in
the future.
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A2.

Use of Resources

As an environmentally friendly company, the Group
actively promotes the culture of “Green Office”
among its staff, and maintains an environmentally
friendly and efficient consumption practice throughout
the operation. Various measures have been adopted
to reduce energy and other resources use, minimise
wastes and increase recycling, and promote environmental
protection in its supply chain and workplace. Initiatives
such as energy conservation and efficiency policy,

NERME - FIBER T - and green practices in offices were successfully
implemented throughout the ESG Reporting Year, the
details of which are set out below.

BIERXAREIR The Environment and Natural Resources

RBEBARREBFZHEREE - With the aim of achieving Hong Kong net zero

$’EIEHEI?§3E%%9E?’S§/F‘JZ emission goal in the future, the Group understands

HRFEREATE - AEECS
BBRBNERERTE - L

the consumption of a fair amount of natural resources
may lead to significant impact on the environment,

EHREMEFA TN @A and our Group has implemented a diligent resource
management programme, and the primary focus in
the operation are the followings:

Z 1 ER(KPI A2.3) Electricity (KPI A2.3)

REBIEEMAITE  AEE
RIETSAEGERREARE
BE o RPCH LS - A

In line with its “Green Office” directive, the Group
actively promotes the concept of smart usage of
electricity in its premises. Notices on energy saving

REEIMNSEEHR HEMEE are issued to raise the awareness of the staff on
MR ERBE A PE R 1E ¢ energy conservation. Other initiatives implemented on
energy saving are the followings:

. BHEFAREAHERRX . Adjusting air conditioners’ temperature setting
25.5/€ to 25.5 T ;

. A & R ) e T TR e BA . Switching off all electronic devices during
FIEEF&iE lunch hours and when leaving office;

J 7% 8% %kﬁﬁﬁiﬁ ALEDRR . Replacing fluorescent tubes with LED lighting
HELG systems;

J B E AR RN SE . Setting computers on energy saving modes,
P54 and others; and

. ZERAEFER LB L
g% BRTLENLE -
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° Encourage teleconferences and internet-
meeting practices to avoid unnecessary
business travel.
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RERE

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group consumed
a total of 468,916 kWh of electricity (FY2021:
679,958 kWh) and consumed no diesel (FY2021: Nil).
For electricity consumption, the total amount was
approximately 31% less than the previous reporting
year. For diesel consumption, the total amount
was the same as the previous reporting year. For
petroleum, the total amount was 87% less than the
previous reporting year. For natural gas, the total
amount was 337% more than the previous reporting

year.

Water (KPI A2.4)
The Group did not have any significant issue on
sourcing water for operation.

In addition to its effort into energy conservation, the
Group has been working with its employees on water
conservation measures. With the aim of achieving
Hong Kong net zero emission goal in the future,
notices are displayed to remind the staff to:

o Control water flow at the tap to avoid over
usage;

o Turn off the tap when applying soap;

o Avoid unnecessary flushes;

o Conduct regular maintenance of water taps;
and

o Avoid wasting water in upflow water dispensers.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the total water
consumption was 93% less than the previous
reporting year, which again demonstrates the
effectiveness of our conservation measures and
practices.

In summary, a consolidated data table on the

Group’s resource consumption for the ESG Reporting
Year and the previous reporting year is set out below:
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BNk ZB--HE —S--HF

ZECCHE —E--BE ROHBEAR BE BR
Percentage

Increase (+) or FY2022 FY2021

HHEE (Bf) Consumption item (unit) FY2022 FY2021  Decrease () *Intensity “Intensity
BEE(TRE) Electricity Consumption (KWH) 468,916 679,958 -31% 0.52 3.81
BRE(LFX) Water Consumption (m‘) 703 9,867 -93% 0.52 0.06
Seoh - AR (F) Diesel — Machine Use (L) 0 0 n/a n/a n/a
AAR(LFR) Natural Gas (m?) 9,754 2,233 337% 0.01 0.01
Bl(H) Petroleum (L) 3,504 26,492 -87% <0.01 0.15

EUAE—FHETHHE The intensities are calculated on the basis of the amount of
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revenue per thousand Hong Kong dollars.

GHG emission data are calculated with reference
to, including but not limited to, the reporting
requirements of “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. The Group will
continue to monitor resource consumption throughout
its operation. Further enhancement initiatives on
efficient use of energy and water will be implemented
as and when appropriate. (KPI A2.1)(KPI A2.2)

Packaging Material for Finished Products and Use
of Other Resources (KPI A2.5)

Owing to our business nature, there are minimal
packaging materials involved in the construction sites
of the Group, whereby finished products are mainly
building construction items. In other operations of
the Group, packaging materials for finished products
do not pose a significant impact. In sourcing our
packaging materials in our other operations, the
Group abides by the criteria that they must fit our
purpose of sourcing them in the first place and
meet our requirements of their configurations. Non-
toxicity and environmental friendliness are in fact our
keen concern. These issues are under the constant
attention and review of the various end users of
the Group. Due to the insignificance of packaging
material used in the operations of the Group, the key
performance indicator A2.5 as set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide is not applicable to the Group.
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A4.

Paper Consumption (KPI A3.1)

In the context of today’s complex construction
industry, it is inevitable to use paper due to the
nature of works, whereby we need to print drawings,
details, etc. for site supervision purposes. In addition,
daily hardcopies of documents need to be kept
on site, such as daily tool box meeting records,
inspection forms, progress reports and claims, etc.
The Company keeps a record of the amount of
papers used. For cost saving and environmental
protection purposes, the Company has encouraged
the employees to reduce the use of paper by
electronic means. During the ESG Reporting Year,
the Group used a total of 0.1 ton of paper, same as
the previous reporting year, which was mainly due to
the decrease in the number of building construction
projects. The intensity of paper used in terms of
million Hong Kong dollars of revenue generated
during the ESG Reporting Year was 0.000112, which
was less than 0.0004 of the previous reporting year.

To strengthen the Group’s management of resources
consumption, the Group intends to create a
paperless working environment by reducing paper
usage, facilitating information sharing via online
networks, and simplifying documentation procedures.
In addition, employees are recommended to use
duplex printing and copying, which has become
a norm within the Group. Paper consumption is
reduced.

Climate Change

As COP26 (2021 United Nations Climate Change
Conference of the Parties) has laid out the new
building blocks to accelerate the implementation of
the Paris Agreement, every nation has stepped up
and advanced towards a carbon neutral economy
to address climate threats. Similarly, the Group has
been assessing the climate related risk as well as
opportunities, and has allocated sufficient resources
to mitigate any potential negative impact. The
Group’s approach to address climate threats covers
two main dimensions, namely, physical risk and the
transition risk, which will be further elaborated in the
section below.
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Physical risk

Acute: Acute physical risk is event-driven which
encompasses typhoons, floods and cyclones. These
events may damage the physical assets of the Group.
Employees may also be unable to meet clients or
travel to office in severe weather events. Temporary
business disruption may take place on such
occasions. Ultimately, this may affect the relationship
of the Group and clients. Contingency plans have
been developed to mitigate the potential impact of
various weather events to lower the resilient risk.

Chronic: The changes in weather patterns such as
the rise in the average temperature or the increase
in precipitation, may affect transportation, electricity,
water and internet. To mitigate the relevant risk, the
Group has established contingency measures that
encompasses a variety of weather-related events to
minimise the impact to its business operation brought
on by climate-related risk.

Transition risk

Policy and legal risk: At the United Nations General
Assembly in 2020, President Xi Jinping announced
that the PRC will strive to achieve carbon neutrality
by 2060. China unveiled a master working guideline
on 24 October 2021 which aims to elevate energy
efficiency to an advanced international level and lift
non-fossil energy consumption to over 80 percent of
the whole by 2060. Attributed to such commitments,
it is anticipated that more stringent policies and
initiatives will be implemented by the government
to meet the net-zero carbon emission ambition,
thus higher operating costs may be incurred by the
Group to replace tools and equipment with models of
higher efficiency to ensure future compliance with the
regulations.
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Technology risk: Technology does not play a major
role in the Groups business and the risk is regarded
as relatively low. In the ESG Reporting Year, there
was no major downtime of the Group’s information
technology system. The Group will periodically review
the Group’s system to ensure the stable operation of
business.

Market risk: There has not been a shift in the market
sentiment towards environmental products. The
market risk is relatively low.

Reputational risk: Since the policy and legal, market
risk and technology risks are relatively low, the
impact of climate change on our reputation is also
considered at a minimal level.

Overall, the climate risk to the Group is relatively low,
and the Group will continue to monitor the impact of
climate change on the Group’s business operation.

SOCIAL

The Group believes that employees are the most valuable
assets for its business and strives to provide the best
working environment and benefits to retain talents.
Throughout the ESG Reporting Year, the Group complied
with all applicable employment and labour related laws
and regulations. The Group will continue doing better and
growing sustainably in a socially responsible manner. For
those business units in mainland China, minors below age
16 are prohibited from employment pursuant to article 15
of the PRC Labour Law ((FFZEARLMEBELEE)). The
Group adheres to the laws of the PRC for its operations in
mainland China.
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B1.

Employment

a.

Policy

Employees are the Group’s most precious
asset. The Group understands a motivated
and balanced workforce is crucial to the
success and sustainable growth of business,
and it is dedicated to providing a safe, equal-
working and fair environment throughout
its operation. The Group’s remuneration
policy states clearly that employees will be
compensated in a fair and equitable manner,
and provided with the opportunity to grow
and excel with the Group through continuous
learning at all levels. The Group’s senior
management keeps communication with
employees, ensuring this culture can be
implemented across all levels of the Group.

We believe that working in a diverse and
harmonious environment are the building blocks
of attaining our corporate goal — to deliver
the best services in terms of cost, quality
and products to our customers. The Group
will keep working on gender diversity across
different positions and levels. The Group had a
total of 104 employees at the end of the ESG
Reporting Year. The Group used an alternative
approach that encompasses culture, work
experience, academic background to measure
the workforce diversity, which is a better
representation of the Group. The Group will
continue to measure the diversity of workforce
through various channels, and may consider
to disclose the age, gender and geographical
region KPIs in the next ESG Reporting Period.
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In order to attract and retain talents,
the Group rewards its employees with
competitive remuneration (including
performance bonus), along with promotional
opportunities, compensation and benefits
packages. Employee remuneration packages
are maintained at competitive levels and
employees are rewarded through the Group’s
salary and bonus system. Remuneration is
determined with reference to the prevailing
market condition as well as the competency,
qualifications and experience of individual
employees. Performance bonus will be paid
to the employees as a recognition of their
contributions to the Group.
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Employee Turnover

During the ESG Reporting Year, the
Group’s overall employee turnover rate was
approximately 30%. A relatively high turnover
rate was recorded due to the expansion of the
business in Mainland China. The composition
of employee was relatively unstable. The table
below shows the employee turnover rate by
(i) gender, (i) age group and (i) geographical

region:

MALLERDLL B “ECCBF
Percentage of Turnover rate Categories FY2022
el B
Gender Male 38%
i
Female 26%
FheAa R 30T
Age group Below 30 100%
305R E405%
30 - 40 20%
A1 2505%
41 - 50 33%
505% A =
Above 50 0%
Hh i HR A3,
Geographical region Mainland China 33%
BB
Hong Kong 0%
BERESRKLLE
Overall employee turnover rate 30%

BTG TBERIRF
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We do not dismiss our employees unnecessarily
or unfairly, unless the employee fails to comply
with our company policies and has committed
an act of misconduct where, after serious
consideration, termination is the disciplinary
action.
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Employment Policy

The emolument policy regarding the
employees of the Group should be based on
their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the executive Directors
are reviewed and determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”), having
regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and prevailing market
condition. The emoluments of the Directors
are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and the emolument of senior management
are determined by the Board. No Director or
any of his or her associates was involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

Compliance with Relevant Laws that Have
Significant Impact

For Hong Kong business units, employees
are entitled to Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, medical
and life insurance programme. For PRC
business units, the Group has offered the
employees social insurance benefits, as well
as various leaves and holidays in accordance
with the Provisions on Minimum Wages,
the Regulations on Paid Annual Leave for
Employees, the Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurance and the Special Rules on the
Labour Protection of Female Employees of the
PRC. The Labour Law of the PRC is strictly
complied with by the Group in handling the
dismissal of employees. Statutory holidays and
different types of paid leave including annual
leave, sick leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave, compensation leave, compassionate
leave and injury leave are also offered as parts
of the benefits for all levels of the Group. In
addition, policies on remuneration, benefits,
training and occupational health and safety
are regularly reviewed, and disciplinary action
would be taken if an employee has committed
an act of serious misconduct.
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Remuneration Committee

To ensure the Group’s remuneration scheme
stays competitive, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee, with its roles
and functions set out in specific written terms
of reference in accordance with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee will meet
regularly to review the remuneration policy
of the Company, assess the performance,
and recommend remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group participates in MPF scheme and
such contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the Group’s profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs, depending on the location
of the subsidiaries, to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the
Group’s profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-
Discrimination

Equal opportunities are given to employees
in respect of recruitment, promotion,
training and development, job advancement,
compensation and benefits and all other
aspects of employment practices. The Group
has been relocating its principal operations
to mainland China. By virtue of article 12 of
the PRC Labour Law ({ & ZE A R £ 1 F 4
&% )), discriminations on ethnic, race, sex
and religions are prohibited. The diversity of
employees provides the Group with a valuable
mix of perspectives, skills, experience and
knowledge for addressing contemporary
business issues. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such
opportunities on the grounds of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other
grounds of discrimination prohibited by
applicable laws. The Group appreciates the
importance of cultural diversity, and it has no
tolerance of any form of sexual harassment
and discrimination behaviour. Employees found
to have committed such acts are subject to
internal disciplinary actions.

REBEFEZB AR A F Boil Healthcare Holdings Limited 47



BIE ERELIRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

48

B2.

BEHEZZ

a. BE
NE B K E P R
ZEMBIEREPZE -
BMOBBBRENBELZD

HRREE BRA/E
ThREZ2FEN THER
B RIRERER TFR
EEFENXL  AKE
BESEIRHEELEE
MEIES ZFEH
VEBMEE T 2HErEE
% EEEEMBNTHE

o

il

7

BFEEAZENEHE %
#

HEBERIGRNES
EEME2ERRETREL
ZEMER - REAEER
K AKECRABEETR
BB TIRHE T LAENRE

RESGREFE * ~A&EH
3 4 8% B 3 AR AR 2E -
RAIRAEE - IEEES
AEEEW - REBMRA
HE - NESGREEE R
BA=FFF  WEFE
TERHFRETILTRME o
LN - RESG FREFE -
TEZERTEBERD
T ERE K o (KPI B2.1)
(KPI B2.2)

Annual Report 2022

B2.

Health and Safety

a.

Policy

Operational health and safety is treated as
one of the top priorities in the Group, and the
Group strives to maintain a high occupational
safety and health standard, ensuring a safe
and comfortable working environment for
its employees. To support and maintain the
culture of work-life balance, the Group actively
provides a variety of staff activities with
employees. All these activities help strengthen
relationships among employees, and foster a
healthy and harmonious working environment.

Compliance with Relevant Laws that have
Significant Impact

Compliance of the relevant statutory provision
of the law is the concern and has the topmost
priority in our business goals. The Group
has taken out the required insurance for all
qualified employees in accordance with the
statutory requirements.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group
had no material non-compliance with relevant
standards, rules and regulations, and did not
encounter major accidents in its operation.
The Group is pleased to report that there
was no work-related injury cases or fatalities
in the ESG Reporting Year and each of the
past three years. In addition, no lost day due
to work injury was reported during the ESG
Reporting Year. (KPI B2.1) (KPI B2.2)
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B3.

B4.

Employees were provided with a clear
occupational safety guideline for daily
operation practices, recommending the
appropriate conduct or the use of safety
equipment during operation. Notices were
posted in the common area as reminders for
employees to raise awareness of and minimise
occupational related injury. In addition, every
case of injury (if any) is required to be reported
to the Group and to be individually assessed
under the internal guideline procedures. (KPI
B2.3)

Development and Training

Given the wide range of business activities, the
Group places great emphasis on employee training
and development, and this topic is included as
an important part of the Group’s human capital
management strategy. The Group supports its
employees to develop and enhance their knowledge,
and holds tailor-made training annually to improve
employees’ work-related soft and hard skills, and
to develop skills necessary for career advancement.
The Group encourages employees at all levels to
pursue training opportunities that facilitate personal
growth and professional development. However,
due to the impact of COVID-19, in order to maintain
social distance, the Group has paused both internal
and external training during the ESG Reporting Year.
The Group will continue exploring other training
opportunities.

Labour Standards

a. Policy
The Group adopts the statutory standard as its
minimum labour standard on labour protection
and welfare. The Group is committed to
ensuring its full compliance with relevant laws
and regulations relating to child and forced
labour. In addition, the Group adopts a serious
view and attaches great importance to the
compliance of statutory duties and obligations
as an employer.

(REfEFEZR AR A R) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 49



BR - tERELRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

50

Pt A Sk & /R E R B HA
FRXEBEFE  FER
BEE  2EEARKHENH
BEZRAXMY  UHEKE
NMERE% © (KPI B4.1)

BFEEAZENHEE
#

REB D KET BEAKES
E) ABHEREIRKR
EEER) REBEOF
57 E R R IR G )F AR KR
MO BEARENSETE
BHIE - EPERELER
AEBREKERAAE
BEINREST - EBE
FEREMABRMNZE R
EBRBINEARYE RE
EECTRE  WEKRT
MIREEE - TEEEA
BREMABREF o KRR
HERGHERANEEE
KA EBIEER - i 3
RBEEERERERK
REMNER - AGRE& L
REE o

AEBEBERETEBRE
MR - AERESER
RAENERE T2 Rk1E
M o ANEE TR AR E B
RA - BEXNIE - #
& RN mESER

LA

od o
N

AEECETHEHETH
e &Y - HESGRESF
ERALEFGERES TS
RS ©

Annual Report 2022

All job applicants are required to submit their
credentials such as academic qualifications,
professional skill certificates, references
and identity card for verification and record
purposes during recruitment. (KPI B4.1)

Compliance with Relevant Laws that have
Significant Impact

The Group has developed its labour
management system in accordance with laws
and regulations such as the Labour Law (%5
g)3L)), the Labour Contract Law ({4 & &
[F3%)) and the Work Safety Law ((ZZ4£E
7&)) of the PRC, and Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Child
labour or forced labour is strictly prohibited
from taking any positions in the Group and its
members. The candidate information is strictly
verified. Candidates will be permitted to admit
into registration and on-boarding procedures
only if identity cards verification and checks
on residence registration have not detected
any abnormal issues. Candidates who cannot
provide valid certificates of identity will not be
qualified for employment. If any information is
found to be in violation of employment laws
or standards, the recruitment will be instantly
terminated.

The Group strictly adheres to the laws on
labour protection to ensure employee health,
safety and welfare during their employment.
The Group also pays wages and salaries,
benefits, compensation payments and
insurance on time within the prescribed period.

The Group honours all of its obligations
towards staff and no disputes or litigations
on labour matters were reported for the ESG
Reporting Year.
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B5.

Supply Chain Management
The Group maintains good relationships with
suppliers and meet the customers’ needs in an
effective and efficient manner.

The Group values mutually beneficial and long-
standing relationships with its suppliers. The Group
works closely with a number of suppliers in order
to provide high quality services. The selection of
suppliers is based on criteria such as price, quality
of products, customer service team responsiveness,
capability and experience, with preference given
to potential suppliers that demonstrate their
commitment to the environment. During the
background investigation process, suppliers that have
green certification and show strong background of
corporate social responsibility will be given priority
in the selection process. During the ESG Reporting
Period, the Group implemented its supply chain
practices to all the suppliers. The management is
responsible for monitoring and implementation of the
selection process.

As the Group prefers selecting suppliers who share
the same environmental, social and ethical values
with us, the Group also pays attention to the supplier’
past environmental compliance record as well as their
commitment to social responsibility part from the
products and services quality. In FY2022, the Group
partnered with 140 suppliers in total all of which are
located in the PRC.

The Group promotes environmentally preferred
products and services by offering training to
employees on different aspects and to highlight key
green market trends and best practices. Incentives
are also offered to suppliers to provide materials
that are certified with green certificates. The Group
also takes in suggestions from senior management
and advice from industry seminars on environmental
products and services.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group was
not aware of any suppliers that had any actions or
practices which had caused significant negative
impacts on business ethics, environmental protection,
labour practices and human rights.
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B6.

Product Responsibility and Customer Service
(KPI B6.1, B6.2 and B6.4)

The Group’s end products are mainly finished
buildings or properties which are subject to stringent
government control and independent consultant
supervision and inspection during the planning,
design and construction stages. Most of the risks
regarding defaulted end products (whether on health
and safety issues or deviation from specifications)
are detected in a timely manner. Such risks are
reasonably minimised by the existing industry
checking practices and our internal supervision plans.

The Group is committed to providing high quality
end products as we realise that the quality and
consistency of our products are critical to our ability
to maintain our professionalism and to expand market
shares. Great importance is attached to the safety
standard of our products. The Group maintains close
contact with our business peers in the trade to keep
abreast of the latest building construction technology
and knowledge.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group did not
have records of quality claims on our products and
services which had material adverse impact on our
business.

The Group values its customers. There were no major
complaints in the ESG Reporting Year. By regularly
reviewing the feedback from clients, all disputes
and complaints are fairly investigated and resolved
promptly. As a result, the Group has earned trusted
relationships with its broad customer base through
providing excellent customer services.
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RERE

The Group has also set up a complaint hotline,
company website, complaint mailbox and other
channels to receive customers’ opinions and
suggestions. The Group also believes effective
communication should include a timely and accurate
information disclosure. Not only does it bring valuable
information to Shareholders and investors, it also
invites constructive feedback for perfecting the
Group’s operation. The Group will continue its open
communication approach, and sustain a successful
long-term working relationship with its stakeholders in
the future.

Protection of Intellectual Property (KPI B6.3)

The Group protects its intellectual property rights
by prolonged use and registration of domain names
and various trademarks. The Group has registered
trademarks in various classes in Hong Kong and
the PRC.
domain names are constantly monitored and renewed

In addition, the Group’s trademarks and

upon their expiration.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group was
not involved in any action of non-compliance with
legal regulations and laws relating to protection of
intellectual property.

Privacy (KPI B6.5)

The Group’s property development construction
business involves private, confidential and sensitive
information of the customers and projects such as
design, costs and commercial terms of contracts. We
also have confidential information on our business
partners, sub-contractors and employees. These
types of information are extremely sensitive and
important, and pursuant to applicable laws, we have
to cautiously keep and safeguard them. During the
ESG Reporting Period, the Group had complied with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and guidelines that are
announced by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data in Hong Kong.
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B7.

The Group is fully aware of our obligations, and
has taken measures to ensure safe keeping of the
information. The leakage and loss of the information
to outsiders mainly result from (i) internal negligence
and theft, and (ii) external theft through hacking
of the information system. For the former, the
Group has cautioned our employees not to access
information without approvals, not to leak confidential
information and to handle confidential information
carefully. Legal actions will be taken on any violation.
For the latter, to act against external theft, the Group
has authorised the IT Department to continuously
monitor, maintain and update hardware, software and
security systems to prevent hacking attacks at any
times. No privacy information leakage was reported
in ESG Reporting Year.

Anti-Corruption

The Group values employees’ business conduct,
integrity, ethics and discipline. The Group will
continue exploring training opportunities on anti-
corruption and relevant employees are encouraged
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
any matter related to the Group such as misconduct
and malpractice. The Group has provided a set of
training documents, PowerPoint, latest article to the
Directors and staff which are taken from various
regulatory sources and international bodies, including
but not limited to Independent Commission Against
Corruption. Disciplinary actions would be taken by the
Group if any employee is found guilty of corruptive
acts. Such policy can be found in the Employee
Handbook. For business units in mainland China,
corruption is subject to penalty and/or imprisonment
according to the PRC Anti-Corruption and Bribery
Law K ZEARLFBE R EISHERE)).

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group was not
involved in any action of non-compliance with legal
regulations and laws relating to corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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The Group has established a set of comprehensive
whistleblowing policy, which enables employees to
directly inform senior management of corruption,
bribery or other issues through a confidential
platform. Employees will be protected from any form
of retaliation and encouraged to report any issues
in order to maintain a safe working environment.
(KPI B7.2). Every period, the senior management
and Board will monitor whistle blowing cases and
remediate these issue in an effective and timely
manner.

Community Investment

The Group understands the importance of generating
and bringing profit to the Shareholders, and being
socially responsible to care, serve and give back to
the community wherever it is needed at the same
time. The Group is committed to creating sustainable
prosperity that brings long-term social and economic
benefits to all stakeholders, particularly to maintain
the relationship with interest groups which are
relevant to business operation, such as providing
employment and business opportunities that indirectly
build wealth in the local community. The Group will
continue upholding the principle of being responsible
for its shareholders and investors, employees,
customers, suppliers, government authorities and
public community, and will seek further development
opportunities to maintain a harmonious relationship
with its stakeholders. This year, the Group focused
on environmental related initiatives, and encouraged
the staffs to go green and support organizations
promoting this cause. (KPI B8.1) (KPI B8.2)
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The Board recognises the importance of sound corporate
governance to the long-term and continuing success of the Group.
The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate standards
and procedures for the best interests of the Shareholders. The
Board will continue to review its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that the Group complies with the
statutory requirements and the CG Code and aligns with the latest
developments.

COMPLIANCEWITHTHE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had
complied with the applicable code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
of the CG Code in force during the year, except for the deviation
from Code Provision A.2.1 (which has been renumbered as Code
Provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) as explained below:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Dai Dong Xing, an executive
Director, currently acts as the Chairman of the Board and the Company
does not have any offices with the title of “Chief Executive Officer”.
Mr. Dai Dong Xing, together with other Directors, are responsible for
the overall business strategy and development and management of
the Group’s business. The Board meets regularly to consider major
matters affecting the operations of the Group. The Board considers
that this structure does not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company. However,
the Board will also review regularly the board composition and appoint
a chief executive officer if a suitable person is identified.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 8
August 2022 in relation to the proposed retirement of Mr. Dai Dong
Xing from his position as Director. Mr. Dai will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company but he will not
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in order to devote more time on his other personal endeavours.
Accordingly, Mr. Dai will retire as Director upon conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.
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All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Group as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each of the Director to perform their responsibilities
to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation are delegated to the
senior management of the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Dai Dong Xing (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Zhe

Mr. Xu Liang Wei

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy
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The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the
business operations and development of the Group.

Pursuant to article 108 of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (“Articles”), one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

All the non-executive Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors, are appointed for a term of three years, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles.

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmations
received, the Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent under the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among members of the Board and senior management
of the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Directors
are given adequate notice to attend such regular Board meetings
or other Board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications. Draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to all Directors for comments and records respectively,
within reasonable time after Board meetings are held. Final versions
of minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Directors.

The Company held 11 Board meetings during the year ended 31
March 2022.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

bR/ BTeERY
Remuneration Nomination  Annual General
Board Meeting Audit Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Ezees Enzeg HMzae ReZEg RREFAE
YTES Executive Directors
HROEE Mr. Dai Dong Xing 1111 NATEF NATEF 11 111
REGEE Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai 111 NATNEF NAEFR NATEF 17
*HTES Non-Executive Director
Eriis Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 1111 NATMER NAT R NADER il
BUFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
Tk Mr. Wang Zhe 111 212 17 11 111
TRELE Mr. Xu Liang Wei 1111 212 17 NATNER 111
RERLE Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy 1111 212 17 17 111
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HEAEEEERER - AREEEHRA
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During FY2022, the Chairman of the Board held 1 meeting with all
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
the other Directors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that their
compliance with the Model Code and the code of conduct
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of
the operations and business of the Group as well as his or her
responsibilities and obligations under Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.
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The Company acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample
continuing professional development for the Directors to a sound
and effective internal control system and good corporate governance
practice. In this regard, the Company has always encouraged the
Directors to attend relevant training courses to receive the latest
news and knowledge regarding corporate governance.

The Company updates Directors on the latest developments and
changes to the Listing Rules and the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements concerning good corporate governance practices.
Reading materials on regulatory updates were also provided to the
Directors for updating their knowledge on the relevant issues. The
Company will, if necessary, provide timely and regular trainings
to the Directors to ensure that they keep abreast of the current
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has also
adopted a policy to reimburse the Directors for any relevant training
costs and expenses incurred concerning corporate governance and
internal control.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with Code Provision
A.6.5 (which has been renumbered as Code Provision C.1.4 since
1 January 2022) of the CG Code on directors’ training. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, all Directors had participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-
house briefing and reading materials on the followings topics to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and provided their
records of training to the Company as follows:

Attending
courses/

seminars/ Reading books/
Director conferences journals/ articles

HERRE HERE
3= mEE '8 B, X'
HITES Executive Directors
BRITHRE Mr. Dai Dong Xing v v
SR AEF A Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai v/ v
FHITES Non-Executive Director
ENIREAE Mr. Chui Kwong Kau v/ v/
BAFHITES Independent Non-Executive Director
B b Mr. Wang Zhe v v
FFRERE Mr. Xu Liang Wei v/ v
PRAER & Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy v v/
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has three board committees, namely, the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to the
Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and principle C.3 (which has been renumbered as
principle D.3 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control procedures and risk management systems
of the Group, to oversee the audit process and the relationship
with external auditors, to review arrangements enabling employees
of the Group to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Group
and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy,
an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of the
Audit Committee and Mr. Wang Zhe and Mr. Xu Liang Wei, both
independent non-executive Directors, are members of the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee had
held 2 meetings and the attendance records of the members are
set out on page 59 of this annual report. The Audit Committee
had reviewed the annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and the interim results of the Company for
the six months ended 30 September 2021, significant issues on
the financial reporting process, internal control procedures, risk
management systems, internal audit function, scope of work and
appointment of external auditors and arrangements for employees
to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice for the
year ended 31 March 2022 without the presence of the executive
Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26
of the Listing Rules and Code Provision B.1.2 (which has been
renumbered as Code Provision E.1.2 since 1 January 2022) of
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all Directors and senior management and to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Xu Liang Wei, an
independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and Mr. Wang Zhe and Mr. Chan Chi
Keung, Billy, both independent non-executive Directors, are
members of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting to review the policy for the remuneration
of Directors, assess the performance of Directors and had
recommended to the Board on the approval of the Directors and
senior management remuneration packages. The attendance
records of members are set out on page 59 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
A.5.2 (which has been renumbered as Code Provision B.3.1
since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the issuer’s corporate strategy, to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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Selection of Board candidates will be based on merits and
contributions that the candidates will bring to the Board, having
due regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Dai Dong Xing, the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director, is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang Zhe and Mr. Chan
Chi Keung, Billy, both independent non-executive Directors, are
members of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting to consider the Board composition and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors,
and to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. The attendance records of members of the Nomination
Committee are set out on page 59 of this annual report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in relation
to the nomination and appointment of Directors. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider the measurable objectives it has set (if any)
for implementing the board diversity policy, and a number of factors
relating to the candidates, including but not limited to their gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience and knowledge. The Nomination Committee will review
the composition of the Board under diversity perspectives and will
monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy to ensure
its effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
selection criteria and procedures to nominate Board candidates.
When making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, the Nomination Committee would consider a number
of factors in assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate,
including but not limited to:

(@) reputation for integrity;
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(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the property
development, healthcare holiday resort development and
operation, foundation piling, investment securities industries
and/or other related industries;

(©) commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Group’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Group’s success;

() compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment or
re-appointment of independent non-executive Directors; and

(9) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

Appointment of any proposed candidates to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing members of the Board shall be made
in accordance with the Articles and other applicable rules and
regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in Code Provision D.3.1 (which has been renumbered as Code
Provision A.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code.

During FY2022, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance functions, including but not limited to the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior
management, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
Directors’ compliance with the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Details of remuneration payable to members of senior management
of the Company, including those members of senior management
who are also Directors, are shown in the following table by band:

b /N

BT SREEBASAY

Number of senior

management

HK$ of the Company

1-1,000,000 8

1,000,000-1,500,000 1

>1,500,000 —
ZEEN £ AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

RBE-T-_—F=A=1+—RAIEE %E
B IEERSIMELSMERAR(BIEEZS
STRPITEE A — 15 hlME - RERSEREZE
MER JEBNEMEBEENZE=F -
WRERER THETEBRZEMIT 2B
BIPR 2 — 20 R B 88 ) 1R 2 B R IE K
RBEA B2 ERBBE(TRMAAS) DR
A #91,250,0007% 7T % 350,000/ 7T ° B 1 FE4
HRBEHNERRSENRREEREB R T HIE
FIH 2 BB X R 2 &R 5 5 49200,000% 7T
150,000/ 7T °

DEWE

EFEREMBAFER ETRAZRTN -2 —
NENA—BZEERERLEERARAUE -
RBE-T-_—F=A=+—ALFE  DOF
WEBEZ DI SE/ AR E R E -

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the total fees paid/
payable, excluding disbursements, in respect of audit and non-
audit services provided by BDO Limited (including any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party having
knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably conclude as
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally) were approximately
HK$1,250,000 and HK$350,000, respectively. The fees paid
for non-audit services included approximately HK$200,000 and
HK$150,000 for review of interim results and other professional
services in respect of the Land Acquisition, respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appointed Mr. Ng Kam Ming as the Company Secretary
in accordance with the Articles and in compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules on 1 August 2019. During the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Company Secretary had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control and risk managements systems, including
but not limited to evaluating and determining the nature and level
of risk tolerance of the Company, establishing and maintaining
sound and effective risk management and internal control systems,
and overseeing and reviewing the design, implementation and
monitoring of such risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis, so as to safeguard Shareholders’ interest
and protect the Company’s assets against unauthorised use or
disposal. The Board is also responsible for ensuring maintenance
of proper accounting records to provide reliable financial
information and compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
will be reviewed and evaluated by the Audit Committee and the
Board at least annually.

The risk management and internal control systems established by
the Group are aimed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses
caused by judgment in decision making process, human error,
fraud or other irregularities.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
comprise a defined management structure, where designated
management in each department of the Group are responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing significant risks that occur
in the Group’s operations. The designated management report
directly to the Board of any material internal control defects in
order to make necessary modifications to the systems, and to
ensure that the Group’s activities are effectively controlled so
that management’s risk responses and policies are carried out
as planned towards the achievement of the Group’s strategic,
operational, compliance and reporting objectives.

The Group has established an internal audit function to evaluate
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems independently. The Group’s internal audit function
is responsible for carrying out analysis and appraisal of the Group’s
risk management and internal controls systems, and reports directly
to the Audit Committee.
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The Company has also formulated policies on handling and
dissemination of inside information by reference to the Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission, which set out procedures in handling inside
information in a secure and proper manner as well as those aimed
to avoid mishandling of inside information of the Group.

During FY2022, the Board has discussed and reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering material controls (including financial, operational
and compliance controls) at entity and operational levels. Based
on the outcome of the review performed by the Company’s Audit
Committee, administrative management and the independent
auditor, the Directors considered and were of the opinion that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and internal
audit function are effective and adequate.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) is
currently in force and was in force during the year ended 31 March
2022 for the benefit of the Directors.

DIRECTOR AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibilities in
preparing the financial statements and ensuring that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared to reflect the true and fair
view of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group
and are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions as required
under the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the
financial statements of the Group for each financial year have been
prepared on these bases.
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The Directors are aware that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$755,735,000 for FY2022 and, as of that
date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$1,056,727,000. Furthermore, the
Group had amount due to related companies of approximately
HK$754,632,000, other payables of HK$130,293,000, which
represent construction costs paid by a related company on behalf
of the Group, and bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$783,022,000 that were repayable on demand while the Group
only had cash and cash equivalents of HK$46,516,000 as at 31
March 2022.

These events or conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future,
based on the cash flow projections of the Group over the Forecast
Period after taking into account the following considerations:

()  The availability of undrawn credit facilities as at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements of:

(@ RMB900,000,000 as per the Facility entered into in June
2021, that was originally entered into by the Company in
June 2019 with its controlling shareholder (a then related
party) and its beneficial owner regarding the provision
of a loan facility amounting to RMB900,000,000. The
Facility is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum
and repayable within a period of twenty-four months
from drawdown date. The Group had not drawn down
any loan from the Facility up to the date of approval for
issue of these consolidated financial statements; and

(b) RMB136,377,000 (approximately HK$168,187,000) for
the construction of the integrated industrial zone project
located in the PRC;
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An extension in June 2022 to August 2023 of the borrowing
of RMB400,000,000 (approximately HK$493,300,000) that
had matured and was repayable on demand as at 31 March
2022;

Undertakings from related parties for amounts due to them
amounting to HK$884,925,000 as at 31 March 2022 that
they will not demand the Group for repayment until the Group
is in the position to repay;

Pre-sales and sales proceeds from properties located in the
PRC and the estimated revenue based on actual performance
since its future possible development as well as the expected
business development over the Forecast Period. The
realisation of the forecasted sales and pre-sales depends
upon the development of the Pandemic and quarantine
measures implemented by the PRC government;

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group is negotiating with potential investor(s)
for possible disposal of certain non-current assets during the
Forecast Period; and

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, an independent third party agreed to provide
a credit facility of RMB300,000,000 to the Group over the
Forecast Period, which is interest bearing at 13% per annum,
repayable within two years from the drawdown date. The
facility is secured by 95% equity interest in Shanghai Baoxian
(a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), and is
guaranteed by a related party. As at the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Group had not
drawn down any loan from such credit facility.
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Significant uncertainties exist as to whether management of the
Company will be able to achieve its plans as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon the Group’s ability to:

(i) complete the possible disposal of certain non-current assets
and collecting sale proceeds in accordance with the amount
and timing expected by the Company; and

(i) proceed with the pre-sales and sales of properties located in
the PRC in accordance with the amount and timing expected
by the Company.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Based on the information provided by management of the Group
and the steps taken to improve the financial position of the Group,
including but not limited to the extension of borrowing, pre-sales
and sales proceeds from of property sales, seeking for potential
investor(s) who are interested in purchase of the Group’s certain
non-current assets and obtaining additional credit facility as
mentioned above, the Audit Committee has reviewed and agreed
with the Board’s basis for the going concern basis adopted in
preparing the financial statements and such basis has also been
disclosed in the section headed “Note 3 — Basis of preparation — (b)
Basis of measurement and going concern assumption” set out on
pages 111 to 114 of this annual report.

Statement of the responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor
for preparing the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.



BRRAE
ARBMBRAFAS((RRBFAE)RES
SHERAMARESEY BERRREARE
REBRBARRIBRBERAZFE EFSHRE
REBFAREREBIRER - ARAINERZH
BRI RN ERRBFAEG  URERREH
BE T MR B s 2 12 o

B SRAEA
ERRERTBHRRBEAG

REBARFEC4E  EFSANERREERA
RREREIAE((RREBKRE]) - BRERFRIK
ENAE—RBIALRNERERE BRBEEN
BRRAE EREZARAMBEAT DR +5—
ZBERERXTER - BRERANEARES
SHARWERL ARAEREFSFMAME
BHIANGAGREERANFTRZERNEER - 5H
ERANREABEREMMEAARRIT © WR
BERXERK21IAAN EFERBARAZAE -
APEEZRALTAUAERATXBHARE - MiE
2EBRATREZEAREERAEMAEEL L
PR ERARRMERAELER -

EEERBRERARTAREB 2 EFEME(H
BFHEFR IS KEZH 021182101 ZE A
RAITEEBREFME - BKERRD A M
¥ = B Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands ° ZEKBEFRTIABREERKA LT 28
o HRAQAZkE  BRRREEIAE 2
BhH  EmANAZEZERERRBRERIRE
FREBZEHFE  THEBRERALERE -

LRELIHRE
Corporate Governance Report

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) is a forum in
which the Board and the Shareholders can communicate directly
and exchange views concerning the affairs and overall performance
of the Group, and its future developments, etc. At the AGM,
the Directors are available to attend to questions raised by the
Shareholders. The external auditor of the Company is also invited to
be present at the AGM to address the queries of the Shareholders
concerning the audit procedures and the auditor’s report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting on Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“EGM”). EGM shall also be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The written requisition shall be deposited at the place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 2101, 21/F Wing On Centre,
No. 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.) or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such place of business, the registered
office of the Company (Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands). The requisition
must state clearly the name of the requisitionist(s), his/her/their
shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene the
EGM, the agenda proposed to be included and the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM and signed by
the requisitionist(s).
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Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of Directors

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a
retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his or her willingness to be elected have been lodged
with the head office or at the registration office of the Company.
The period for lodgment of the notices required under the Articles
will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars. Shareholders
may also make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent that such information has been made publicly available by
the Company. All written enquiries or requests may be forwarded
to the Company’s head office or by email to ir@boill.com or by
fax to (852) 3914 7530. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There is no provision under the Articles for the Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at a general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may, however,
request the Company to convene an EGM in accordance with the
procedures set out in the above paragraph headed “Convening of
Extraordinary General Meeting on Requisition by Shareholders”.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 (which has been renumbered
as Code Provision F.1.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code,
the Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”).
Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles, the Company may from time to time declare dividends in
any currency to be paid to the members of the Company but no
dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended
by the Board. The Board may also from time to time pay to the
members of the Company such interim dividends as appear to the
Board to be justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration
of dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board, taking
into consideration of, among others, (i) the Group’s financial
performance; (ii) the Group’s capital requirements and debt
level; (iii) the Group’s liquidity position; (iv) retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Group; (v) the Group’s business
operations, business strategies and future development needs; (vi)
any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions; and (vii) the
general economic conditions and other factors that may have an
impact on the performance and position of the Group. The Board
will review the dividend policy from time to time and may exercise
at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify
the dividend policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to investors,
the Group delivers corporate development information to the
public through various channels, including general meetings, public
announcements, interim reports and annual reports. The investors
have access to the latest news and information of the Group via its
website (https://www.boillhealthcare.com.hk).

In order to maintain good and effective communication, the
Company together with the Board extend their invitation to all
Shareholders and encourage them to attend the forthcoming AGM
and all future general meetings of the Company.
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The Shareholders may also forward their enquiries and suggestions
in writing to the Company to the followings:

Address:

Room 2101, 21/F, Wing On Centre
No. 111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Email: ir@boill.com

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company did not make
changes to its Articles. A copy of the latest version of the Articles
is available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in property development, healthcare
holiday resort development and operation, foundation piling, and
investment securities during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 95 to 96.

DIVIDEND
The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of final
dividend to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2022.

As at the date of this annual report, there was no arrangement
under which a Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on pages 223 to 224.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group as required by Schedule 5 of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), including financial key performance indicators, a fair
review of the Company’s business, a description of principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Company and future development in
the Company’s business, can be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND RELATIONSHIP
WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to building an eco-friendly corporation.
Details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance and
its key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers are
disclosed in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 26 to 55 of this annual report.
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For the ESG Reporting Year, the Company has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.
The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and consider implementing further measures and practices in the
operation of the Group’s business.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has complied in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 March
2022, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with,
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements of the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2022 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 March 2022

was 1,358,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVE AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the reserves of the Group and the Company are set
out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 99
respectively.
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As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company did not
have distributable reserves to the Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (“Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution of the Shareholders passed on 22
September 2013 as to attract and retain the best available
personnel and to provide additional incentive to the eligible
participants under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Scheme, grant options to any
employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants or advisor
of the Group, or any substantial shareholders, or any distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or
service providers of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The eligibility of any participants to the grant of any
options shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on
the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

During the AGM of the Company held on 29 September 2017,
the then existing scheme mandate limit in respect of granting of
options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the Scheme
was refreshed and renewed provided that the total number of
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of
the refreshed limit, that is 90,740,000 shares of the Company (as
adjusted by the consolidation of every ten (10) shares of HK$0.025
each into one (1) share of HK$0.25 each pursuant to the share
consolidation approved by the Shareholders at the EGM held on
14 September 2020), representing approximately 6.68% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
Subject to the approval of the Shareholders, the aggregate number
of the Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other share
options schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to
date of grant must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being. Where any further grant of options
to a participant under the Scheme would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the shares in issue, such further grant must be separately approved
by the Shareholders in general meeting with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to Directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders, or any of their respective associates must be
approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Directors who are the grantee).
Where any share options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors, or any of their respective
associates would result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to such
person in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue and having an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Shareholders
where all connected persons of the Company shall abstain from
voting (except where any connected person intend to vote against
the proposed grant).

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted in writing
within 7 days inclusive of the day on which the offer is made.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Directors may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof. A nominal consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option with a
remittance in favour of the Company within such time as may be
specified in the offer (which shall not be later than 7 days from the
date of the offer).
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The subscription price shall be a price solely determined by the
Directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option; (ii) the average closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share on
the date of grant of the option.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 22 September 2013 and up to 21 September
2023, subject to early termination provisions contained in the
Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, the remaining life of
the Scheme is approximately one year, one month and fourteen
days.

No share option was granted since the adoption of the Scheme
and there was no share option outstanding as at 31 March 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Scheme as disclosed above, no other equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year ended 31 March
2022 or subsisted as at 31 March 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Dai Dong Xing (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Zhe

Mr. Xu Liang Wei

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy
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In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, at each AGM one-
third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by
rotation and provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three (3) years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. Dai Dong Xing and Mr. Xu Liang
Wei will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM but both of them
will not offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
in order to devote more time on their other personal endeavours.
Accordingly, Mr. Dai Dong Xing and Mr. Xu Liang Wei will retire as
Directors upon conclusion of the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, the Company at the
general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office. In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, the Company
may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors for the year ended 31 March
2022. The Company considers each of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Each of the executive Directors shall also be entitled to discretional
bonus to be determined by the Board based on, among other
things, the performance of the individual Director and the
overall financial position of the Group and is subject to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF THE ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which (i) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (i) were required, pursuant to the Model
Code adopted by the Company, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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FERFNELATIRORHEBERDP ZE INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

RZEBE-_—F=ZA=+—8 ' BEEHM LA As at 31 March 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
TALE(KRRBZEEHZESTHAERINAA  the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive
NERHO BB DT EEZLERARGIRIEE  of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
F R EIEGPIE336IKEFE 2 Bt 2#msk  or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

KA required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:
RN TRE
\ . BB
BRRER/ 2 5/ BRME /%R FRRHAEE (Hit1)
Approximate
percentage of
Long/short No. of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest position shares held  in the Company
(Note 1)
Mr. Qiu Don?fans% “Mr. Qiu’) Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) Long position 710,600,000 52.33%
ERAFE(REE]) REHEEER (M 2) HE
China Huarong Asset Management Co.,  Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3) Long position 710,600,000 52.33%
Ltd.” (“China Huarong Asset’) o
PRERZETERHERAR(HEE XEHZERS(M:E3) HE
mEE])
China Huarong International Holdings Person having a security interest in shares  Long position 710,600,000 52.33%
Ltd. ("China Huarong International’) o
$%ﬁﬂﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ¢ﬁ$ﬂﬁ PR A REERMA T e
Boill International Co., Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) Long position 450,600,000 33.18%
(“Boill International’) N .
REEBRARAA([REEER]) ERBEAMH2) e
Shanghai Jiafu Investment Co., Ltd.* Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) Long position 450,600,000 33.18%
(‘Shanghai Jiafu” _ o
HEEERERRARA( LSEER]) REHEEER (M 2) HE
Boill Holding Group Co., Ltd.* Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) Long position 450,600,000 33.18%
(“Boill Holding”) _ o
REZEREEERAR([MREER]) REREEER(ME2) e
Liyao Investment Limited (‘Liyao”) Beneficial owner (Note 2) Long position 260,000,000 19.15%
VBREBRAR([LE]) EnlBAM22) HE
Mr. Cai Weijie Beneficial owner Long position 83,238,000 6.13%
ZEBtE ERBEAA B
B3 Notes:
1 Rom——&=A=+—0 . &ATD TG @ 1. As at 31 March 2022, the total number of issued shares of the Company was

#31,358,000,0000% & f%0.25/8 TTHY & 38R -

1,358,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each.

2. REBBHREERZERS @ REERALDSES 2. Boill International is wholly-owned by Boill Holding, which in turn is held as
HE87.83%MER  MEBEEHRBLENERL to 87.83% by Shanghai Jiafu. Shanghai Jiafu is held as to 98.7% and 1.3%
T([FELE)HRHEHE98.7% K% 1.3%HIIRIE - = by Mr. Qiu and Ms. Huang, respectively. Ms. Huang is the spouse of Mr.
REREBREZRB - MRBHAEEEZEHER - Qiu. Liyao is wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu. Accordingly, Mr. Qiu is deemed to
It REAERR RRRE BIFR 54 #9450,600,000/% be interested in the 450,600,000 Shares held by Boill International and the
& 19 K 32 4% R9260,000,000/% i (5 R B 12 © 260,000,000 Shares held by Liyao.

* EH2E

* for informaion purpose only
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3! China Huarong International is controlled as to 15.16% by Huarong Zhiyuan
Investment & Management Co., Ltd. and 84.84% by China Huarong Asset.
Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. is controlled as to
100% by China Huarong Asset. Accordingly, China Huarong Asset is deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares as China Huarong International
is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons (other than a Director
and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares in the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

On 31 December 2021, Boill International and Liyao, pledged
450,600,000 and 260,000,000 Shares (collectively, the “Pledged
Shares”) in favour of China Huarong International as security for a
facility provided by the Lender to the Company, as borrower, with
an outstanding principal amount of USD39,500,000. The Pledged
Shares represent approximately 52.33% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this report.

Boill International is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
wholly-owned by Boill Holding, which in turn is held as to 97.64%
and 2.36% by Mr. Qiu and Ms. Huang, respectively. Liyao is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-
owned by Mr. Qiu. Accordingly, Mr. Qiu is deemed to be interested
in the 450,600,000 Shares held by Boill International and the
260,000,000 Shares held by Liyao. As at the date of this report,
Mr. Qiu has an interest of approximately 52.33% in the total issued
Shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.6% (2021: 12.2%) of
the total revenue of the Group and the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 0.4% (2021: 6.4%) of the total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers during the year ended
31 March 2022.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 89.9% (2021: 66.3%) of the total purchases
of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
41.5% (2021: 27.9%) of the total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers during the year ended
31 March 2022.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or any entity connected with a Director had
a material interest directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the
reporting period or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No management contracts concerning the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during
the year ended 31 March 2022 were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective associates or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2022, there were no related party transactions
or continuing related party transactions set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements which fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” and
were subject to the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 191 of the Articles, the Director, Company
Secretary and other officers for the time being of the Company
for the time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or
sustain by reasons of any act or execution of their duties to the
Company.

Such provision was in force during the course of the financial year
ended 31 March 2022 and remained in force as of the date of
this annual report. The Company has taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors, Company
Secretary and officers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all Directors and senior management, having regard to their duties
and responsibilities, individual performance, the Group’s operating
results and prevailing marketing conditions. No Director or any of
his or her associates should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that neither themselves nor their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest
in any businesses or companies that compete or likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules up to the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this annual report, the Board was not aware
of any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2022.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and met with the
auditors of the Company without the presence of the executive
Directors. In addition, the Audit Committee has also discussed
auditing, risk management and internal control, and financial
reporting matters including the review of the accounting practices
and principles adopted by the Group with senior management of
the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited (“BDO”) has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 22 February 2019 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Zenith CPA Limited as the
auditor of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there has been
no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 have been audited by BDO, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited
Dai Dong Xing

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 August 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BOILL HEALTHCARE
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Boaill
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 222, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$755,735,000 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and, as of
that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$1,056,727,000. These conditions, along with other matters
set forth in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of investment properties

(refer to note 4(e) on the significant accounting policies and note
17 to the consolidated financial statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) to
be HK$1,602,793,000 at 31 March 2022, with a net fair value
loss of HK$570,405,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Independent external valuations
were obtained for the investment properties in order to support
management’s estimates. The valuation methods of different
investment properties includes direct comparison approach and
replacement cost approach. The valuations are dependent on
certain key assumptions that require significant management
judgement, including fair market prices of similar properties.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of investment properties (continued)

We identified valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant management judgements involved in
the determination of the fair value of the investment properties.

Our Response
Our procedures in relation to this key audit matter included:

o Evaluation of the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o Assessing the methodologies used by the valuer and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the property industry;

o Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
inputs used in the valuation; and

o Checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data used
and the resultant calculations.

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

(refer to notes 4(h) and 4(i) on the significant accounting policies
and notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements)

At 31 March 2022, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale totalled HK$1,184,981,000 and accounted
for approximately 34% of the Group’s total assets. Properties under
development and completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

We identified the net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale as a key audit matter because the determination of net
realisable values of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale involved critical accounting estimates on
the selling price, variable selling expenses and estimated costs to
completion of properties under development.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale (continued)

Our Response
Our procedures in relation to this key audit matter included:

° Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s competence,
capacity and objectivity;

° Assessing the valuation methodologies used, and
challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions,
specifically including future market value, estimated costs to
completion, intended use and current market environment,
based on our knowledge of the Group’s business and
property industry;

° Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of key inputs
used in the valuation; and

° Reconciling, on a sample basis, the input data used
as supporting evidence, such as approved budgets
of the project and most recent transaction prices of
comparable properties in the market, and considering their
reasonableness.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control;

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Tsz Ka
Practising Certificate Number PO6838

Hong Kong, 8 August 2022
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—E-_F
2022 2021
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
[lg REVENUE 7 1,016,162 216,710
HEKA Cost of sales (907,740) (197,739)
EH Gross profit 108,422 18,971
EfUg A K (E518) sk Uk z%%  Other income and (losses) or gains, net 8 (1,491) 9,854
HE RS HEAS Selling and distribution expenses (19,422) (15,693)
TR R B At A s2 Administrative and other expenses (59,666) (69,702)
ME -~ BERZEZ (Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment
CREER),RERIERRD loss on property, plant and equipment (60,759) 4,556
WEYHE 2 AR BEEEFRE Fair value loss on investment properties,
net (570,405) (3,990)
BRATHAZ AR EEEFE Fair value loss on equity instruments,
net (1,850) (1,074)
Pok Rl ik VNG 3 Share of result from an associate (17,721) (940)
B TSR AR Finance costs 9 (121,889) (122,611)
CR TR LOSS BEFORE TAX 10 (744,781) (180,629)
Frsgi(FAX) e Income tax (expense)/credit 13 (10,954) 5,139
FRER LOSS FOR THE YEAR (755,735) (175,490)
Hibh 2wk OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hig B n] e E N R ltems that may be reclassified to profit
Bm2HE or loss in the subsequent periods:
MEE2F|EMEE Y Exchange differences arising on
MEH ZERE translation to presentation currency 41,564 117,171
o — S Qa2 HAib Share of other comprehensive income
2EKE of an associate (16) 1,407
FREMBEWE - MKRBITE  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 41,548 118,578
FAZEWREE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR (714,187) (56,912)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BHE_Z-__F=A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 March 2022

—E-_F
2022
FET
HK$’000
DNTALTEGFERAES LOSS FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
EATREBA Owners of the Company (517,798) (142,486)
IR R Non-controlling interests (237,937) (33,004)
(755,735) (175,490)
UTATEGZHEKZELE : TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
ARREEA Owners of the Company (477,154) (56,494)
IR R Non-controlling interests (237,033) (418)
(714,187) (56,912)
EATEEANELERER LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
AN #5E Basic and diluted 75 HK38.13 cents HK12.70 cents
7B il
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MRZZE-_—_F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2022

—E_-_—F
2022
FET
HK$°000

HK$'000

FEREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
mE - WBE &K Property, plant and equipment 16 465,643 523,965
WEYE Investment properties 17 1,602,793 1,564,394
R—REEE R T 2B Interest in an associate 18 - 17,737
EREEE Right-of-use assets 19 572 1,336
EmBEELE Total non-current assets 2,069,008 2,107,432
nEEE CURRENT ASSETS
BERK 2 FEHE W Completed properties held for sale 20 62,978 402,803
ke sk ES Properties under development 21 1,122,003 809,147
G KIS Contract costs 22 3,797 3,348
BHEE Contract assets 29 510 602
BRHIE - Re REA Prepayments, deposits and other

FEWFRIE receivables 23 142,103 290,070
BAREBEBERSIRL Equity instruments at fair value through

fEART A profit or loss 24 328 2,178
JE W — eI A3 A R SR IE Due from a related company 28 31 30
Al Uz e F IE Tax recoverable 776 3,208
ZRHIRE Restricted cash 25 46,702 18,197
ReERBSFEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 46,516 131,344
MEVEEBE Total current assets 1,425,744 1,660,927
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
Z 5 308 Trade payables 26 292,390 107,494
aHEE Contract liabilities 29 304,307 899,801
HhENRIERERTEA Other payables and accruals 27 304,322 205,040
FE BAE A R FIE Due to related companies 28 783,934 783,634
BN —RESHIE Due to a director 285 274
BE Borrowings 30 783,022 800,217
HEBRE Lease liabilities 19 673 812
FE R IR Tax payables 13,538 1,626
mEN B EBRE Total current liabilities 2,482,471 2,798,898
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MRZZ-_—_F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2022

—E-F
2022
THET
HK$°000 HK$’000
REAEFE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (1,056,727) (1,137,971)
EERBERRBAEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,012,281 969,461
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
= Borrowings 30 757,984 —
HeEer Lease liabilities 19 - 673
RETIAE & Deferred tax liabilities 31 3,128 15,765
ERE AL Total non-current liabilities 761,112 16,438
BESE Net assets 251,169 953,023
R EQUITY
AATEA AE(ERESS Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
R% 7K Share capital 32 339,500 339,500
& Reserves (351,038) 126,116
(11,538) 465,616
PR A2 Non-controlling interests 262,707 487,407
e Total equity 251,169 953,023
On behalf of the Board RERESE
BRI BN
Dai Dong Xing Chui Kwong Kau
HITEE FHITEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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GEEEEx
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHEZZT-_F=A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 March 2022

AARERAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bk ROEE ARRE ENRE  HUEE Zitkg Nt FBRER  ERAE
Non-
Share Share Merger  Exchange Other ~ Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve’  reserve*  reserve* losses*  Sub-total interests Total equity

tn TEn  TEn TEn Tt TR Tin o oA

HKS'000  HKB'000  HK$'000 HK$’OOO HKS'000  HKB'000  HKS'000 $000

W-Z-ZEMA-A As at 1 April 2020 206,850 1,350,993 10,000 (22,532 26,517 (1184621) 407207 486602 893,809
EAES Loss for the yeer : - - - S (4 (142489 (00 (175490
EREMEENG Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 86,992 - - 8,992 32,586 118,678
EREENREE Total compreensive income
for the year _ - - B Y. N X1
ik Share allotment 112,650 2,263 - - - - 114903 - 114,903
WENBAREL Non-controling interest
FaslitER arising from acquisiton of
subsidiaries = - - - = - - 1223 1,223

EREFEANRS Transactions with equity

holders 112,650 2,253 - - - - 114903 1208 116,126
WZEI-F As at 31 March 2021 and
=R=1+-Rk 1 April 2021
“3--¥mA-A 339,500 1,353,246 10,000 63,460 26,517 (1327,107) 465616 487407 953,003
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - (517,798)  (517,798)  (287,987)  (755,7%)
EREfRENG Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 40,644 - - 40,644 904 41,548
EREIGRLE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 40,644 - (517,798)  (477,154)  (237,033)  (714,187)
FARERTE Capital injection from non-
controling interests - - - - - - - 12,333 12,383

EREFEANRS Transactions with equity

holders - - - - - - - 12,333 12,333
WZF-ZF=A=t-R  Asat31 Mach 2022 339,500 1,353,246 10,000 104,104 26,517 (1,844,905  (11,538) 262,707 251,169
* HEREREESRAMBRARAZEEHEE The reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$140,621,000
140,621,000 7% ;0( = & = — 4 : 99,977,000 /& (2021: HK$99,977,000) and accumulated losses of HK$1,844,905,000 (2021:
JT) K 25T E181,844,905,000/8 T( =T = — 4 : HK$1,327,107,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

1,827,107,0007T) °

: AHREEREARRRR_E—=FNAEAMRETR ¢ The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal value of
PEEEFMARENBARRAEERZ Z5E - the shares issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value of the
share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the reorganisation in September

2013.
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FElaRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZT-__F=A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 March 2022

RETHHBEESRE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

—E-_F
2022
FHET
HK$°000

BRTiATE R Loss before tax (744,781) (180,629)
BTPISTEAZ Adjustments for:

FE(E — R & R ) 2 E5iE Share of loss from an associate 17,721 940
HEME  BELRREZ Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

BB () F8E plant and equipment, net 8 6 (440)
AMBWA Interest income 8 (258) (2,702)
e Depreciation 10 22,352 19,738
WEMEZ AR EEE Fair value loss on investment

properties 17 570,405 3,990
L E—REK B AR 2 EE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 42 1,413 =
HERBYHE 2 B8 Loss on disposal of investment

properties 8 - 2,156
W MENZEZREEIE,  Impairment loss/(reversal of

CREEERE) impairment loss) on property, plant

and equipment 16 60,759 (4,556)
JEWE R RFE ZRERERE  Reversal of impairment loss on loans

and interest receivables 8 - (2,907)
FRERE W Gain on bargain purchase 8 - (6,122)
BATE R AR Finance costs 9 121,889 122,611
BAREBEBEBRIR KA Unrealised loss on equity instruments

TAZARERERE at fair value through profit or loss 1,850 1,074
LBESHEA 2K LIRS ME  Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital 51,356 (46,847)
EERZIBEEEWER L, Decrease/(increase) in completed

(#0) properties held for sale 334,314 (376,962)

BRAYZEGEM), R (Increase)/decrease in properties under

development (307,782) 344,099
B 5 I WK IR Decrease in trade receivables - 176
BHEERD Decrease in contract assets o1 1,400
TERZRIE ~ e M EMEUFIE Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

WA (Em) deposits and other receivables 147,967 (21,640)
PR HIIR & 18 0 Increase in restricted cash (28,505) (17,467)
B 5 RE MR FIEE N, Increase/(decrease) in trade and other

Crd) payables 279,318 (76,599)
AHaECRD), N (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (585,837) 41,056
REFMARE Cash used in operations (109,078) (152,784)
REFE= ARKEME([HE])® People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”)

XM Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) refund

([EMBH L) - 2,849
B R B+ b (AR PRC land appreciation tax (‘PRC LAT’)

([FPE L ER ) paid (4,441) (3,267)
RETEHFMARSRETE Net cash flows used in operating

activities (113,519) (153,202)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-Z-—"F=A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 March 2022

—E-F
2022
FET
HK$°000
RETHFBERERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEYZE  HERERHEEEB Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment (3,700) (182)
HEWE - BEREEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
PS8 plant and equipment - 516
HEREYE 2 TS RIA Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties - 19,845
A YL N Addition to investment properties - (3,676)
U BERT B AT - IR #15H  Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
BRe acquired - 33,654
HERBE AT (FBREERNIRE  Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and
FIREEED) cash equivalents disposed of) 42 2,266 -
eI B MEFT RSN A Construction costs paid for investment
properties under construction (574,390) -
BUFI B Interest received 258 2,702

BRETE (TR FEEE Net cash flows (used in)/generated

REFE from investing activities (575,566) 52,859
MEITEMERERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
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HFERaRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(E-F - —F=A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 March 2022

—E-_F
2022
FHET
HK$°000
R IRITER New bank loans 36 702,488 ~
g E A E R New other loans 36 55,496 236,055
BEEME R Repayment of other loans 36 - (244,244)
BEIBITERK Repayment of bank loans 36 (36,795) (154,143)
REREDRRK Advances from related companies 36 - 393,290
RIFEE A RIEK Repayments to related companies 36 (900) =
BEEHEAG AT Repayment of principal portion of the
lease liabilities 36 (812) (42)
ERFLE Interest paid 36 (117,385) (99,120)
RMETEMERERETE Net cash flows generated from
financing activities 602,092 131,796
RERASEEYORD) NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
BinFEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (86,993) 31,453
FHReRBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 131,344 94,926
NS R B R B R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,
net 2,165 4,965
FRASRAESEEY - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
UBTHBRREITR END OF THE YEAR, represented
by bank balance and cash 46,516 131,344
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL

Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
address of the Company is located at P.O. Box 1350,
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Unit 2101, 21/F, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 38.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 were approved and authorised for issue by
the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) on 8
August 2022.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amended HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA to the Group’s financial statements
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April
2021:

o Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS

7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

° Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions

o Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(@)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2021 (continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements. The
Group has not early applied any new or amended
HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting year.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the
date they become effective.

Classiication of Liabifties as Current or Non-current
and HK Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation
of Financial Statements - Classifcation by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Containg a
Repayment on Demand Clause?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice  Disclosure of Accounting Poliies®

Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Defintion of Accounting Estimates®
Amenaments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax refated fo Assets and Liabiltes arising
from a Single Transaction®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use!
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fuling a Contract’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and s Associate or Joint Venture*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.
2 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.
¢ The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the

sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

RERE

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with
at the end of the reporting period. The amendments
also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets
or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of
the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020.
The revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings
in the interpretation to align with the Amendments
to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not
change the existing requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The HKICPA amended HKAS 1 to require entities
to disclose their material rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments define what is
“material accounting policy information’” and explain
how to identify when accounting policy information
is material. They further clarify that immaterial
accounting policy information does not need to be
disclosed, if it is disclosed, it should not obscure
material accounting information.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(continued)

To support this amendment, the HKICPA also
amended HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements to provide guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is
important, because changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively to future transactions
and other future events, but changes in accounting
policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events as well as the
current period.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments require companies to recognise
deferred tax on transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and
deductible temporary differences. They will typically
apply to transactions such as leases of lessees and
decommissioning obligations and will require the
recognition of additional deferred tax assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (continued)

The amendment should be applied to transactions
that occurs on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, entities
should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent
that it is probable that they can be utilised) and
deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with:

° right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and

o decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities, and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related
assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these
adjustments is recognised in retained earnings/
accumulated losses, or another component of equity,
as appropriate.

HKAS 12 did not previously address how to account
for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and
similar transactions and various approaches were
considered acceptable. Some entities may have
already accounted for such transactions consistent
with the new requirements. These entities will not be
affected by the amendments.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling
a contract’” comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (e.g. the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at
the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer
applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay
the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. The
amendments also add an explicit statement that
an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there
is a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction with an associate or joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business are
recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amend a number of
standards, including:

o HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permits
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by
its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

(continued)

o HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarifies
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or
the lender on other’s behalf are included.

o HKFRS 16, Leases, which amends lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

° HKAS 41
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows
when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.

, Agriculture, which removes the

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for
investment properties and financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), which is
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
approximately HK$755,735,000 and at the end of
reporting period, its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$1,056,727,000.
Furthermore, the Group had amounts due to related
companies of approximately HK$884,925,000 (note
27(a) and 28(b)) and bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$783,022,000 (note 30) that are
repayable on demand while the Group only had cash
and cash equivalents of HK$46,516,000 as at 31
March 2022. These events or conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and, therefore, that the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.
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3.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations

and to meet its financial obligations as and when

they fall due in the foreseeable future, based on the

cash flow projections of the Group covering one year

period from the date of approval for issue of these

consolidated financial statements (the “Forecast

Period”) after taking into account the following

considerations:

(il

)

The availability of undrawn credit facilities as
at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements of:

(@) RMB900,000,000 as disclosed in note
37(b); and

(b) RMB136,377,000 (approximately
HK$168,187,000) for the construction
of the Shanghai Fengxian Boill e
Pharmaceutical Valley as disclosed in
note 30(c);

An extension in June 2022 to August 2023
of the borrowing of RMB400,000,000
(approximately HK$493,300,000) as disclosed
in note 30(b) that had matured and was
repayable on demand as at 31 March 2022;

Undertakings from related parties for amounts
due to them amounting to HK$884,925,000 as
at 31 March 2022 (notes 27(a) and 28(b)) that
they will not demand the Group for repayment
until the Group is in the position to repay;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Pre-sales and sales proceeds from properties
(notes 20 and 21) located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the estimated
revenue based on actual performance since
its future possible development as well as
the expected business development over
the Forecast Period. The realisation of the
forecasted sales and pre-sales depends upon
the development of the COVID-19 pandemic
and quarantine measures implemented by the
government in the PRC;

As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group is negotiating
with potential investor(s) for possible disposal
of certain non-current assets; and

As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, an independent third
party agreed to provide a credit facility of
RMB300,000,000 to the Group over the
Forecast Period, which is interest bearing at
13% p.a., repayable within two years from the
drawdown date. The facility is secured by 95%
equity interest in Shanghai Baoxian Industrial
Co., Ltd. (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company), and is guaranteed by a related party.
As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had not drawn
down any loan from such credit facility.
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3.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (continued)

Significant uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Company will be able to achieve
its plans as described above. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern would
depend upon the Group’s ability to:

(i) complete the possible disposal of certain non-
current assets and collecting sale proceeds
in accordance with the amount and timing
expected by the Company; and

(if) proceed with the pre-sales and sales of
properties located in the PRC in accordance
with the amount and timing expected by the
Company.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Should the
Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their net realisable amounts,
to provide for any future liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities, respectively. The effect
of these adjustments has not been reflected in these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

()

Functional and presentation currency

Previously, the Directors regarded Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$") as the functional currency of the Company.
Upon completion of the acquisition of Anway Real
Estate Limited (“Anway”) and its subsidiaries in
April 2017, the Directors reassessed the Company’s
functional currency and considered that the functional
currency of the Company should be changed from
HK$ to Renminbi (‘RMB”) as RMB has become the
currency that mainly influences the sales prices of
goods and services and the costs of providing those
goods and services of the Company’s significant
subsidiaries. The change of functional currency of the
Company was applied prospectively from the date of
change in accordance with HKAS 21 “The Effect of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"). All values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

(REfEFEZRR AR A R) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 115



FEMEERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4.

FEETHE

(a)

EBEHRGEREEE

REMBHRREBEARE REM
BRARNMBERER - KERFZ
BETZR S MEHRIANKRER
BN TIRmESEEMBHRRE R
HEE - RERBBENTUY
o RIERR D IEHBAMEE
BEZHERRE  RUEBRT -
EIENBEAER -

REARBREEZHRBLRFZ
XE - THEBRMERBER
SEHERERBRMmE)FTA
FeErmKEE o LB - KB
RBEIZ W BRI THBEAEE
SRTBRERNKEEMKE QA
PRERE—2 -

BB —AEBEIREE
HaxBnEE EtiREts
REEE - NEEREBS HHE
R EARR - REE —HA%E
BN EERE R TIEERE
AEEEFEMKREN—HEEE
LREABERELBEREAREE
B2 - ARFTIB Y — A%
BB NEERDRRIELHE

116  Annual Report 2022 F3f

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group. In
determining whether a particular set of activities and
assets is a business, the Group assesses whether
the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred
in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

()

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable during
the year.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at cost
and thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted
for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

RERE

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the interest in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial

assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and the costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so
as to write off costs over their estimated useful
lives, using a straight-line basis, at the rates shown
below per annum. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of the reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
expected useful life and
period of lease or 25%

Plant and machinery 25%

20% to 25%

20% to 50%

25% to 33%

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the property’s deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Leasing (continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property, they are carried at fair value.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at
rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight
line basis.

over the shorter of lease or
40 years.

Leasehold land and
buildings

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Leasing (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iiij amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change
in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Leasing (continued)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties

to a number of tenants. Rental income from operating

leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-

line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial

direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an

operating lease are added to the carrying amount of

the leased asset and recognised as an expense on

the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised
in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or
loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
ECLs on trade receivables, contract assets
and financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors, current
creditworthiness of the debtors and the
economic environment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)
For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-
credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related companies and
a director, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total land and
buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based
on the prevailing market prices, on an individual
property basis.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be
held for sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value and comprise
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as
current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected
to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.

(i) Revenue from foundation piling business
The Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset or work in progress that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over
time, by reference to the progress certificate
(by reference to the amount of completed
works confirmed by surveyor) issued by the
customers.

The Group recognises revenue over time
only if it can reasonably measure its
progress toward complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation. However, if the Group
cannot reasonably measure the outcome
but expects to recover the costs incurred in
satisfying the performance obligation, then it
recognises revenue to the extent of the costs
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue from property development
business

For property development and sales contract
for which the control of the property is
transferred at a point in time and there is
no enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date,
revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the
Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

Property management service income derived
from the provision of property management
services is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance
as the entity performs. The Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided
and recognises as revenue in the amount
to which the Group has a right to invoice
and corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

Revenue from catering services

Revenue from catering service is recognised
at a point in time when the food and catering
service have been served, and customer
payments are made to the Group upon
completion of catering service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
)] Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has
been established.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s
right to consideration in exchange for
services that the Group has transferred to
a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the
Group completes the foundation piling
contracts under such services contracts but
yet certified by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by customers,
or (i) the customers retain retention money
to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised
as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced
to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the
output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Revenue recognition (continued)

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when whose costs meet
all of the following criteria:

o The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

o The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future; and

° The costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the cost relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
including the customers’ right to return goods, the
Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled using the expected value
method.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

(k)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Variable consideration (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.

Sales with a right of return
For a sale of properties with a right of return, the
Group recognises all of the following:

(@ revenue for the transferred properties in the
amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue
would not be recognised for the products
expected to be returned/exchanged);

(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to
cost of sales) for its right to recover properties
from customers.

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Income tax (continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Foreign currency (continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group was
not entitled to any forfeited contributions to reduce
its future contributions (2021: Nil).

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Employee benefits (continued)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of amounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the employment law of the
respective countries in which the Group operates
is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. Long service payments are
assessed using the projected unit credit method.
The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to the income statement so
as to spread the cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of the
actuaries. Long service payments are discounted
to determine the present value of obligation and
reduced by entitlement accrued under the Group’s
defined contribution plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised over the average remaining
service lives of employees. Past service costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the average period until the benefits become
vested.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

RERE

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair
value is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the
end of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the
cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually
vest. Market vesting conditions are factored into the
fair value of the options granted. As long as all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge
is made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is
not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting
condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit
or loss over the remaining vesting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

Impairment of non-current assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

right-of-use assets;

- interest in an associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)]

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iif) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iif) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Company’s parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(s) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis and its validity depends on the
successful implementation of the measures disclosed in note
3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Fair value of investment properties of the Group are quoted
by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including comparable
market transactions, appropriate replacement costs. In
relying on the valuation, the management has exercised
judgement and is satisfied that the method of valuation
is reflective of the current market conditions. As at 31
March 2022, the fair value of investment properties was
HK$1,602,793,000 (2021: HK$1,564,394,000).

Provision for write-down in value of completed
properties held for sale

As explained in note 4, the Group’s completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The directors make significant judgments in
determining the net realisable value of these properties.

Based on the experience of the Directors and the nature
of the subject properties, the Directors determine the net
realisable value of these properties by reference to the
estimated market prices of the properties, which takes into
account a number of factors including the recent prices
of similar property types in the same project or by similar
properties, and the prevailing and forecasted real estate
market conditions in the PRC.

If there is a decrease in estimated market prices, this may

result in write-downs for these properties. Such write-downs
require the use of judgment and estimates of the Directors.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables

The provision for ECLs on trade receivables, contract
assets and other receivables are based on assumptions
about ECLs. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience and forward-looking information at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to profit or loss. The carrying amounts of
other receivables are disclosed in note 23.

Sale of properties with variable consideration

When a contract provides a customer with a right to return
the property within a specific period, the Group estimated
expected returns using the expected value methods under
HKFRS 15. For properties expected to be returned, the
Group shall present a refund liability and an asset for the
right to recover property from a customer separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 March
2022, there was no refund liabilities and right of return
assets recognised based on the historical experience and
the forecast of property prices in the PRC.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting date
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the fair value less cost of disposal
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and
tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is made based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Depreciation charge is revised if the estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are different from the
previous estimation. Estimated useful lives are reviewed, at
the end of each of the reporting period, based on changes
in circumstances. The carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment is disclosed in note 16.

Provision for litigation

Provision for litigation is measured in accordance with the
legal opinion and relevant laws and regulation applicable in
Hong Kong at the end of the reporting period, and using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present value of those
cash flows. Appropriate provisions are made for legal claims
or actions against the Group on the basis of likely outcome,
but no provisions are made for those which in the view of
management are unlikely to succeed.

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC and Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of the related
payments. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will have impact on the income
tax and/or deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Land appreciation taxes

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiary of the Company which is engaged in property
development business in the PRC are subject to land
appreciation taxes, which have been included in income
tax expense in profit or loss. However, the Group has not
finalised its LAT returns with the relevant tax authorities in
respect of the property development project. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax expense and provision for land appreciation taxes in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties held
by the Group in the PRC are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. As a result, the deferred taxes on change in
fair value of investment properties are recognised taking into
account LAT and enterprise income tax payable upon sales
of those investment properties in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions. The Group reportable
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Property development: sale of properties and
provision of property management services;

i. Healthcare holiday resort development and operation:
sale of properties, rental income, provision of elderly
home care, healthcare and leisure services;

i Foundation piling: contracts for foundation piling
business; and

iv. Securities investment: Trading and investment in
securities.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax
except that interest income, share of result of an associate,
finance costs as well as head office and corporate income
and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude due from a related company,
interest in an associate, tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.
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6. IEHE@® 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
NHBEETREBENBEEQAZTIE - & Segment liabilities exclude due to related companies,
B EMAHE ECHREaEAREM borrowings, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities and other
KOMBREERCEARE  RAR% unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
ZABENIRMERNEEER o liabilities are managed on a group basis.
BE-Z-_—_F=A=1+—HLEFE Year ended 31 March 2022

ELERE
NERR  BRREE WEATE BERE b
Healthcare
holiday resort
development
Property and  Foundation Securities
development operation piling  investment Total

T TiEn FiEn TiEn TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A Segment revenue
REINPEP 2z Revenue from external customers 1,004,506 11,566 - - 1,016,162
PEHEE Segment results 91,828 (686,329) (860) (1,850) (597,211)
HMEHA Interest income 258
AME—ABERFZEE Share of result from an associate (17,721)
BBRA Finance costs (121,889)
rEREMRD ERZFE Corporate and other unallocated

expenses, net* (8,218)
BB AER Loss before tax (744,781)

* TERHEMADEASIFZBREESHH - * Corporate and other unallocated expenses mainly include Directors’
BRABREERFEEER - remuneration, consultancy fee, legal and professional fee.
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72 W E (F|) 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Hitm BER Other Segment Information
BE_ZT-_—_F=A=+—-HLEE Year ended 31 March 2022
ELERE
NERR  RRREE HETE B5RE £t i
Healthcare

holiday resort
Property development  Foundation  Securities
development and operation piling  investment Others Total
TERL TEn TEn Tén Thn TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ik Depreciation 1,888 19,684 5 767 8 22,352
TRRENE DR E Fair value (gains)/loss on investment
(k&) BB properties under construction (3,357) 573,762 - - - 570,405
B BERERTIE L Fair value loss on equity instruments at
BRI EEETE fair value through proft or loss, net - - - 1,850 - 1,850
% BEREEL Impairment loss on property, plant and
AEER equipment - 60,759 - - - 60,759
ERRR Capital expenditures’ 530,708 8,397 - - 6 548,201
* BARSBIEREYE  BEREEARE * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
BEME(BREKERBRARZEE) ° equipment and investment properties including assets from the

acquisition of subsidiaries.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Other Segment Information (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021

REERRE
NEER BRREE
Healthcare
holiday resort
Property  development Foundation Securities

development  and operation piling investment
THT THL T
HK$'000 ' HK$'000

A Segment revenue
REIMPEP 2 Mz Revenue from external customers 204,342 11,762 606 - 216,710
DEEE Segment results 2,603 (36,804) (1,594) (1,138) (36,933)
MEWA Interest income 2,702
AME—FBERRZEE  Share of result from an associate (940)
FBRA Finance costs (122,611)
KA NE Unallocated gains 6,122
PEREMANERZEF  Corporate and other unallocated

& expenses, net* (28,969)
BHAIEE Loss before tax (180,629)

* TEREMARDERLFZBREEEHH - o Corporate and other unallocated expenses mainly include Directors’

HABEAEREXER -
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DR E (&) 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Hih o EE R () Other Segment Information (continued)
HE-_T-—F=ZA=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2021

REERRE

NFER  REREE
Healthcare

holiday resort

Property  development  Foundation Securities

development  and operation piling  investment Others
T BT i T T T
HK$'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Depreciation 1,249 18,223 58 208 - 19,738
REMF AR EBRTE Fair value loss on investment properies,
net = 3,990 = = = 3,990
HERENEZER Loss on disposal of investment properties - 2,156 - - = 2,156
RAAERBREIEZRA  Fairvalue loss on equity instruments at
TEMEERFE fair value through proft or loss, net = = = 1,074 = 1074
LENE  BRRAMEL Gain on disposal of property, plant and
W58 equipment, net (178) ) (260) - - (440)
BERWERRASZ Reversal of impairment loss on loans and
HEER interest receivables - - - - (2,907) (2,907)
GEER T e Reversal of impairment loss on property,
REER plant and equipment - (4,556) - - - (4,556)
BREY Capital expenditures® 7,364 3827 8 - - 11,199
* BARZBIEREYE  BEREHEARE * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
BEME(BREREKERNBARIZEE) ° equipment and investment properties including assets from the

acquisition of subsidiaries.
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6. DR E (&) 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Hihp TER(E]) Other Segment Information (continued)
—E--_#£=H=+—H 31 March 2022
ELERE
NERE  REREE HEITH BERE agt
Healthcare
holiday resort
development
Property and  Foundation Securities
development operation piling investment Total
TR TR TR TR THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PBEE Segment assets 1,913,291 1,568,311 8,993 3,304 3,493,899
ik : Reconciliation:
el —mEE A AFE Due from a related company 31
Ml EHE Tax recoverable 776
PEREMRAREES Corporate and other unallocated
assets# 46
EEAE Total assets 3,494,752
PHEE Segment liabilities 665,783 213,090 26 22,793 901,692
i Reconciliation:
[EfTEAE A FIFUE Due to related companies 783,934
EE Borrowings 1,541,006
ERHIE Tax payables 13,538
ERHERR Deferred tax liabilities 3,128
PEREMAAEEE Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities 285
BfEAE Total liabilities 3,243,583
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DR E (&) 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Hih o EE R () Other Segment Information (continued)
—E-—F=A=+—H 31 March 2021
REERE
nEER  EEREE
Healthcare
holiday resort
Property  development Foundation Securities
development  and operation piling investment
THL THT T THT
HK$'000
PREE Segment assets 1,639,342 2,091,055 7,852 7080 3,745,329
ik - Reconciliation:
il il AN A T Interest in an associate 17,737
el —mEE A RE Due from a related company 30
R ERA Tax recoverable 3,208
PEREMRAREES Corporate and other unallocated
assets# 2,055
BE4E Total assets 3,768,359
IHEE Segment liabilities 1,123,036 86,143 25 4,616 1,213,820
i Reconciliation:
[EfEEE A FIFE Due to related companies 783,634
e Borrowings 800,217
JEfIHE Tax payables 1,626
BERBEE Deferred tax liabilities 15,765
PEREMAAEEE Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities 274
SELE Total liabilities 2,815,336
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6. 2 EWE @
HEREH :

WHEHAEFPUERKE - ERBE
ENEBEME /K °

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Geographical Information:

The revenue information is based on the location of
customers. The non-current assets are based on the
location of the assets.

REINEEF 2z W

Revenue from

FRBEE

external customers Non-current assets

—E_-C —E__F

2022 2022

TExT TFHExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
s> Hong Kong - 606 585 1,357
B g 3 Mainland China 1,016,162 216,104 2,068,423 2,106,075
1,016,162 216,710 2,069,008 2,107,432

EREEEFNER

B2 -_—_FRr-_FT-_—F=ZA=+
—BIEFE  SARPHEAEEZEWK
HERR10%

W 58 2 #r

Revenue from contracts with

customers

R

RE—FRE At a point in time
Bk A Over time

Timing of revenue recognition

Information About Major Customers

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the largest
customer constitutes less than 10% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Disaggregation of revenue

NERR ELERBRRRGE
Healthcare holiday resort

WETHE

el —F-—F Bkl —F-_F
2021 2022 2021 2022
FAL TExn TET TEx

HK$'000 HKS'000 L TEH] HKS'000 LY

1,002,669 201,519 3,187 2,529 - =

1,927 2,823 2,519 1,678 - 606

1,004,596 204,342 5,706 4,102 - 606
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W = 7. REVENUE

WEEFANRE N EMERIEHDEE Revenue represents gross proceeds, net of business tax,
BRBARRERBEXASEERBESN from the sale of properties and provision of properties
FRS s IRBRE (FNBRE X)) - management services; and provision of accommodation

services of serviced apartments during the year.

W AT An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—E__F
2022 2021
FExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
KEEFE#Z e - Revenue from contract with customer:
WEITETRE 2 A4 Contract income of foundation piling
A works - 606
L ER S Sales of properties 1,002,669 201,519
RV EEBIRE Provision of properties management
services 4,446 4,396
BEARTS Catering service 3,187 2,529
1,010,302 209,050
KEEMAIE e - Revenue from other source:
REEMNZEEWEZ  Rental income from leasing properties with
AL UWA fixed payment 5,860 7,660
1,016,162 216,710
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8. EHMWARWKI®(EHE)THE 8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR (LOSSES),

NET
HA WA R Wamsk (B8 ) FREOMAT - An analysis of other income and gains or (losses), net, is as
follows:

—E__F
2022
FExT
HK$°000
EEEERE Gain on bargain purchase - 6,122
FEWA Interest income 258 2,702
W - MENERE  Written-off of property, plant and
equipment (6) 440
HEREYE 2 F1E Loss on disposal of investment properties - (2,156)
HE—FEWEARZE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
| (1,413) —
el EZ A B ZRME  Reversal of impairment loss on loans and
=tz interest receivables - 2,907
Hi Others (330) (161)
(1,491) 9,854
9. BIEEA 9. FINANCE COSTS
WA DITUT An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—E- 5
2022
FExT

HK$’000

EERAHEBEZFIE  Interest on borrowings and contract

liabilities 264,465 182,132
KE—RREE AR EF  Interest on loan from a related company
ZHE 1,200 1,200
HEBEZFE Interest on lease liabilities 102 35
B BARCVEEZIRE  Less: Imputed interest capitalised into
LEYS &=L investment properties under
EZHEFRE construction and properties under
development (143,878) (60,756)
121,889 122,611
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10. PBRELAIES IR 10. LOSS BEFORE TAX
REBBRBATBREIAINER, GEA)T The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
PIFIRBER (crediting):
—E-—F
2022
FERT
HK$°000
ZEET NS Auditor’s remuneration 1,600 2,467
BEEMEKAR Cost of properties sold 893,551 184,738
B R AR TS AN Cost of services provided 8,849 8,113
e - Depreciation:
FREEE Right of use assets
— T B ERERFER — Land and buildings with ownership
A+ R ETF interest held for own use (note 16)
(H#£16) 20,656 18,893
—HafEE ARy — Other properties leased for own use
¥ (HfF19) (note 19) 764 191
—HmE - BKE & — Other property, plant and equipment
R (HE16) (note 16) 932 654
HNEE Z BB FRE Foreign exchange differences, net 8,358 11,041
HGHATAE AR 2  Expense relating to short-term leases 271 280
WE - BMENRZREZR  Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment
B8, CR{EEEH  loss) on property, plant and equipment
) (Ktat16) (note 16) 60,759 (4,556)
BB/ (TEIEE Employee benefit expenses (excluding
EEHM(AET11)): directors’ remuneration (note 11)):
—T&  HeMIEAD - Wages, salaries and bonus 26,120 25,767
— [ME BB KRG & — Contribution to defined contribution
R plans 4,298 2,069
B ERETEASE Less: Amount capitalised (5,225) (1,216)
25,193 26,620
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11. EEHM 11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
EXFHMEENT - Directors’ remuneration is disclosed as follows:
#¢ 2ER mEBHK
we EN7ls BiEfeA HE L Has
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefit in  Discretionary  contribution Total
Fees kind bonus plans remuneration
TEn Tén TEn TERL TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CF: 2022:
yrES: Executive directors:
FROEE Mr. Dai Dong Xing 500 - - - 500
REBLE Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai 120 - - - 120
620 - - - 620
FHTES: Non-executive director:
ERREL Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 120 - - - 120
BUEHTES Independent non-executive
directors:
RERLL Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Bill 120 - - - 120
TRERE Mr. Xu Liang Wei 120 - - - 120
Tk Mr. Wang Zhe 120 - - - 120
360 - - - 360
@it Total 1,100 - - - 1,100
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11. ESHFM@E 11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Contribution

Salaries, to defined

allowances and  Discretionary contribution
Fees  benefit in kind bonus plans  remuneration
TAT TAT TAT TAL TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E--E: 2021:
YTES: Executive directors:
HRTEE Mr. Dai Dong Xing - 500 = - 500
REGTE Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai - 120 = = 120
_ 620 - - 620
FuTES: Non-executive director:
EXREE Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 120 - - - 120
BUHTES . Independent non-executive
directors:
ey M. Chan Chi Keung, Bily 120 - - - 120
TRERE Mr. Xu Liang Wei 120 = = = 120
Tk Mr. Wang Zhe 120 = = = 120
360 - - - 360
Bt Total 480 620 - - 1,100
REBEE_E-_—_F=ZA=+—HBLHF During the year ended 31 March 2022, no emoluments were
B AEEVERESZ T EMMSE paid by the Group to the Directors as an inducement to join
BIMASKRMARE B2 ZEEL or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
BEERE (2T —F : &) - office (2021: Nil).
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12.

TEmEFHES
RAFER  IER=HREETEE—
RER(ZFT-_—F: —REF) HH
PHFFISE N B EE1 e IR (ZFE - —
FORFARREZZESFHEEF
RNZFMHBIT

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one director (2021: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the four (2021: four) highest
paid employees who are not a director of the Company are

as follows:

—E__F
2022 2021
FExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
e EZMREYFZ  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,476 4,531
BB IEAL Discretionary bonus 262 138
7] 7€ B8 SR ET B K Contribution to defined contribution plans 36 160
2,774 4,829

PN TN EEZFEERRFER
ABIAT

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

2022 2021

£ %1,000,0007 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 2
1,000,001 7T % 1,500,00057  HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1

2,000,001/ 7L 22,500,000  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1

4 4

RAFER  TEEEREMNRSHE
ENERLAREREEAHE( =T =—
FE) AKEAYEAAKREEANHRS
FiEE XN EAMESERIMAKRMA
R B 7 SRS E R RER A -
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During the year, no director or any of the highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2021:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.



13.

Frig®i
REET-Z_F=-A=+—H1HF
B AEELETERBCEANEGRD
1% 82,000,000 7% 7T 2 1 &1 FE &% B i F
28.25% (ZZF = —F :8.25%) KT
fhEHEERHF 216.5% (-T2 - —4F -
16.5%)5TH - REEZT__F=H=
T—HLEFE  AKEETHMER
BAFNGEBRIREFERBUEF216.5%
—E-—F :16.5%):1E °

R BREL Z PEFRESHIRMGERS
SR o5% (=B =—4F : 25%)5HE o

PR IR ER 2 BEHRBEREY R
M EREBROIFAE 2 BRM AR -
THIRERCIRIEE L REREI0%E
60% EHEAE(ER) - MEETER
R - BREITHARR - BEKARIARE
MEBERFX °
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13.

INCOME TAX

For the year ended 31 March 2022, Hong Kong Profits
Tax of the selected entity of the Group was calculated at
8.25% (2021: 8.25%) of the first HK$2,000,000 estimated
assessable profits and 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the remaining
estimated assessable profits. Hong Kong profits Tax for the
remaining entities within the Group was calculated at 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

EIT arising from the PRC is calculated at 25% (2021: 25%)
of the estimated assessable profits.

The provision of PRC LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided, as appropriate, at
ranges of progressive rates from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions
including land costs, borrowing costs and the relevant
property development expenditure.

—E-—F
2022
FET
HK$’000

FARRAY Charge for the year:
BNEA— AR B 1 PS AR Current — PRC EIT 18,940 260
FRRERE — PRI EMSM Over-provision — PRC EIT (3,260) (2,585)
BER — A B T i B {E Current — PRC LAT 7,911 2,686
EERIA(H5E31) Deferred tax (note 31) (12,637) (5,500)
Friggifs (%) Income tax expense/(credit) 10,954 (5,139)
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13. BB @) 13. INCOME TAX (continued)
BEA (KRR BRI ) ETEME A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss
EEARKRBRAIBEZHRERY (K before tax at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the
B ZEERINT Company is headquartered, is as follows:
—EB-—F
2022 2021
FH&T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FRA% AT ES 1B Loss before tax (744,781) (180,629)
BEERE16.5% Tax credit at the statutory tax rate of
- —F :16.5%) 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)
FTE IR R (122,889) (29,804)
REMBEAERGE 2 Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
[ I)EENCIRN Gk RS2 operating in other jurisdictions
a0 (66,011) (8,095)
BARBRBAZ Tax effect of incomes not taxable for tax
Mg E purpose (4,467) (3,282)
EE Y Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
MR 2 tax purpose 164,420 17,386
AL RIARERZ Utilisation of tax losses previously not
TRIEE1E recognised - (3,186)
RERZBIBEBEZ Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
MG E 35,248 21,731
B I IRET 2 Tax effect of PRC LAT
MG 2 7,911 2,686
F—FEBEEE Over-provision in respect of prior year (3,260) (2,585)
Hith Others 2 10
Frisgifs (%) Income tax expense/(credit) 10,954 (5,139)
14. BRE 14. DIVIDENDS
BE2—_ T - F#=-A=+—HItFE#H No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
E A EBRNEMRE  BREH March 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
RARIEZZRGEMBRE(ZE=Z— end of the reporting period (2021: Nil).
Fom) e
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15. BREE 15. LOSS PER SHARE
RAGHEEABGEERERNREEEE Calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
TIRB A T 8RR HE ¢ attributable to owners of the Company is based on:

—E-—F
2022
FERT
HK$°000
ARARIHE AERERN  Loss for the year attributable to owners of
[gi! the Company (517,798) (142,486)

R E

Number of shares

FTESRENREE  Weighted average number of ordinary
ZENEEITERRKR shares in issue during the year for the

hnEF 5 & purpose of basic loss per share 1,358,000 1,122,207
FREEEEEFRENEERER @ R Diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per
ARz T -_—Fx-_FT-—F=A share because the Group has no dilutive potential ordinary
=+ —HIEFEAREEL EFAEET shares outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2022
EINBEEE LB - and 2021.
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16. Y¥ - BERRZE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HELH
BENEEE HEREE GAREE BOERG hE REF st
Furniture Leasehold
Leasehold  Plant and and Office Motor  land and
ZE-CEZH=+-H 31 March 2022 improvements machinery  Fixtures equipment  vehicles  buildings Total

TR Tér  TEn Tér  TEn TiEn TR
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RZZZ—4WA-R: At 1 April 2021:
B Cost 3,025 7,704 562 1,189 1,747 562402 577549
ESiEiE Accumulated depreciation (3,458) (7,704) (403) (997) (1,325 (39,697)  (53,584)
REFE Net carrying amount 467 - 179 192 422 52705 523,965
R_E_—FRA-H At 1 April 2021, net of accumulated
MREs1TE depreciation 467 - 179 192 42 52705 523,065
E Addtions - - 701 55 - 2,044 3,700
FRERINERR Depreciation provided during the
year (479) - (146) (1) (216)  (20,656)  (21,589)
HE-RHBAREEL Disposals arising from disposal
HEEH of a subsidiary - - - (16) (19) - (35)
i Written off - - (@ (3 - - (6)
AEER Impairment loss - - - - - (60,759)  (60,759)
BN AR Exchange realignment 12 - 13 7 13 20,321 20,366

NZE-ZF=A=1-H ' At 31 March 2022, net of accumulated
TREERRE depreciation and impairment - - 744 144 200 464555 465643

AZZIZE=A=T-H: At31 March 2022

R Cost 4,067 7,652 1,233 1,051 1643 588628 604,274
ZTERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (4,067) (7,652) (489) (907) (1443 (124,073)  (138,631)
REAE Net carrying amount - - 44 144 200 464555 465643
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16. ¥%¥ - BERRZE @ 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

HELH

RENERE RBERER GRRRE BASH kigF

Leasehold

Leasehold  Plant and Furniture 0)i{¥ Motor and and

31 March 2021 improvements  machinery  and Fixtures  equipment vehicles  buildings
T T T T T i
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

RZZZTEMA-F At 1 April 2020:
A Cost 1,649 9,951 1,160 1,004 1,357 509,619 525,400
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (1,649) (9,929) (993) (1,492) (1,250) (21,277) (36,590)
REAE Net carrying amount - 2 167 172 107 488342 488810
RZFZTERA-R At 1 April 2020, net of acoumulated
MRZ3HE depreciation - 2 167 172 107 488342 488810
hE Additions - - 56 49 7 - 182
YEHEAR Acquisition of subsidiaries 760 - 78 52 387 6,064 7,341
ERiR NERE Depreciation provided during the
year 312) ) (55) (122 (143 (18899  (19,547)
s Witten off - - (34 (19 (23) - (76)
RERRERD Reversal of impairment loss - - - - - 4,556 4,556
3k Exchange realignment 19 - (33) 60 17 42,636 42,699
RZB-—E=A=+—H At31 March 2021, net of accumulated
MBEHERAE depreciation and impaiment 467 - 179 192 42 52705 523,965
A\ZE-—F=f=1-H: At 31 March 2021:
LA Cost 3,925 7,704 582 1,189 1,747 562,402 577,549
ZTERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impaiment 6458 (1704 (403) 097 (1325 (39697 (53584
REAE Net carrying amount 467 - 179 102 42 52706 523965
R-EBE-_—_F=A=+—H  A&EBKE At 31 March 2022, the Group’s leasehold land and
[ {8 460,126,000 T( = F = — F : buildings with a carrying amount of HK$460,126,000 (2021:
517,285,000/ T) 2 HE Tt RIEFE HK$517,285,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
ER RS A S BERMRTT REAM loans granted to the Group (note 30).

B (FIFE30) °
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16.

W% -~ BERRE @

REBEE-_FT_—_F=A=+—BH1tF
E BRESEEEREZ AERER
FEENURFRRAEETSNEBET
BEREEHRREELHS  BEREERELE
EBREERKECEHANEE L RIEF
ZRERR - AEEFTEOREEBBR
ctELEV((REELEEN ) 2HEL
REFZARKSE At  BEE
BEZERBRREESDBZZEME - BE
REHEZEAEMEZEATKESELD
460,126,000/ 7T - RiraEmkEME
T Y 2 5= P 7 72 U1 L /E5 4814960, 759,000
BT e

E-_ZE_-_—F=A=+—HIF
Z o REeEaEaEmEERARE

R BICOVID-19&Z 151% 3 1& IR E AT
B o

FRREEBRRERREEZHSES
Bza KB RAERLBUER
AREREERAEE - AEEBREE
EBUNDIAEFERFTEYHRELE
AF1IRAAES R=AERNAAE
B - REHRER LA D S5
RAZAARERRBRERE=H

FRBETELEZLS -

170 Annual Report 2022 “F3f

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, management
identified impairment indicator of leasehold land and
buildings in respect of healthcare holiday resort development
and operation due to a lower occupancy rate for the
healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai than budgeted and
potential disruptions and introduction of regulation policies
intensively over the real estate market in mainland China.
The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings allocated to the respective
cash-generating unit (the “CGU”) and as a result the
carrying amount of these property, plant and equipment was
written down to their recoverable amounts of approximately
HK$460,126,000 in the segment of healthcare holiday
resort development and operation. An impairment loss
of approximately HK$60,759,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, a reversal of impairment
loss of approximately HK$4,556,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income due to a favourable turn from the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC.

The recoverable amounts of CGU in relation to healthcare
holiday resort development and operation was determined
based on fair value less costs to disposal using direct
comparison method. The fair value measurement of the
Group’s CGU has been categorised into three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level in the fair value
hierarchy in arriving at the above recoverable amount at the
end of the reporting period is considered under Level 3.

There was no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.
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16. Y% - MERRE @) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
P AR 2 fh (B # iy R A 2 = 28 A BUE Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
BEmT key inputs to the valuation:

EXTTRERARER
FRERRNE  HERRE MERARIEZBAUE EERMETIE FUREBAMBRANEZBE

Property, plant and Valuation technique and key Significant unobservable inputs Relationship of unobservable
equipment held by the Group inputs and range or weighted average input to fair value

PBRUERMBEERR(E  ERLEA DT EEZENERRES STHRTELS  AAEES
—HREZH) Direct comparison method B BELESEMEREZ o The higher the market price per m?,
Healthcare holiday resort (phase Estimated market prices below the higher the fair value
I'and ll) of Shanghai Sheshan ¥ Z&ABEASTHK([FH have been taking into account
Project KDEFmE location and other individual
The key input is estimated market factors such as building age,
price per square meter (‘m?’) building facilties.

REE(RE)WENS : N T
12,000/ 237,000 7T(=
T—F N F21,00081E
45,000%7T)

For residential (apartment)
properties: Ranging from
HK$12,000 to HK$37,000
(2021: Ranging from
HK$21,000 to HK$45,000)

RETRIE)MEMS : N T
37,000/ 262,000 7T (=
TZ—% : /1956,0008LE
118,000%7T)

For residential (villa) properties:
Ranging from HK$37,000
to HK$62,000 (2021:
Ranging from HK$56,000 to
HK$118,000)

REEMEMS : NF62,00087T
F185,0008 (2= —F
71995,000/8 L £414,000/8

)

For commercial properties:
Ranging from HK$62,000
to HK$185,000 (2021:
Ranging from HK$95,000 to

HK$414,000)
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16. Y% - MERRE @) 16.

AEBEESRPREERA - R HER
EEEREERROEMRE - HEHR
BA0%F - T HAEMZEFIAC IFH —
R - BERB T EENER - &
TEEBEXNEMFR -

BHEBEERRNE D cERREEERE
EAMIT -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group has obtained the right to use a parcel of land in
the PRC for its healthcare holiday resort development and
operation. The lease term is 40 years. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to lease the land, and there are no
ongoing payments to be made under the terms of land
lease.

The analysis of carrying amount of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

—E=-= =
=A=+—8H MA—H
31 March 2022 1 April 2021
FET FHET
HK$’000

REEERZ2AELH  Ownership interests in leasehold land and
NMIEF 2 i HENEZS © buildings held for own use, carried at

AT E R AND BR the depreciated cost 464,555 522,705
BIEERAZEMEE Other properties leased for own use,

¥ - IR ER AR carried at the depreciated cost (note 19)

(H15%19) 572 1,336

17. BEYE 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
g2%I T st
Under

Completed construction Total

FET FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

RZZEZ—FWMA—H At 1 April 2021 815,830 748,564 1,564,394

NE Additions 4,747 539,754 544,501

DRERD Decrease in fair value (164,654) (405,751) (570,405)

e W 3R Exchange realignment 31,121 33,182 64,303

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2022 687,044 915,749 1,602,793
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17. REWE@) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

BT TE3E
Under

Completed construction
FHTT FAT

RZZE_FFMA—H At 1 April 2020 774,405 691,019 1,465,424
RE Additions 3,676 - 3,676
k= Disposals (22,001) = (22,001)
DRERD Decrease in fair value (8,990) - (3,990)
BE 5 A= Exchange realignment 63,740 57,545 121,285
MNZZE-—F=A=+—H At 31 March 2021 815,830 748,564 1,564,394

RZBE--F=A=+—8 ' A&£BKE
M1{81,582,690,0008 L( =T = —F :
1,545,091,000%8 7T ) 2 % E M E EHK
HUMEBAEBERNRITREMER
(FF5E30) ©

AEBEREMERFHELEHERRA
SHFERNRERSE °

REBZRENERTEREMERZ
E-_—F-A=t+—BERHBIEE
EERGEMEELCEBRAERARE
172 5B B % 687,044,000 7% T.( 18
LM ARES557,100,00070) (=T = —
 : 815,830,000 (HE R AR
688,900,000 7T )) & 915,749,000 7% JT
(HHERARKT742,549,0007T) (=T =
—4F : 748,564,000 L (HHER AR
632,100,0007T)) » EiR K4 BIE M5
M BE  BUMRELTHIBEEE
£ ASBETEENETHEREMGE
BT R R AR o

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$1,582,690,000 (202 1:
HK$1,545,091,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
loans granted to the Group (note 30).

The Group’s investment properties planned to hold under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
PUrposes.

The Group’s investment properties and investment
properties under construction were valued on 31 March
2022 based on valuations performed by Graval Consulting
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer, at
HK$687,044,000 equivalent to RMB557,100,000 (2021:
HK$815,830,000 (equivalent to RMB688,900,000)) and
HK$915,749,000 (equivalent to RMB742,549,000) (2021:
HK$748,564,000 (equivalent to RMB632,100,000))
respectively. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s management has
discussion with the valuer on the assumptions and result
when the valuation is performed.
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17. REYHE® 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
REEZIREMEFIBOAT ¢ Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are as
follows:

E AEEEGER
Attributable interest

Location of the Group

PR EEMmTRALEREE1S ([ EERLIER ) [EE

No. 1 Sheyuan Road, Sheshan Town, Songjiang District, Commercial 68%

Shanghai, PRC (“Shanghai Sheshan Project”)

FEEEEETERERER PR RE((SBER]) [EES
Nanhu Scenic Zone, Yueyanglou District, Yueyang City, Commercial 100%

Hunan Province, PRC (“Yueyang Project”)

R E g B R SIE R —F188/13[& EES
([EEEBREEA])
88/13 Qiu, 2 Jiefang, Wugiao Town, Fengxian District, Commercial 95%

Shanghai City, PRC (“Shanghai Fengxian Boill e
Pharmaceutical Valley”)

ARERBR Fair value hierarchy

REEBREMEZ AR BHEERR Y The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
BREEAFAIGRAAED B=EHK properties has been categorised into the three-level fair
BAREER ° value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.
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17. REYHE® 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AREBR(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
TRETAEB 2R EWME L AR BER The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
EER hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

R-B--f=A=+-H

BATHEEZ A ERE

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2022 using

ERTEHRE EBEATERGA EATTEERS
(B5—%) BBEZR ABBE=ZR @t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TR TR TR TET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEUDREFE: Recurring fair value measurement
for:
REME Investment properties - - 687,044 687,044
EERBEENE Investment properties under
construction - - 915,749 915,749
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17. BEWHE @) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AREER(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

WZEZ—4$=A=+—H
ERATSEE 2 AR EHE
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2021 using
ERTERE BEATBEBHA EATTEEH
(B8 HBEEZR) ABEE=R)

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
TR T TEx THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEUDREFE: Recurring fair value measurement
for:
REME Investment properties = = 815,830 815,830
EERBRENE Investment properties under
construction - - 748,564 748,564
RAEER F—FERN  WEARLE There were no transfers of fair value measurements between
SRE—MEE _REEE  NEE Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
AKELEE=L o during the year and in prior year.
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BEYE @)
ARBEBHE)

BEYMEHEMRAGRERTREZGA
HEMENT :

AEERERENE HEANREIZHAZE
Valuation technique
and key inputs

Investment properties

LBRLEENEEE EREEE
fBERFEEAS(E= Diect comparison
) method

Healthcare holiday
Resort and FEHABE A B
Residential Apartment {8

(phase Il) of Shanghai
Sheshan Project

The key input is estimated
unit market price

NEEERERC TR/
#iE
Discount/Premium
on quality and
characteristics of
properties

e M B W R
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

EXTUEERARBREERMETHE
Significant unobservable inputs and
range or weig

AT EHTBE 2B E REEFR  RERMSH
tofERIEZ -

Estimated market prices below have been taking into
account location and other individual factors such
as building age, building facilties.

REE(RE)DEMS : FEAANT12,0008TE

TUBRRABBRALEZBE
Relationship of unobservable
input to fair value

BYHATEER - RAEER

37,0008 (ZZ=—% : 1 721,000%75%45,000 The higher the market price per m?,

BIL)

For residential (apartment) properties: Ranging from
HK$12,000 to HK$37,000 (2021: Ranging from
HK$21,000 to HK$45,000) per m?

RET(RIB)MEMS : BFHANT37,0008 T
£62,00087T(Z2=—F : N 766,0008TE
118,000 L)

For residential (vila) properties: Ranging from
HK$37,000 to HK$62,000 (2021: Ranging from
HK$56,000 to HK$118,000) per m?

EBME : FERSEANT62,000/4TE185,000
BIL(ZZZ—% : 17950004 7T2414,000%87T)

For car parking spaces: Ranging from HK$62,000 to
HK$185,000 (2021: Ranging from HK$95,000 to
HK$414,000) per car parking space.

RET(RF)MEME
-10%%30%)

For residential (apartment) properties:-20% to 20%
(2021:-10% to 30%)

20%E20%(ZE=—F

REERIE)NEME
-50%Z0%)

For residential (vila) properties:-60% to 10% (2021:
-50% to 0%)

-B0%E10%( =S =—F :

REEMME : -10%ZE0%(ZF=—F : -10%Z0%)
For car parking spaces:-10% to 0% (2021:-10% to
0%)

IREE R A R A 7] Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited

the higher the fair value

NEEERBB RS
R

The higher the discount on quality
and characteristics of properties,
the lower the fair value;

NI

NEEEBREBCEEHES - AR
EHS

The higher the premium on quality
and characteristics of properties,
the higher the fair value
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17. REWE @)
ARBEBR(E)

FREFAHERENE

17.

HERNRIEBABE EXTIBEEBABBREBIMETHE
Significant unobservable inputs and
range or weig

Investment properties Valuation technique

held by the Group and key inputs

EBRUBERERR
FE(F=H)
Residential under

“B-_f=f=1-H
31 March 2022

development (phase B EE

[Il) of Shanghai Direct comparison

Sheshan Project method
FERARER

The Key input is

(1) BEARTHMEEHER N T9,000%87T216,00087T
(1) Estimated price per  Ranging from HK$9,000 to HK$16,000
m? of the land

“E-—F=A=1—H
31 March 2021

RERE

Residual method

IRBATER:

The key inputs are:

(1) BFHKMEHER N T21,000/8 245,000 0 (BT HKETHED
(1) Estimated price per ~ ZBMENARBEFR REERBZHMERNRE)
m? Ranging from HK$21,000 to HK$45,000 (estimated
market price per m?, has been taking into account
location and other individual factors such as
building age and building facilities)

304,705,000/ 7T
HK$304,705,000

() fEEtRERAR
(2) Estimated
development costs

(3) EAfLitE

(3) Capitalisation rate

5.50%

(4) EEREEE
(4) Expected developer's
profit

156-20%

- EHEMER A E R EOA(E AR AT B ET *

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

TUBRRABBRALEZBE
Relationship of unobservable
input to fair value

SEHATELS - A1 E0E
The higher the market price per m?,
the higher the fair value

BYHATEES - AREYS
The higher the market price per m2,
the higher the fair value

BERATESS - AAEES
The higher the market price per m2,
the higher the fair value

HEREKAER - AoEHE
The higher the project development
cost, the lower the fair value

BRI RYER  ARESE
The higher the capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value

The direct comparison method is adopted by the valuer as the most

% THREREBUARRE B 51T
A Bt ESETE -
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preferable valuation methodology as it reflects the actions of buyers
and sellers and therefore should result in market value.



17.

BEYE @)
ARBEBHE)
REWFBERENE

Investment properties
held by the Group

EBER eI T E
(I=%ER])

Basement of clubhouse
of Yueyang
(“Yueyang Project’)

ZERANRETNIR
FEAERRAER
BER(E=8)(08
FERREA)

‘Dongfang Meigu”
Industrial Complex
Development
Construction under
development (phase
IIl) of Fengxian
Project (Shanghai
Fengxian Boill e
Pharmaceutical
Valley)

HERMREZGAYE
Valuation technique
and key inputs

ek

Income method

FEHAHES
The key inputs are:

(1) FHdE
(1) Term yield

(0 BEHKEX
(2) Reversion yield

B RAERLRE
Direct comparison method
for land portion

TERABBRBT K
fhEtBIm(E -

The key inputs is
estimated unit market
price per m2:

REFARAEERAA
Replacement cost method
for building portion

e MIGHRRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

EXTUEERARBREERMETHE FABRERABBENAEZBE
Significant unobservable inputs and Relationship of unobservable
range or weig input to fair value

35%(=ZF=—% : 3.5%) FHEREE - ArEBE

3.5% (2021: 3.5%) The higher the term yield, the lower
the fair value

4%(ZF=—F : 4%) G TSN TS

4% (2021: 4%) The higher the reversion yield, the
lower the fair value

UTEEMER ZRAERKER - 18 - RERE
REEEHMMERNAR

Estimated market prices below have been taking
into account location and other individual factors
such as time, location, development density and

quantum
11,0004 2,000 7T BERATESES - AREES
Ranging from HK$1,000 to HK$2,000 The higher market price per m2, the
higher the fair value
879,431,000 T BERAUS ALEMS
HK$879,431,000 The higher the replacement costs,

the higher the fair value
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18. R—EBE QAR ZEs 18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
—E—=
2022 2021
TFE T FHAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R—EBE AR ZEEKA  Cost of investment in an associate 52,682 52,682
MG E R Share of post-acquisition losses (48,163) (30,442)
M H Exchange realignment (4,519) (4,503)
- 17,737
RMEHKR AEBBLE QNG ZFBN Particulars of the Group’s associate at the end of the
T reporting period are as follows:
BV ES S AEEEEREEESZA D TEED
Place of registration  Percentage of ownership interest
and business attributable to the Group Principal activities
BEMABENLRERRERD A h 44%(ZFZ—F : 44%) MEER - MERERRERE
([HEEE]) FRis
Tengchong Zongheng Volcanic PRC 44% (2021: 44%) Property development, property

Tourism Development Company

Limited (“Tengchong Project”)

investment and provision of
healthcare services

TEBESANTZHABEREIRMOT - % Summarised financial information in respect of the material

s AT LA ENE A IS HE associate is set out below. The associate is accounted

ABE for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.
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18. MN—EEZE QAT 2= (E) 18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
—==-=
BEIEE Tengchong Project 2022
FHBx
HK$’000 HK$’000
mENEE Current assets 1,044,303 709,207
JEmENE E Non-current assets 470 806
nRBEE Current liabilities (1,095,547) (669,701)
E(BE)BE Net (liabilities)/assets (50,774) 40,312
HEAREFEREZ AR 2  Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
R E R the associate:
REE A LI Proportion of the Group’s ownership 44% 44%
AEEFEREBZAF)F  Group’s share of net assets of an
BERKREREE associate and carrying amount of the
investment (22,341) 17,737
Wz Revenue 113,845 290,254
FNEE Loss for the year (103,383) (2,136)
H el Other comprehensive income (36) 3,197
FHRNEHEWZREE Total comprehensive income for the year (103,419) 1,061
19. ERAREEREEAE 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES
AEBEEREAEA The Group as lessee

TXHEHINFAERRBEAEEE 2 RE

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use

BERE assets recognised and the movements during the year:
—E_-—F
Land and building 2022
FHET
HK$°000
F1) At the beginning of the year 1,336 =
NE Additions - 1,627
e Depreciation (764) (191)
FR At the end of the year 572 1,336
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19. FAREERHEESE®@® 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)
REBEERABA(E) The Group as lessee (continued)
TXHINFAREGBEZRABERED Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities

and the movements during the year:

—E__F
2022
FET
HK$°000
F4 At the beginning of the year 1,485 =
NE Additions - 1,527
FERAX Interest expense 102 35
(NEN Payments (914) (77)
FR At the end of the year 673 1,485
DA Analysed into:
mEBaE Current liabilities 673 812
FRBEE Non-current liabilities - 673
ERIERERNESH The amounts recognised in profit or loss:
—EB-—F
2022
FExT
HK$°000
FREEEZITERMY  Depreciation expense of right-of-use
assets 764 191
HEAEZAERAE Interest expense on lease liabilities 102 35
SRR N Expense relating to short-term leases 271 280
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21.

22.

e MIGHRRME
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EERZIFEHEY = 20. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
REBEEXNZFHEHEMELMLRF The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
c FTBE B 2 EIEE M ELR KA in the PRC. All completed properties held for sale are stated
BAR[BIR ) FECRIEESEK - at the lower of costs and net realisable value.
BE_ZE_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE " There were no write-down of the carrying values for the year
WEMBRPBEE SN 2 FHEHEEME ended 31 March 2022 in respect of completed properties
FEEE(ZE_—F &) held for sale in the PRC (2021: Nil).
BREPYE 21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
—E-_—F
2022
FExT
HK$°000
FEEtS U El 23 EHR  Properties under development, expected

L E to be recovered:

—FR Within one year 1,122,003 809,147
7R £ [B) 23X rp ) 2 o PO R BRI 3% kg AN R The Group’s properties under development is located in the
AR EME 2 RKEDEE - PRC and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.
REBEE-_E-_—_F=A=+—HItHF During the year ended 31 March 2022, certain items of the
B AEERMmEAREARG2,978,000%8 T Group’s properties under development with an aggregate
— T~ —4F : 402,803,000/ 7T ) K& T carrying value of HK$62,978,000 (2021: HK$402,803,000)
HEAYEBHCOEREDEBK ZFHE were transferred to completed properties held for sale.
HEMZE o
REBEZT=-—_F=A=+—HBLHF There were no write-down of the carrying value for the
E 0 WEA R DY E R (E MO year ended 31 March 2022 is respect of property under
(ZFE=——4F :&\;) o development (2021: Nil).
S H A 22. CONTRACT COSTS
—=E-=
2022 2021
F#&T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
REMBAEHMAELR  Assets recognised from costs incurred to
KAz BEREE obtain a contract 3,797 3,348
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22. XA (&) 22. CONTRACT COSTS (continued)
BARC AR AREE M YERIE(HEE Contract costs capitalised relate to the incremental sales
EBSEPHASEENRREBRMDESE commission paid to property agents whose selling activities
RAOVMETLEEWRE) < EEHER resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase
©HA - agreements for the Group’s properties which are still under

development as at the end of reporting period.

23. FERRIE - ZERHMERKRFIE  23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
—E__F
2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR IR Prepayments 63,420 280,760
e REMBWFIE(HZE)  Deposits and other receivables (note) 78,683 9,310
142,103 290,070
BfisE Note:
7R & (B 4 L PR UL B B A (] K 1R S ek H 1 The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over the
12 WERREERARE AR E MU AR TG fE Uk loan receivable and have assessed the recoverability of the loan receivable
ERZ A EE - with reference to the personal wealth and income sources of the borrower.
BRAANEBEEHRENURIRS R H MR FIER 5| B Further details on the Group’s details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
HNEERKRZE— T BERRME4 - risk arising from deposits and other receivables are set out in note 41.

24, BAREEBERVIER2ZKRATI 24. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

B THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-=
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT A - ZT{E  Listed equity instruments, at market value
(Hzt) (note) 328 2,178
st Note:
AEENBRATAR - ZE-_—FR-_T-_—F=A= The Group’s equity instruments as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 were
+—HYAAERBEES  THRVIBRERRARAREEFE classified as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition, designated by
TERBRARBEBBIERIRZERMEE the Group as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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25. BERBRELEEYURTSR4HE 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

€ RESTRICTED CASH
—E_-—F
2022 2021
FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B& NMIRITERR Cash and bank balances 93,218 149,541
B ZRHIIRE (K7E(a)) Less: Restricted cash (note (a)) (46,702) (18,197)
RENRBRESEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 46,516 131,344
LAAREEHAE(HTE()) Denominated in RMB (note (b)) 82,160 136,522
AZETTEHE Denominated in USD 9,719 4,394
AV TTETHE Denominated in HK$ 1,339 8,625
93,218 149,541
B Notes:
(a) BIETEBEER  NEBETNYEERED (a) Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, the properties
FIAEKE T MBS EREFERAIE TR development company of the Group are required to place certain
1TEEP  (EAREMERR 2 ERES - amounts of pre-sale proceeds received at designated bank accounts

as guarantee deposits for the construction of the related properties.

(b) ARSI EREBAEME - HRED (b) The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
BR R+ 2 YN B TR AR LA 2 A5 P8 ~ B 2 5 under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
[EZIRIAT » ANE B RS T Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
EXFM ZBITHEARKH I ABHMER o Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for others

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

BITIRESBEERETEANEREE 2% Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily

B 5| R BEEVF B o $R1T7 4568 K R HI 35 bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted cash

& T AT EAW M HE R 42 6% B (=2 B 4F are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history

ZERLT © of default.
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26. EZENFE
B ENZETTEE—RNI0E60H
NEE - KBBEREZEHH - E5ENAKIE
M EHIR 2 R AITINT -

26. TRADE PAYABLES

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 30-60 days terms. An aged analysis of
the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—_ =22
2022 2021
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BIEA=K11E A A Current or within 1 month 271,419 94,018
12218 A 1 to 2 months 4 836
HBiB2{E A 2= 31E A Over 2 to 3 months 13,489 1,181
HBiB3MEA Over 3 months 7,478 11,459
292,390 107,494

27. HttENREREGER

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—EC__F
2022 2021
T FH&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEErER Accruals 45,430 24,962
Bz e Deposits received 851 11,254
HAbERFRIB(HTaE(@)) Other payables (Note (a)) 258,041 168,824
304,322 205,040

Mizk(e) : AN BERERBARREEREBARA
AR A S B 3 5 /9 49130,293,00078 (=
T-—F: T)NERKAE - 2 RBEAER
- BB REREREE -
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Note (a): The amount included construction costs paid by a related company,
REZBEBBR AR, on behalf of the Group of approximately
HK$130,293,000 (2021: Nil). The amount due is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.



28.
IR

(@)

Y EABEEAR —RES

RZE-_—_F=A=+—0 ' EfH
B858RI B HEExcellent Speed
Limited ([Excellent Speed]) #
- 2 B 3£23,998,000/8 (=& =
—4F : 23,998,000/ 7T ) © E &
~t # £.3,304,0008 TT( —F — —
12,104,000/ 7T) : KExcellent
Speed# {2 ¥ € 2,000,000% 7T
—E=—F : TEIT) ° Excellent
Speed@ &= BB ([EHIFELE
=HEA50%ER - WHAMNERRLE
([MxE ) BEEHEAS0%ER © I
ZECFRZT—F=A=+
—B - EELTERMELERATRA
—RMBARZES UHKRA
REB 7 EBERAE o Excellent
Speed & 2 ERAEEA - &
FHRSEFBRBREREE o
Excellent Speed® [+ 2 I & A
A BB RBRERER -

BHEAXFE AEEBHER
Excellent SpeedFIA M % H 2 Bt
TR AN £1,200,0008 (=& =
—4F : 1,200,000 7T) °

FAEMNBEAR(KRAREE
BRERFAEE(TREEDR
RAHEHSKRERBRE)ZHKE
754,632,000 (=T = —F :
757,582,000/ 7T ) Ty B IR - &
BRBIRBERERE -

fEU —RIRRE A R RIBE(RAEE
BRBR LR AEREIER
P& ) 31,0008 (=T =—F :
30,0008 7T ) A EER - £ 8RR

e
ZREE -

BN —R2EFEFALEERR %
BRIEERER -

e M B W R
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28.

DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A

DIRECTOR

(@)

(R 52 IR AR A &) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited

Due to related companies included a loan advanced
from Excellent Speed Limited (“Excellent Speed”)
of HK$23,998,000 (2021: HK$23,998,000) with
a interest payables of HK$3,304,000 (2021:
HK$2,104,000) as at 31 March 2022; and cash
advanced from Excellent Speed of HK$2,000,000
(2021: HKS$NIl). Excellent Speed is beneficially owned
as to 50% by Dr. Wong Sai Chung, Albert (“Dr.
Albert Wong”) and as to 50% by Mr. Lam Wing
Sum (“Mr. WS Lam”). Dr. Albert Wong and Mr. WS
Lam are directors of a subsidiary of the Company
and considered as key management personnel of
the Group as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. The
loan advanced from Excellent Speed is unsecured,
bears interest at 5% per annum and repayable on
demand. The cash advanced from Excellent Speed is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

During the year, the finance costs charged to the
Group for the amount due to Excellent Speed is
HK$1,200,000 (2021: HK$1,200,000).

Included in the amounts due to related companies,
in which Mr. Qiu Doug Fang (“Mr. Qiu”), the
substantial shareholder of the Company, is the
ultimate controlling shareholder in common, of
HK$754,632,000 (2021: HK$757,5632,000) are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Amount due from a related company, in which Mr.
Qiu, the Substantial Shareholder of the Company, is
the ultimate controlling shareholder in common, of
HK$31,000 (2021: HK$30,000) is unsecured, interest
fee and repayable on demand.

Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand.
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20, EHEEREE

29. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

—E-=
2022 2021
F#&T FABT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THEARNELEE :©  Contract assets arising from:
HEITIE Foundation piling 510 602
THIEERNEGHEME :  Contract liabilities arising from:
MEIHE Sales of properties 304,307 898,916
RV EEIRE Provision of property management
services - 885
304,307 899,801

EREERE  RAEPELEREER
BRI EE NS R BN WwE AR E
RZESHRKFIE - AHNBEERANA
AL -

BREFEAHNEECHENERRERE
L

BT 5

BREERASEFIRNBSHRE T
BRAATEFELRENTRENKE
ERER o & %M IR A B AR 1R B (BN AR 52
EEREZFHENZESRATSE
HEREERER)  GNEESSER
EBHRWHKE - MBEANEERSRK
R—ERkmE, G o
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The timing of revenue recognition, progress billings to
customers and payments received from customers would
affect the amount of trade receivables, contract assets and
contract liabilities recognised as at the end of the reporting
period.

Typical progress billings which impact on the amount of
contract assets are as follows:

Foundation piling

Contract assets represent the Group’s right to consideration
for work completed but not yet billed to customers at
the end of the reporting period. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issues progress
billings to customers based on certified amount agreed
with customers. All contract assets are expected to be
recovered/settled within one year.



29.

BHEEREASERRNRESRRERET
BREARAZRP#HEREN TRWERNKE
HIRER -

R E R ARG A EERETRE
A UEFEEHREESE - BaRE
HNEERBSHEKRIATIRBHRE P
HOSrEANEENBRHEEBENR
BEDERBEZRRREBENEREEE
BREENBEXRNREE HEK
FIEREUEBRERNZ Ry Amai A
HETE o ZATERE TR NERS
EBKHEEERN RS AR ESHNAE
RBAEEIE - & AR AR R B AR
BRI EERAIEER ©

B -

e ma

R EANABSRRMERNT

AHBERETERMEHRERE - REFP
FEZEEERERN AEEBBRDELH
BEEN—TEILIEARTFES - A%
EEFAR—F IR —FARFHE -
NEKRZEAHNABENER -

e M B W R
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29.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)
Sales of properties

Contract assets represent the Group’s right to consideration
for work completed but not yet billed to customers at the
end of the reporting period.

An impairment analysis is performed at the each of the
reporting period using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates for the
measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are
based on days past due of trade receivables appropriately
grouped by similar loss pattern. The calculation reflects the
probability weighted outcome, the time value of money, and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the end of the reporting period about past events, current
conditions and forecast of future economic conditions.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities represent the receipt in advance
from the property sales. The Group normally receives
certain percentage of the contract value as deposits
from customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement. The Group expects to deliver the properties to
satisfy the obligations of these contract liabilities within one
year or less.
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20, EHEBEEREEW@® 29.

REMEEERE

BHEBRBEREPHMEERE - K
SEBEFAR—FHIIR-—FAXAYE
BERS - MEKZEANRENEE -

CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)
Provision of property management services

Contract liabilities represent the property management fee
received in advance from the customers. The Group expects

to deliver the property management services to satisfy the
obligations of these contract liabilities within one year or
less.

EHBEBEZEBNT The movements in contract liabilities are as follows:
—E-—F
2022
FExT
HK$°000
RUA— B2z &% Balance as at 1 April 899,801 26,392
EF AR (B Decrease in contract liabilities as a result
FUFTAGHAEE) of recognising revenue during the
BEHANBERD year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year
—REPEFAEY - the amount was included in the
BEMNTHE contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year (920,765) (27,664)

—-RERAEFFAEY - the amount was included in the
BENSEE contract liabilities during the year (80,667) =
FIRRIF HERE (RE4E  Increase in contract liabilities as a result
RAFEEHEREBK of billing in advance, excluding those
=HE)VERAENBEY  recognised as revenue in the current

pll year 246,637 30,555
TERFIEEET A BRI Increase in contract liabilities as a result of

BEESRABEM accruing interest expense on advances 135,426 18,160
IR BEKT B A Rl A %Y Increase in contract liabilities upon

BEEM acquisition of subsidiaries - 830,979
M 54, 8 B Exchange realignment 23,875 21,379
MR=A=+—B2Z#&# Balance as at 31 March 304,307 899,801
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30. BORROWINGS
—E-CE
2022
ERRIR) HHA Tén Gk
Effective Effective
interest rate IEEN
(%) Maturity HK$'000
ik Current
EfEZ-BARMita  Other loans - secured (notes a & b) 12515 HEX 783,022 12515 BEX-ZET- 800217
On demand EXARTAMN
R
ZZCCFZR
On demand, June
& October 2021,
and March 2022
783,022 800,217
it Non-current
RN -BEEWize)  Bank loan - secured (note ¢) 410-415 —B=-E+ATNE 702,488 NEE TR -
19 October 2031 N/A N/A
EMEF-HEE(HEd)  Other loan - secured (note ) 15 ZBZZEZAZ+-B 5549 TER  TER -
31 December 2023 N/A N/A
1,541,006 800,217

AEERBEHATRIAERR

)

BR E {8 £A460,126,000/8 T =&
— —% : 517,285,000/ 7T ) Z
& MEF (HIE16):

AR E {8 /5 1,582,690,000% 7T (=
£ — — £ : 1,545,091,0003% 7T )
2B (BFE17) s

KEENERBEELLRBEE
HZEARRRBEEAR(AERSE
D RH 2 REER &

ARERE T —MBEATRE
FHBA A2 ©

The Group’s borrowings are secured by:

)

Leasehold land and buildings with carrying value of
HK$460,126,000 (2021: HK$517,285,000) (note 16);

Investment properties with carrying value of
HK$1,582,690,000 (2021: HK$1,545,091,000) (note
17);

Personal guarantee given by each of Mr. Qiu and his
spouse, Ms. Huang Jian, and corporate guarantees
provided by the related companies controlled by Mr.
Qiu; and

Share of an associate and interest in certain
subsidiaries held by the Group.
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30. fBE&@) 30. BORROWINGS (continued)
REPEHFK - EmmEEsam At the end of each reporting period, total borrowings were
N 7 /] nwes A = Sey=} =1
T scheduled to repay as follows:
—B-=
2022 2021
FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
oNE Analysed into:
—FARIET Within one year or on demand 783,022 800,217
BilE—FERFR Over one year, but within two years 55,496 -
BB E R FA Over two years, but within five years 145,523 =
AFE Over five years 556,965 =
1,541,006 800,217

Bt E Note:

(@) R-FE=_—F+= ﬂ AEEGRESEA (@) In December 2021, the Group entered into a supplemental loan
37,000,000 7T (18 & 7 47289,722,00078 agreement regarding an existing loan amounting to US$37,000,000
T ZBEE; J\:Ji%ﬁ%%\ K iiE o RIZHE (equivalent to approximately HK$289,722,000). Under such
AT ER S  ZEERBR_ZE=_—F supplemental loan agreement, the loan would be fully repaid in
+A ﬁ%ma/a ® October 2022.

(b) REZF_FF=F AREBE-BBUFE= (b) In March 2020, the Group obtained a credit facility of
FERB—£EFZEmE AR%600,000,0007T RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$710,550,000)
(HHE R 49710,550,00078 70 ) ° RxE4E from an independent third party. The Group has utilised credit facility
MR RERENZRREY  AEEFHAE of RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$493,300,000)
Egh & A AR 400,000,000 7T (18 E R4 as at the date of authorisation for issue of these consolidated
493,300,000/87L) - ZEERR =T == financial statements. The loan would be fully repaid in March 2022.
—ABEERS RZT=_=F,~8 ' 7x In June 2022, a supplemental credit facility of RMB400,000,000 was
s R E AR%400,000,0007T * B3 entered and the maturity of the borrowings has been extended to
HRERE_ZT=_=FN\A - August 2023.

(©) RZZBZ—F+A  AEEBE—RRTH © In October 2021, the Group obtained a credit facility of approximately
BiR{TREE 4 A R ¥ 780,000,000 7t.( 48 of RMB780,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$961,935,000)
H R 4961,985,0008 L) c R=ZFT = = from a bank. The Group has drawn down loans of RMB569,623,000
F=ZRA=+—H  AEEERDMERAR (equivalent to approximately HK$702,488,000) as at 31 March 2022,
¥ 569,623,000 7T (A8 & M %7702,488,000 and subsequently drew down a loan of RMB74,000,000 from the
L) BEZEBABZBRTRIERARE bank. The Group has unutilised credit facility of RMB136,377,000 as
74,000,0007C ° Rz Ehr A W RERER at the date of authorisation for issue of these consolidated financial
ETEBH  AEERPACEERERAR statements.

#136,377,0007T °
(@) RZZ=-—FRH  AEEE—2BIF= ©) In June 2021, the Group entered into a loan facility of

FES—EEE/mE AR%200,000,0007T
(8% M #9246,650,000/87T) ° BIF B A
—T_F-_A—ANKERHE 0 ZE

BRER-_Z_=F+_AFRHEE - R=
T-—F=A=1+—H  FEBEDEEAR
135,000,000 (18 & 1A 47166,488,7507%
TT) ¢ REEHEAARKA45,000,0007T (1
B R #955,496,000/8 7T ) °
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RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$246,650,000)
from an independent third party. Under the revised agreement dated
1 February 2022, the loan should be fully repaid in December 2023.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group repaid RMB135,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$166,488,750), the outstanding balance is
RMB45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$55,496,000).
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31. EEBIBEERE 31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
FREEFE B &= ST The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

BEMBARRE KRENEXHEE
ERDRERR ZDRERE

Fair value Fair value

adjustments adjustment

arising from arising from

acquisition of investment
subsidiaries properties Total
THET THT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
RZZE-ZFRA/—H At 1 April 2020 3,935 = 3,935
LEnEING Acquisition of subsidiaries 17,330 = 17,330

MeE/(GEA)BZE(#/:213)  Charged/(credited) in profit or loss

(note 13) (5,500) - (5,500

RZZ-—%=F=+—HK At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

- —4%MA—H 15,765 - 15,765
M B,/ (GFA)EZE(H:#13)  Charged/(credited) in profit or loss

(note 13) (13,490) 853 (12,637

RZBZ_$=HA=+—-H At 31 March 2022 2,275 853 3,128
RIEHR  REBREBEBELEZHIE At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
BB 427,100,000/ o( — & = —F : arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$27,100,000
26,253,000/ 7T ) Al sk A FA K 88 2 A B (2021: HK$26,253,000) that are available indefinitely for
BARIZRAKRERR HZAN - NEFITTRN offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
R [ EE AR F T8 T 48 49 234,975,000 7 JT in which the losses arose. The Group also had tax losses
(ZZF = —4 : 120,471,000/ 7T ) R arising in the PRC of approximately HK$234,975,000 (2021:
FHERNSDEL - 7] B RS ok 5k FE RR B % HK$120,471,000) that will expire in five years for offsetting
K o RAER B ARKFIBE B 0] qE against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
RILSEFERBOREF - S E gt F B 18 been recognised in respect of the tax losses, including the
(BHEREBLRTPENBARIEE ZHIE tax losses arising from the subsidiaries in Hong Kong and
BB ) ERIELERIBEE - the PRC, as it is not probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.
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32. BAK 32. SHARE CAPITAL
R 2 B THERT
Number of shares HK$’000
FRZ0.258 LAY E AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
ERE Authorised:
RZZEZZFMA—H 1 April 2020 16,000,000,000 400,000
&0 & B Share consolidation (14,400,000,000) =
RZE_—FR At 31 March 2021 and 2022
—E--F=HA=+—H 1,600,000,000 400,000
AT TR BB T - Summary of movements in the Company’s issued share

capital is as follows:

ERTROHE [N
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
THERT
HK$’000
BEITRARE Issued and fully paid:
"B —FR At 31 March 2021 and 2022
T F=H=+—H 1,358,000,000 339,500
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RAGREBER-ZZE—=F LA =Z+=H
BB RFBRFE MR ERT BI( &5t
Bl EERMARKRESHEBAERRA
ZEtEl 2 A B2 MERMEREINER -

RIEZRTE - EFA 2 EBBEXTE
FRRZHERT - AAREIARE (2R
HHREB) EF - EHALER - HAX
SEEMEZRR - RAKEEMF S H
moAER - HER KRE - -EF B
XEHFIRBHEAR L ARBEARF]
Bzt -  EFZATHEEREERR
SEEHAEEERIERZ AERME
ESRERERBERIEZER -

RIEZE - FREBZERARRE
MEMBREER L 2B RBREE
TEMmMAFHERTZROHEB LR - &1
TREBEBRONEBIMEMREEER
HEE BTN 210% © %10% ER A
BEREARNRRRILEREHETE - H
RAR IR %t 8 R AR R fa] 2 b i A A
AEIREZE R EETEM A T &
TZARARNER - TNMSELIES
MEE LRIEE AARF B HITRD
Z210% ° FFARARRIER - ARIE
At BI R AR RHEMREAMGFFER LA
WARITEE Z T B HITHEIMNEIREEITE
e FE#EIT2ARRBIRDER - TSHE
AR BB 2 BT 230% ° iR
1R % T 8IS AR R R (AT A At B AR T 2
REBEhgegygBEEZ LR - BTG
R EE -
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 22 September
2013 to attract and retain the best available personnel and
to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants
under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors may at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, grant
options to any employees (full-time or part-time), directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
eligibility of any participants to the grant of any options shall
be determined by the directors from time to time on the
basis of the directors’ opinion as to their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Under the Scheme, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue upon the date of which the shares are
listed and permitted to be dealt in the Stock Exchange. The
10% limit may be refreshed at any time by approval of the
Company’s shareholders provided that the total number of
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit. Subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders, the aggregate number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time
to time. No options may be granted under the Scheme or
any other share options schemes of the Company if this will
result in the limit being exceeded.
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33.

B AERH 8 ()

BERLBHILEMI2EABEA -
REZ AR TER2EEZBRER
FREATHE Ris R1T (BB ARAR ) JE AT (£ M 3%
TRBFETZBRNDER  TEBHAX
NAIERBEHITRAZ1% ° fiR&at 2
S2HREE - FRHBRESERHEZL
E-—SRHBHM(BEZB) L12AH
MR- AERTRERTZAE2EEL
PRAEBRE(BREDITR - EEHEkFER
TTERERRE ) BITEMBIT RS TEITZ
ety - EHBEEREEITRMO1%NU L
QBT — PREBALEARFBRRR
BREREG EZTHAE  MEZBE2ERER
HE 8 AN BBMERRKE

AARARIESE HRTBRABREER
RAWES B ZEMBEARBEME
BtE - HARARRREILIFRITES(H
BRGBEBRAZBIIFNTES)H
JfE o AR R E E B R K IBIIFTT
ERSRESEIEMBEARLEMA
BRE  2THERERIDAH(EREZ
B)IEE12ME A AR - ARz
Re R BUE ] B 4 i B HE R T 81 B A Bt
ATEHZFEBRE(RFERTRE - B2
AEEH MR R TT R R AL ) BT T R M BT I
BTFRITZBEODBREAXBHARFE
BTN Z201% - BREBBAEE
7T RIRSERKARRRIBRRLLME -
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Scheme
in any 12-month period up to date of grant must not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being. Where any further grant of options to a participant
under the Scheme would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant representing
in aggregate over 1% of the shares in issue, such further
grant must be separately approved by shareholders of the
Company in general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their respective associates must be approval by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding independent non-executive director who is the
grantee). Where any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to
such person in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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fB R RER 8 ()

BRHUBEREZENARAED B LS
THERAEDER - ABRATRESET
BEEEZHIE - BRRIEZ 8 ZHERK
TTEBRE - ETSBEAHE L BT
105 - XWX A BRI LIRS
R o EMER ZBEER - ARAZAR
ZH RSB ZBRIA(TSERAEL
BHEAER)RARAABXMIBTER
RE -

AEEHETLRBETLBNBEE
RBERKRLARTIREPZERE : ()
BB HBRERMBARARNRE
B E BB 2 B - (B P AR
BRABARARNDNEZE O BRE
BHIRI AfE=E %A 2 FgUmE : Fi)
BREBERER R ARRRMEE -

ZitB A —E-—=F LA - T - BEF
TEHBRNAREER - WX ZETEIR
BRI ILIRXPTARR -

FRREEREREZBERY - 17
- KRR - RIEMRTERR
REFATIESD ©
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33.

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in
writing within 7 days from the date of the offer. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the directors may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour of the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 7 days from the date of the
offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined by
the directors and notified to a participant and shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the option; (i) the average
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s share on the
date of grant of the option.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 22 September 2013, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme during the year nor outstanding at
the end of the reporting period.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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35. MEEKRFERERZZHOHEA 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

Vo= NG MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
BEERFEREZCAEENE AT Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
SHIEHEHI AT - controlling interests are set out below:

2022 2021

JEYERARHEsR A 2 %M Percentage of equity interest held by non-

Bkt controlling interests
2heBRA T REK B Pearl Swirls Limited and its subsidiary
AR BhER]) (“PS Group”) 49% 49%
HEREMB AR Anway and its subsidiaries
([EZREE]) (“Anway Group”) 32% 32%
FEREEEERAF Shanghai Baoxian Industrial Co., Ltd.
([EBRE]) (“Shanghai Baoxian’) 5% =
—E__F
2022
FERT
HK$’000
DELEIEERERS 2 Loss for the year allocated to non-
FABAE controlling interests:
EPhiEsHE PS Group (421) (781)
REEE Anway Group (238,212) (32,305)
EERE Shanghai Baoxian (109) =
PRIRE IR 2 IE4EMAE  Accumulated balances of non-controlling
wm RETAER interests at the end of the reporting
period:
PhekE PS Group 2,505 2,926
REEE Anway Group 245,820 483,159
EBRE Shanghai Baoxian 12,215 =
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35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of key non-controlling interests, including PS
Group, Anway Group and Shanghai Baoxian. The amounts

Al &% disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:
—E_CE
2022
YiekE XR&EE LERE : ER%
Shanghai
PS Group Anway Group Baoxian PS Group  Anway Group
FET FHET TR THT THEL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
iz Revenue - 11,566 - 606 11,762
Hiplk ARUzEE  Other income and gains, net
% 18 (967) 127 731 (119)
Y 8% Total expenses (877) (755,012) (2,741) (2,930) (112,595)
FREE Loss for the year (859) (744,413) (2,614) (1,593) (100,952)
FRZEWEEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year (859) (741,686) (2,817) (1,593) 826
RBEE Current assets 7,131 76,863 579,545 5,986 41,868
FERBEE Non-current assets 5 1,881,250 552,103 10 2,314,608
mEAE Current liabilities (2,026) (1,189,925) (48,767) (25) (846,603)
EnBARE Non-current liabilities - - (838,582) = =
mE (F1/H),/  Net cash flows (used in)/
EREREF generated from operating
% activities 1,237 (187,828) (218,969) (789) (122,283)
REEH(FTHE),/  Net cash flow (used in)/
MEREREF generated from investing
# activities - (7,664) (43) - 16,061
BAEEEHS  Net cash flows generated
EEE from financing activities - 194,051 159,096 = 113,067
BERREEEY  Net increase/(decrease) in
#i,/CRA)F  cash and cash equivalents
B 1,237 (1,441) (59,916) (789) 6,845
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36. LERTREBRMET 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BETEBELECEBET Change in liabilities arising financing activities
FEBRTR
P RE R B HE Hitifs & HEAE
Interest-bearing
Due to related bank and other
companies borrowings  Lease liabilities
TAT THT THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RZZ_ZEMA—A At 1 April 2020 252,606 937,938 -
R E M ER New other loans - 236,055 -
BERITER Repayment of bank loans - (154,143) =
EREME R Repayment of other loans = (244,244) =
REBEDLANBH Advances from related companies 393,290 = =
ERHME Interest paid - (99,085) (35)
BEHEARASHH Repayment of principal portion of the
lease liabilities - - (42)
I AR Exchange realignment 17,157 2,320 =
Hin 25 : Other change:
FIERAY Interest expense 1,200 121,376 35
BERHEE New lease capitalised = = 1,527
FRERH(Hixt) Non-cash transaction (note) 119,381 = =

RZZ-—%&=F=+—H At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

R=E-—%NA—H 783,634 800,217 1,485
HERTER New bank loans - 702,488 =
EEBER New other loans = 55,496 =
BRETER Repayment of bank loans = (36,795) =
A=A AR E Repayment to related companies (900) = =
BEAFHE Interest paid - (117,283) (102)
BEREBEREHS Repayment of principal portion of the

lease liabilities - = (812)
Hin 25 : Other change:
HMERX Interest expense 1,200 121,889 102
LS Exchange realignment = 14,994 =
RZE-—F=A=1+—H At 31 March 2022 783,934 1,541,006 673
Mizk: REBE-T-_—_F=A=+—HIFE & Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had payables
NEEBEER LBELEERENENZKES of HKS$NIl (2021: HK$119,381,000) in relation to the construction
THET(ZZT=——4F : 119,381,000/ 7T ) * of healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai, which were settled by the
EHBEQAREE - related company.
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BT R 5 37.
Bt x4 B B RR At 75 il 2
RPN ARERBE-FT--F=A4
S+—BLFEEEBS I TIER

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material transactions with related parties during

R o the year ended 31 March 2022.
(a) FANBEBIRS : (@) Related party transactions during the year:
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
FET FABT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BENEERFZ Property management fees
MEEREE paid to related companies
— FEREMFEER - EBREMEEEERL (), (i)
BRAF Gl - 1,284
—REEREBRER - REZEREBERAA ()
NE] - 1,387
BEN—EEEAFZ Management fees paid to a
ERE related company
—REBEERAA — Boill International Co., ()
Limited - 196

M () EERHHEREHEE
ZHREST - BE_T=

The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms. HSREMEEIRFR A A,

Note: (i)

TERN-T-—HF=F=
+—BIEFE + EERE
MEBEBERAA - RE
EREEBRA R RRE
B AR AR BERLEE
il o

(ii) RZZTEZTF+=At
B - BEAEREY EER
EYMEERERAF (R
SWE]) 2 EHIE - BE
—E-=-_f=A=+—H
IEFE - REMEEET
BAAEE 2SS °

(b) RZBEZ—FXNAFTULEE
REERE(®E ] E&YH
ARARZTE—NENAREE

(b)

(i)

(REEFENGEE AR AT and Boill International Co.,
Limited are controlled by Mr. Qiu during the year
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

On 7 December 2020, Mr. Qiu lost the control on
FEREVMEEBER AR (“REWZ"). During
the year ended 31 March 2022, {R&E#% was no
longer a related party of the Group thereafter.

Entered into in June 2021 a revised loan credit

facility (the “Facility”), that was originally entered into

by the Company in June 2019 with its controlling

IEIRER(ZRER T ) R Em
A AR A R#900,000,0007T
MERBMEMEIMY - ZmEEK
- FE5%NAREEA MR-
+O{E A AEE « BEHETZ
REREYBREZA  AEH
WENEZ B E R IREUERER ©

shareholder (a then related party) and its beneficial
owner regarding the provision of a loan facility
amounting to RMB900,000,000. The Facility is
unsecured, interest bearing of 5% per annum and
repayable within a period of twenty-four months from
drawdown date. The Group did not draw down any
loan from the Facility up to the date of approval for
issue of these consolidated financial statements.
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38. MIBLH 38.
AAREEMBARZFHEMT -

AR/ RS

Place of incorporation/

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

ERTEER/

AR ANAEERERAL  IEEBREEHY
Percentage of equity

Issued ordinary/ attributable to the Company

registered share “Z-—% Principal activities and place

REERTRERAR B
Ngai Shun Construction & Driling Hong Kong
Company Limited
LeeEEEHARAA PEARANE([hE])
Shanghai Jinshenlong Land Gompany People’s Republic of China
Limited (‘PRC’)
BE (BB ARAR B
Turbo Leader (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
ERmAXZEXERAA i
Yueyang Nanhu Meishu Properties PRC
Limited
EIRGERERAT f
Zhenjiang Baoyang Real Estate Company ~ PRC
Limited
LEREESXARAT i
Shanghai Baoxian Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC

FRIHEZBRIEZEREBRFA
FERBUASEFEETERLD 2N
REIMBRE - EFRR - FHIEMMH
BARGSRKREBNIE °

EXFRIA DB Z ABEMBAB(BRER
PRI Z B AR GRIEAER R
EREMBBREERT] °

ARENE AR EEITEMAEBSES
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2021 of operation

10,000,000/ 7 51% 51% NEBMEATH

HK$10,000,000 Foundation piling in Hong Kong

AEH662,675,0787C 68% 68% RPEREEREERRAES
i

RMB652,575,078 Healthcare holiday resort

development and operation
business in PRC

i 100% 100% REBREER
HK$1 Investment holding in Hong
Kong

AR¥500,0007T 100% 100% RPENZER

RMB500,000 Property development in PRC
AE#%99,000,0007T 99% 9% RNHEMEER
RMB29,000,000 Property management in PRC
AR #200,000,0007T 95% 100% RPENEEE
RMB200,000,000 Property management in PRC

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company,
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

All the subsidiaries of the Company listed above (including
those established in the PRC) are registered as limited
liability companies under the relevant laws and regulations.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company has issued any
debt securities.
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SEMTAESE 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FHSMITENRERARCEABENT The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

R=-ZE-_—f#=H=+-—H At 31 March 2022

BRAREEBREE  REBHRRIER
FIfRe SRMEE ZEREE @zt
Financial assets
at fair value Financial assets

through profit at amortised
Financial assets or loss cost Total
TERT THET THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BN —FERE A R FUR Due from a related company - 31 31
FAENTIE - BER Financial assets included in
HibfelhEB s £ 84 prepayment, deposits and other
= receivables - 78,683 78,683
AR (EEBRERYEY  Equity instruments at fair value through
AT A profit or loss 328 - 328
XBHIH 2 Restricted cash - 46,702 46,702
B RBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 46,516 46,516
328 171,932 172,260
RS A5 R
ZEe@mas st
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost Total
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5N TIA Trade payables 292,390 292,390
= A E fth FE SRR TE 2 Financial liabilities included in other
EtERemas payables and accruals 303,471 303,471
FERTRAE N R IR Due to related companies 783,934 783,934
EN—RBESHIE Due to a director 285 285
BE Borrowings 1,541,006 1,541,006
HEAE Lease liabilities 673 673
2,921,759 2,921,759
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39. €@MIESE@E) 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
HW—B——&=A=+—H At 31 March 2021
BAREBRIEE  REHERAYER
Sl 2Rt & E ZEREE FeE
Financial assets at Financial assets
fair value through at amortised
Financial assets profit or loss cost Total
FET FET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
e —REIREE A BFIA  Due from a related company = 30 30
S AFEEIA - &4 Financial assets included in
K H b fE U FRIE 2 prepayment, deposits and
SREE other receivables = 9,310 9,310
AR EBEIBE5YIBE  Equity instruments at fair value
ZRARTA through profit or loss 2,178 - 2,178
TIR&IRE Restricted cash - 18,197 18,197
ReRIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 131,344 131,344
2,178 158,881 161,059

1R SE R AR DI R

- §= N HEt

Financial

liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost Total
FATT FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
g ZRENFIE Trade payables 107,494 107,494

s AE b BT FRE K Financial liabilities included in other

EAERze@MBE payables and accruals 193,786 193,786
FETREE A R IR Due to related companies 783,634 783,634
R —BEEFIR Due to a director 274 274
==t Borrowings 800,217 800,217
HERE Lease liabilities 1,485 1,485
1,886,890 1,886,890
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair value of equity instruments are based on quoted
market price.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: Assets
measured at fair value on recurring basis:

ERATISEH B2 ARE

Fair value measurement using

Equity instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

BEATHEE BEATUHER
ERTIZRE BARE AEE
(B—%) (B=#) (B=8) st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TER TER TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
328 - - 328
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40.

41.

EMIBEZRARBERAABRER
(%)

40.

R=Z=-—-%=H=+—H As at 31 March 2021

BOREEBRRIIRS

Equity instruments at fair

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ERATIBEFEZAAE
Fair value measurement using
EXTER BATIEEH
RETIS M BARE N4
(5—4&) (B=#) (E=R)
Significant Significant

observable unobservable

Quoted prices in

active markets
(Level 1)
FAT

inputs
(Level 2)
T

inputs
(Level 3)
TET

BRATAR value through profit or loss 2,178 - - 2,178
Eé:z:fi B=+—HE=-_Z= The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
F=ZA=+—H ' AEFEIEEMIED fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
ﬁTEEJr%Z%%ﬁETE

RE

T—HIEFE E—REF— &ZF'EHE%
BEBEAABEFE  TEEAXELSE
= e

EEEFERBHEAAIRZERMEE
kEBARZAAE  YRAHKEE

BEAAERE  TEREABZSTA
REHREIE -
MBERREERRRBCR

AEEZFIESRIABER e RRS
FEY  ZRFIBEUMGFERTRE
igE  ZELMIAZTFZENAA
RRAGEEZEERNESEREES - &
SERAEZREERREEECHEMER
BENBE  PIWEZRYUGR - BN
BB R AR 1R NH M R MR IR A
KB 5 REMBENTR -
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During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Management has assessed that the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
and considered their carrying amounts approximate their
fair values largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and interest- bearing
bank and other borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is used to raise finance for the Group’s
operations and investments. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
amounts due to related companies, deposits and other
receivables, trade and other payables, which arise directly
from its operations.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to its
variable-rate bank balances and unsecured bank borrowings.
In addition, the Group also expose to fair value interest rate
risk relates to fixed interest rate other borrowings, secured
bank loan and certain loan advanced from related parties.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
balances and bank and other borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of bank balances and
bank and other borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 10
basis points (2021: 10 basis points) increase is used for
bank balances and a 100 basis points (2021: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for bank borrowings,
which represents management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in interest rates.

For variable-rate bank balances, if the interest rate increase
by 10 basis points (2021:
variables were held constant, the pre-tax loss for the

10 basis points) and all other

year will decrease by approximately HK$93,000 (2021:
HK$116,000). No sensitivity for the decrease in interest rate
is performed as the directors considered the existing interest
rate level for bank balances is so low that close to zero and
the financial impact would not be material.

For bank and other borrowings, if interest rate increases/
decreases by 100 basis points (2021: 100 basis points)
and all other variables were held constant; the pre-tax
loss for the year will increase/decrease by approximately
HK$15,410,000 (2021: HK$8,002,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as equity instruments at fair
value through profit and loss (note 24) as at 31 March 2022
and 2021. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% (2021: 5%) increase in the fair values of the equity
instruments at fair value through profit and loss, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

BAAEBEBERNEE 2 Equity instruments at fair value

AT A

through profit or loss

period.
RATHz BB AIER A0,
SREE 2,/ (8d) (BD)
Carrying amount Increase/ Increase/
of equity (decrease) in (decrease) in
instruments loss before tax equity
THER THER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
328 (16) -

BRATAZ
fRE{E

Carrying amount

BRI AT B 1R
#m,/ (OBd)

Increase/

B A3,
()
Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

of equity

loss before tax
FHIT
HK$'000

instruments
T
HK$'000

equity
TAT
HK$’'000

—E-—F 2021
BAREFEBIBZYIE,  Equity instruments at fair value
B AT &

through profit or loss

2,178 (109) -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Substantially all the transactions of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are carried out in HK$. The
expenses or expenditures incurred in the operations of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amounts of significant
monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are as follows:

—E__—F
2022 2021
TFHT FABT
HK$’000 HK$’000
=K Liabilities
ET United States Dollars 289,722 326,517
TR S ABINE A E R EEF%(—E The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (2021: 5%)

Z—F : 5%)MAAEEME B ERTE
@5(“ E PR 2 5% 8RS A E IR EH &
BRHEIRZ B AL - HRESN
1%@?%5&?%$Z@|\%5'HE%T%IEE NI
R ERRRIMNEER 25% (ZF=—
F:5%)% Eﬂéﬂ%#ﬁﬁ THIEH(BE)
FREDRE B R INEHES% (=F
——%F: 5%)Z|E}/R—F CFATIREE
WAEM) - MEEEERZIEEERR
INERZ 5% (ZF=——%F : 5%) * Aley
FRNRBEENBEMBAR 2 ZE -

uSD

increase and decrease in the relevant foreign currency and
all other variables were held constant. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in foreign exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2021: 5%) change
in foreign currency rate. A positive (negative) number below
indicates a decrease (increase) in post-tax loss for the year
where functional currency entities strengthen 5% (2021: 5%)
against foreign currency. For a 5% (2021: 5%) weakening
of functional currency of respective group entities against
foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the result for the year.

—EgE-—
2022 2021
FHBxT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
14,486 16,326
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
contract assets, deposits and other receivables, restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalent. The amounts presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position are
net of allowances for credit losses, estimated by the
Group’s management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets without significant financing
component. The ECLs on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For the other debt financial assets, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECLs. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECLs should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default and credit impaired financial assets
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the debtor, for economic or contractual

reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the debtor a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Definition of default and credit impaired financial assets
(continued)

Contract assets

In respect of contract assets from foundation piling segment,
these evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customers as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customers operate. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the financial condition of the customers. The Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

Given (i) the customers of the Group are mainly well-known
constructors and there was no history of default in prior
years, the directors of the Company considered the default
rate of financial assets is minimal, (i) no adverse change
in the business environment is anticipated, management
considered that ECLs rates of constructors for the amounts
past due over 1 months and 3 months are immaterial,
respectively. Therefore, no provision for impairment of trade
receivables as at 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022.

Deposits and other receivables

The management assessed the ECLs for deposits and other
receivables are not material when they do not have default
history and the debtors has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

Restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents

In respect of cash deposited with banks and financial
institutions, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to these financial
institutions. The ECLs of bank balances and cash is close to
zero.

REfEFEZRR AR A R) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 213



FEMEERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.

B E b B B A R BUK (E)

FERRE(E)

RERR

AEBEGEREE(BREES - AR
WkE - RIRHIRE  REMASEFE
YMEERRRE RRSENRRN Y
F7 o REFERBRERZEERTANK
E{E (4R A R SRR BRI AT AF L) ©

RBE SRR

AEEEHRRATEETBZEDINN - A
RECHMBERBITHBHEML - X%
BEEEREFAPRAZEAREER
RUHESZERMNE - LEBHRMZRTT
TR UERNEEHREFE - A5H
ZRBECRAREEBEIHHEESR
i

R-ZBE--F=A=+—8 x££
B A (E)F 5 A1,056,727,00078 7T( =
T ——4 :1,187,971,0008 L) ° &zt &
bR A MR RRMTESO) T EME M - A&
NAESEMAEBEERATEEES
R EIREREFRRK o

214 Annual Report 2022 4§

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprised of deposit, other receivables, restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of
the counterparties were with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these financial instruments as
detailed in the respective notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure it has adequate financial resources in meeting its
financial obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available
and sufficient bank deposits to meet its short-term cash
requirements. The Group’s liquidity risk management
includes diversifying the funding sources.

At 31 March 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$1,056,727,000 (2021: HK$1,137,971,000). Having
taken into account measures disclosed in note 3(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
working capital for its present requirements.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

—ERE  -ENEE WENLE &

REX HRWE HREE RENE SHAR REE
More than ~ More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but Total
1 year or on less than lessthan  More than  contractual Carrying
RZE-Z“#=F=1-H At 31 March 2022 demand 2 years 5 years 5 years amount amount
TARL TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHRMNTR Trade payables 292,390 - - - 292,390 292,390
Eft R Other payables 303,471 - - - 303,471 303,47
NG Due to related companies 783,934 - - - 783,934 783,934
[ER—REZHE Due to a director 285 - - - 285 285
e Borrowings 905,586 99,279 231,175 620,917 1,856,957 1,541,006
HEAR Lease liabilties 685 - - - 685 673
2,219,283 - - 731,641 2950924 2,921,759

BETEBERSASE  Financial guarantees issued

(H15245) maximum amount (note 45) 71,443 - - - 71,443 -
71,443 - - - 71,443 -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

—Emsk  —EUNEE WEMLKE

BREL PRME SREF

More than More than

Within 1 yearbut 2 years but
1 year or on less than less than More than  contractual Carrying
WZZ-—-F=A=+—H At 31 March 2021 demand 2 years 5 years 5 years amount amount
TAL THET THT THET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BoRMNHE Trade payables 107,494 = = = 107,494 107,494
Eft IR Other payables 198,786 - - - 193,786 193,786
EEEARTE Due to related companies 783,634 = = = 783,634 783,634
EN—LBENE Due to a director 274 - - - 274 274
B8 Borrowings 885,849 - - = 885,849 800,217
BEEE Lease liabilties 914 685 - - 1,599 1,485
1,971,951 685 - - 1972636 1,886,890

Financial guarantees
BETSRERSASE issued maximum amount

(Hii#45) (note 45) 11,344 - = = 11,344 =
11,344 - - - 11,344 -
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance
and equity balance. Debt balance consists of borrowings
and amounts due to related companies. Equity balance
consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on an on-going
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure and take
appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure.

The Group monitor capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. EBITDA is
determined as loss before income tax from continuing
operations before finance income, finance cost and
depreciation, depletion and amortization.
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41. BHREREEEERBE®@E) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

EXxEmEE (R

KRB —_FR_FT——
A - &SR

Capital risk management (continued)

F=A=+— The Debt to equity ratios as at 31 March 2022 and 2021
were as follows:

—E__F
2022 2021
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
& (HI7E3) Debt (Note (i) 2,324,940 824,215
ReRBRSEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 46,516 131,344
FEB Net debt 2,278,424 692,871
wE= (KaE (i) Equity (Note (i) (11,538) 465,616
TR EM L = Net debt-to-equity ratio (197.47) 1.49

(i BB EEFRN I 28 k302 E . - (0)

(i) REBEARRES AEEEEARRRH (i

# o
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Debt comprised borrowings as detailed in Note 28 and Note 30.

Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company.
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42.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the financial year, the Group entered into a sales
agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Yueyang
Fenglan Property Management Service Co., Ltd. that carried
out of the Group’s development property operations.
The purpose of the disposal is to generate cash for the
expansion of the Group’s other businesses. The disposal
was completed on 29/11/2021, on which date the Group
lost control of Yueyang Fenglan Property Management
Service Co., Ltd.

The result of the operations for the current year was as

follow:

—E-—
2022
FET

HK$°000
Weas REVENUE 1,761
SHERK A Cost of sales (1,542)
EH Gross profit 219
HA A R e sk (B518))F58 Other income and gains or (losses), net 30
T R E AR Administrative and other expenses (459)
BRER BT ES 1B Loss before tax (210)
Frisgige, (FAx%) Income tax credit/(expense) -
FANEE Loss for the year (210)
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42. HEKE QT @) 42, DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
REEBBMNBRARZAEEEEFE The net assets disposed of subsidiary at the date of
N disposal were as follow:
—E_—F
2022
FET
HK$’000
EEFE Net assets 2,019
& B e Loss on disposal (1,413)
KRBT Total consideration 606
LATRB) A A Satisfied by:
RE Cash 606
HEEE RS ML FE Net cash outflow arising on disposal
BURReRELTE Total cash consideration received 606
it ERITERRIRS Bank balance and cash disposed of 1,660
2,266
43. WEHEEE 43. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
BE—_T - —_F=-A=+—HItHREH After the reporting period ended 31 March 2022, there
B WEZAFZEREEMBATIHED was no significant event affecting the Group required to be
EAREIH o disclosed.
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44. A TBEBEARR K 44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
RABRHRE AR H AR K E R0 Information about the statement of financial position of the
T Company at the end of reporting period is as follows:
—E_-—F
2022
FHET
HK$°000
FERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
E: VG Property, plant and equipment 7 11
FREEE Right-of-use assets 572 1,336
S IIEINGIPA $a Interests in subsidiaries - 904,995
IERBEERLE Total non-current assets 579 906,342
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TERTZRIE S NMEM  Prepayments, deposits and other
FEW IR receivables 492 462
BAREFBIEZFVE  Equity instruments at fair value through
ZHATE profit or loss 328 2,178
RERBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,905 3,093
MBEELE Total current assets 2,725 5,733
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HibfEN B NETER  Other payables and accruals 22,120 3,130
JEfN—FHRAERRFIE  Due to a related company 220,548 151,804
BE Borrowing 289,722 326,517
HEAaR Lease liabilities 673 812
BB EERR Total current liabilities 533,063 482,263
REBAETE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (530,338) (476,530)
EERERRBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES (529,759) 429,812
FRBAE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEAE Lease liabilities - 673
(BB EESHE NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (529,759) 429,139
s EQUITY
&R ) Share capital 339,500 339,500
GG Reserves (note) (869,259) 89,639
M HB R Total equity (529,759) 429,139
BRIT BRI
Dai Dong Xing Chui Kwong Kau
HITESE HHTESE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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44. RN EEFEEAIR R (@) 44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)
BEE - Note:
ARNRZFEERELT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

BR A7 18 BEEE MERBREE RiTEER
Exchange
Share Special fluctuation Accumulated

premium reserves* reserve Iosses

RZZ-TFMA—H At 1 April 2020 1,350,993 93,267 75,052 (1,262,825) 256,487
FAEBREARSERE Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - (169,101) (169,101)
[k Share allotment 2,253 - - - 2,253
R-ZZ=-_—F=A=+—H At 31 March 2021 1,353,246 93,267 75,052 (1,431,926) 89,639
FAEBREARSERE Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - (958,898) (958,898)
R-ZE-—#F=H=+—H At 31 March 2022 1,353,246 93,267 75,052  (2,390,824) (869,259)
* BRI EERBER S —=FLAEITZE * The special reserve represents the difference between the fair
BB PIEERARIRMN AR ERAIR value of the shares of Pearl Swirls Limited acquired pursuant to the
BMEBIT 2 AARRNDEERZ =5 reorganisation in September 2013 over the nominal value of the

Company’s share issued in exchange therefore.

45. HAEE 45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RZZTE-_—_F=RA=+—8 ' ~&EH As at 31 March 2022, the Group provided financial
MAEERTENE TYRERREHSD guarantees to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities
i ERE TRITRE %pﬂjﬂ%{% o B% provided for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties in
EXFBEEEIN  AEER-_T_— the PRC. Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have
A=t —BRYEEFAEEB(ZT = any contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).
—F &)

222 Annual Report 2022 2§



AFMBGEE

Five Years Financial Summary

BEZA=1t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March
S —TIF ZTITR —ENF —F-0\F
RESULTS 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
TEx AT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Z=70)
Restated
BFESEER Continuing operations
W Revenue 1,016,162 216,710 106,352 419,762 738,147
HERA Cost of sales (907,740) (197,739) (95,563) (430,208) (824,201)
£,/ (8) Gross profit/(loss) 108,422 18,971 10,789 (10,446) (86,054)
WRDEREEHENE  Write-down completed properties
ZUERFE held for sales to net realisable
value - - - - (20,531)
WHEERMESZAEHE  Write-down of properties under
FE development to net realisable
value - - - - (2,026)
Ef AR UzE/(B18)  Other income and gains/(losses),

HEE net (1,491) 9,854 (839) 12,119 27,868
HERDHRAX Seling and distribution expenses (19,422) (15,693) (7,068) (12,718) (22,063)
THREMAX Administrative and other expenses (59,666) (69,702) (49,912) (80,008) (106,348)
NE  BENZEZRE  Reversal of impairment loss/

BiEEE/ (REES) (impairment loss) on property,

plant and equipment (60,759) 4,556 (12,779) - -
BEMEZ N EWE,/  Fair value gain/loss) on

(BR)F8 investment properties, net (570,405) (3,990) (52,875) (27,331) 17,407
BRAREZ N EWE/  Fair value gain/(loss) on equity

(BR)F8 investments, net (1,850) (1,074) (2,960) (8,725) 65,593
El—ABE N REE Share of result from an associate (17,721) (940) (3,599) (14,661) (11,242)
IR Finance costs (121,889) (122,611) (83,676) (84,085) (93,868)
BRHAIER Loss before tax (744,781) (180,629) (202,919) (225,853) (231,264)
FrighiEe,/ (RX) Income tax credit/(expense) (10,954) 5,139 (20,875) 1,986 9,208
SRCREBEN Loss for the year from continuing

B operations (755,735) (175,490) (223,794) (223,867) (222,056)
BRIEEEXY Discontinued operation
BRHERER ZERE  Profit for the year from a

il discontinued operation - - - - 389
RRREE AEGER Loss attributable to owners of the

Company (755,735) (175,490) (223,794) (223,867) (221,667)
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R=B=1+-H
As at 31 March
et -3 - ZEZZFF —ZE-NF —T-N\F
RESULTS 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Tz TET TET THT THT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
RESIEE)
EEREHE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AERE Total assets 3,494,752 3,768,359 2,183,677 2,572,154 3,002,813
aERE Total liabilities (3,243,583) (2,815,336) (1,289,868) (1,380,598) (1,480,327)
AEFE Net assets 251,169 953,023 893,809 1,191,556 1,522,486
RAFHEARAEEER  Equity attributable to owners of
the Company (11,538) 465,616 407,207 637,300 912,510
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